
M e m o r a n d u m 
To:  CAPCO Board of Directors 

From: Eden C. Harrington-Hall, Assistant Director 

Date:  June 22, 2016 

Subject: Board of Directors Meeting 

 

This is to inform you that a CAPCO Board of Directors meeting will be 

held at 12:00 p.m. June 23, 2016 at the main office. 

 

If you have any questions, or would like additional information about the 

Board packet, please call me at CAPCO - 753-6781. 

  

Board Packet June 2016 1



Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

June 22, 2016 
I             Call to Order  

 
II. Approval of the May 26, 2016 Meeting Minutes  

III. Standing Committee Reports  

• Executive Committee  
Resolutions: 

• 16 – 23– is seeking your acceptance the Staff Turnover Report 
• 16 – 24 – is seeking your acceptance the proposed changes to the agency’s Personnel 

Policies and Procedures 
• 16 – 25 – is seeking your acceptance the Executive Director Evaluation 

 
• Finance and Audit Committee !  
• Motion to Receive and File Financial Statements. 
Resolutions: 
• 16 – 26 – is seeking your acceptance WIC Budget 
• 16 – 27 – is seeking your acceptance the CSBG Budget Amendment 
• 16 – 28 – is seeking your acceptance the changes to the Fiscal Policies and Procedures 

Procurement Policy 
• 16 – 29 – is seeking your acceptance the Administration Budget 
• 16 – 30– is seeking your acceptance the CDPAP Budget 
• 16 – 31 – is seeking your acceptance the Building Budget 
• 16 – 32 – is seeking your acceptance the Agency Wide Budget 

 
• Board Development Committee  

 
• PP& E Committee 

Resolutions: 
• 16 – 33 – is seeking your acceptance the CSBG Work Plan Amendment 
• 16 – 34 – is seeking your acceptance the updated Strategic Plan 
• 16 – 35 – is seeking your acceptance the Customer Satisfaction Survey 

 
IV. Executive Director Report 
V. Program Director Reports 

• WIC 
• Family Development 
• Weatherization  
• Head Start  

Board Packet June 2016 2



• CDPAP 
• HR 

VI. Head Start Policy Council Update 
VII. Old Business  

VIII. New Business 

• 16 – 36 is seeking your acceptance the Authorized Signatories 

IX. Adjournment 

  

Board Packet June 2016 3



Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

May 26, 2016 
I             Meeting called to order at 12:05 p.m.  

In attendance: Helen Spaulding, Paula Currie, Carole Ann Davies, Luann King, Shawn 
Allen, Pat Snyder, Elizabeth Haskins, Shelley Warnow  Excused: Penny Prignon, Cheryl 
Michales, Rama Haidara, Gary Dallaire Absent: Mary Ann Discenza 
 

II. Approval of the May 5, 2016 Meeting Minutes made by  

III. Standing Committee Reports  

• Executive Committee  
Resolutions: 

• 16 – 14 – is seeking your acceptance the WIC Office Coordinator Job Description.  
Motion for acceptance made by Luann King, seconded by Shawn Allen.  The position is 
not new, but it was changed to reflect current duties as well as a change in title from 
WIC Clerk.  There being no further discussion, motion carried. 

• 16 – 15 – is seeking your acceptance the updated Whistleblower Policy.  Motion for 
acceptance made by Helen Spaulding; seconded by Luann King.  The only change in the 
policy was that reports will now be made to the HR Director, not the Executive Director.  
There being no further discussion, motion carried. 

• 16 – 16 – is seeking your acceptance the Risk Assessment Policy.  Motion for acceptance 
made by Elizabeth Haskins; seconded by Luann King.  Per the new Organizational 
Standards a Risk Assessments needs to be done every two years.  There being no further 
discussion.  Motion carried.  

• 16 – 17 – is seeking your acceptance the Risk Assessment Report.  Motion for 
acceptance made by Shawn Allen; seconded Helen Spaulding.  It is an extensive report 
that will used for planning in a number of areas as indicated in the report. The report 
also includes a laundry list of items which include what you should have written in all 
your leases, what insurance coverage you should have, etc.  There being no further 
discussion, motion carried. 

• 16 – 18 – is seeking your acceptance the Executive Director Succession Plan.  Motion for 
acceptance made by Elizabeth Haskins; seconded by Luann King.  As part of the new 
Organizational Standards a Board approved written succession plan is required for the 
Executive Director.  In addition, Key Management staff are all required to have a written 
plan which all staff are currently working on.  Lindy will be meeting with those staff who 
are listed in her plan to have them sign indicating they understand what role they will 
have.  There being no further discussion, motion carried. 

 
• Finance and Audit Committee !  
• Motion to Receive and File Financial Statements made by Helen Spaulding; seconded by 

Luann King.  Carole Ann Davies noted that 2 reports that indicated there filing dates 

Board Packet June 2016 4



appear to be late.  Martha will review contracts to verify the actual due dates. All other 
program areas are operating as scheduled.  There being no further discussion, motion 
carried. 

Resolutions: 
16 – 19 – is seeking your acceptance the HS/EHS Cola.  Motion for acceptance made by 
Luann King; seconded by Shawn Allen.  The Cola increase will be used for an across the 
board increase of 2% for all HS/EHS staff as well as increasing wages for some employees in 
preparation for the increase in the minimum was effective January 2017.  There being no 
further discussion, motion carried. 
16 – 20 – is seeking your acceptance the USDA Grant Application in the amount of 
36,122.00.  Motion for acceptance made by Helen Spaulding; seconded by Elizabeth 
Haskins.  The funds will be used to complete a Food Systems Assessment for Cortland 
County.  There being no further discussion, motion carried. 
16 – 21 – is seeking your acceptance the United Way Funding Application in the amount of 
$10,000.  Motion for acceptance made by Luann King; seconded by Helen Spaulding.  
Funding will be used to support the Literacy Program.  There being no further discussion, 
motion carried. 
 
• Board Development Committee 

Miranda Greene, PC representative to the Board has resigned due to scheduling 
conflicts.   The committee is starting to plan both Cheryl Michales’ and Paula Currie’s 
rotation off the Board  - both are EPO seats.  There are a couple of possibilities the 
committee is looking at. 

Resolution: 
16 – 22 – is seeking your acceptance the seating of Billie MacNabb, DSS Social Welfare 
Manager as a Consumer Sector Representative.  Motion for acceptance made by Pat 
Snyder; seconded by Elizabeth Haskins.  Billie was able to get 26 signatures on her petition 
to represent the low-income population, all of which meet the low-income guidelines.  She 
has worked for DSS for 10 years, is a member of the Hunger Coalition and is very familiar 
with the services that the agency offers.   There being no further discussion motion carried. 
 
• PP& E Committee – No Meeting 

IV. Executive Director Report 
Max Sammons and Gail Bundy will be receiving awards at the Annual 
NYSCAA/NYSWADA Conference.  The Board suggested that a press release be done in 
recognition of their outstanding commitment to Community Action. 

V. Program Director Reports 
• WIC 
• Family Development 
• Weatherization  
• Head Start 

We will be leasing a new space for 2 classrooms (from the Route 222 site)- the location 
is next to the Elm Tree Golf Course.  There is a large meeting space, green space 

Board Packet June 2016 5



outback, and is much larger than the space we have at the 222 site.  The families that 
are currently served at 222 were contacted to see if there would be an issue with the 
location and all those who were contacted stated it would not be an issue.  After trying 
for 12 years we finally have classroom space at Barry Elementary School we will be 
moving one of the classrooms from the YMCA.   
 

       CDPAP 
• HR 

VI. Head Start Policy Council Update 
VII. Old Business  

VIII. New Business 

IX. Executive Session – motion to go into Executive Session made by Luann King; seconded 
by Helen Spaulding.  Meeting to order at 12:35 p.m. Executive Session was to discuss 
Executive Directors annual evaluation and salary comparability information.   Motion for 
adjournment made by Helen Spaulding; seconded by Shawn Allen.  Meeting adjourned 
at 12:50 p.m. 

X. There being no further business, meet adjourned at 12:58 p.m. 

 

 

  

Board Packet June 2016 6



Executive Committee 

6/17/2016, Called to Order: 8:37am 

Board Members Present: Paula Currie, Shawn Allen, Rama Haidara 

Staff Present: Greg Richards, Human Resource Director 

 

• The Executive Committee reviewed the 2015 CAPCO Turnover Report for the time period of 
January 1, 2015-December 31, 2015. The report was shown in 2 formats: the first including 
CDPAP turnover numbers, and the second excluding CDPAP turnover numbers. This distinction 
was made to account for consumer-director nature of the CDPA Program and CAPCO’s limited 
involvement in the hiring and termination of aides for consumers in the program. The report 
showed 84 separations in 2015 including CDPAP numbers (30 layoff, 22 
performance/attendance, 2 misconduct, 3 retirements, and 27 resignations). Excluding CDPAP 
numbers, the Agency saw 23 separations (4 layoffs, 3 performance/attendance, 0 misconduct, 3 
retirements, 13 resignations) with a turnover rate of 10%. The complete report was reviewed to 
include a break-down of separations per program. Motion made by Shawn Allen to accept the 
2015 Employee Turnover Report by Shawn Allen with the second motion by Rama Haidara.  
 
 Paula Currie requested the minutes reflect the Executive Committee’s desire for 
CAPCO management to work with the Board of Directors to look at the administration of the 
CDPA Program and CAPCO’s employer responsibilities versus those of the consumer. Further 
research and clarification is needed on this to ensure CAPCO’s legal protection in conditions of 
employment matters. 
 

• The Executive Committee reviewed the updated and overhauled Personnel Policies and 
Procedures Manual (Employee Handbook). The Executive Committee was provided a copy of the 
new policies in its entirety prior to the meeting and focused primarily on the newly added, 
changed, or eliminated policies in comparison to the current policies during the meeting. Every 
CAPCO Personnel Policy and Procedure has been re-written in the accepted WipFli template. 
The policies focused on during the meeting include: Sick Leave Policy, Bereavement Leave 
Policy, Employee Orientation, Social Media, Hours of Work (to include Travel Time), 
Smoking/Tobacco Use Policy, and the Workplace Lactation Policy. Shawn Allen made the motion 
to accept the newly updated Personnel Policies and Procedures in their entirety (to include all 
updated polices, not just policies reviewed) with the second motion by Rama Haidara. CAPCO 
intends to roll-out the new Personnel Policy and Procedure Manual at the June 24, 2016 All-Staff 
Day training.  
 

 Meeting Adjourned: 9:16am 

  

Board Packet June 2016 7



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-23 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Executive 

Committee has reviewed the 2015 Staff Turnover Report and has recommended 

accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the Staff Turnover Report and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  Staff Turnover Report. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 8



Including CDPAP Excluding CDPAP
Total Separations: 84 Total Separations: 23

Separation Reasons Separation Reasons
Layoff: 30 Layoff: 4

Performance/Attendance: 22 Performance/Attendance: 3
Misconduct: 2 Misconduct: 0

Retirements: 3 Retirements: 3
Resignations: 27 Resignations: 13

Avg. Number of Monthly 
Employees: 227

Avg. Number of Monthly 
Employees: 227

Total Separations: 84 Total Separations: 23
Turnover Rate: 37% Turnover Rate: 10%

Total Separations: 61 Separation Reasons
Layoff: 26

Performance/Attendance: 19
Misconduct: 2

Retirements: 0
Resignations: 14

Total Separations: 17 Separation Reasons
Layoff: 3

Performance/Attendance: 3
Misconduct: 0

Retirements: 0
Resignations: 11

Total Separations: 2 Separation Reasons
Layoff: 3

Performance/Attendance: 3
Misconduct: 0

Retirements: 0
Resignations: 11

Total Separations: 3 Separation Reasons
Layoff:

Performance/Attendance:
Misconduct:

Retirements: 1
Resignations: 2

WIC

Admin

Family Development

2015 CAPCO Turnover Report: Synopsis

Agency Turnover Totals

Head Start/Early Head Start Turnover Totals

CDPAP Turnover Totals

Turnover Rate= Total Separations/Monthly Avg. # of Employees x 
100

Board Packet June 2016 9



Total Separations: 1 Separation Reasons
Layoff:

Performance/Attendance:
Misconduct:

Retirements: 1
Resignations:

Board Packet June 2016 10



Employee Number Branch Position
       34 Head Start KITCHEN AIDE
      170 Women Infants And Children WIC RETENTION SPECIALIST
      274 Women Infants And Children NUTRITION ASSISTANT
      443 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      458 Management And General ASSISTANT FISCAL DIRECTOR
      572 Head Start KITCHEN AIDE
      588 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      618 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
      629 Management And General FISCAL DIRECTOR
      643 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      658 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      674 Head Start BREAK AIDE
      724 Early Head Start EHS TEACHER
      737 Head Start TEACHER
      801 Head Start TEACHER
      806 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      811 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
      856 Management And General HUMAN RESOURCES SPEC
      887 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
      913 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      933 Head Start TEACHER
      936 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      940 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      941 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
      947 Head Start TEACHER
      950 Head Start TEACHER
      959 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
      986 Head Start TEACHER
      995 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1007 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1010 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1023 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1026 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1042 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1057 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1058 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1061 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1103 Early Head Start BREAK AIDE
     1118 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1119 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1146 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1161 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1164 Head Start TEACHER
     1165 Head Start TEACHER
     1200 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
     1206 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1210 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
     1217 Head Start SUBSTITUTE

2015 A   

Board Packet June 2016 11



     1223 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
     1233 Head Start BREAK AIDE
     1235 Early Head Start BREAK AIDE
     1237 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
     1238 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1241 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1242 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1252 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1258 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1259 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1263 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
     1265 Health And Nutrition FAM. DEV. AIDE
     1276 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1286 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1287 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1289 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1296 Consumer Directed Care AIDE
     1297 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1299 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1300 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1301 Consumer Directed Care PERSONAL CARE AIDE
     1302 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1316 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1322 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1326 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1327 Head Start SUBSTITUTE
     1328 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1329 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1330 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1332 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1333 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1334 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1335 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1337 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1339 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE
     1341 Consumer Directed Care SKILLED CARE AIDE

Board Packet June 2016 12



Job Status Hire Date Term Date Term Reason
Part Time 09/19/1997 06/26/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 02/23/2015 09/30/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 10/01/2004 05/29/2015 Termination Due to Retirement
Part Time 03/02/2015 07/14/2015 Terminated
Full Time 09/04/2007 03/04/2016 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 08/05/2013 06/25/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 01/14/2015 02/17/2015 Terminated
Part Time 06/11/2012 04/17/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 05/26/2009 11/25/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Full Time 01/02/2014 05/11/2015 Involuntary Termination Due to Misconduct
Part Time 08/15/2015 08/05/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 10/21/2009 06/26/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 04/06/2010 03/25/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Full Time 04/12/2010 07/08/2015 Termination Due to Layoff
Full Time 08/30/2010 08/24/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 09/06/2010 12/30/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 01/25/2012 07/29/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 09/15/2014 12/29/2014 Termination Due to Retirement
Part Time 03/16/2015 11/13/2015 Terminated
Part Time 08/29/2011 02/01/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 11/28/2011 09/23/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 12/08/2011 08/11/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 07/08/2015 03/11/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 03/01/2013 04/03/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 02/01/2012 01/02/2016 Voluntary Resignation
Full Time 02/15/2012 10/19/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 10/18/2014 04/03/2016 Voluntary Resignation
Full Time 08/20/2012 08/21/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 09/02/2012 02/01/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 06/11/2014 08/11/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 10/12/2012 02/06/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 01/14/2013 07/29/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Full Time 10/15/2014 10/05/2015 Involuntary Termination Due to Misconduct
Full Time 06/11/2013 05/11/2015 Terminated
Part Time 11/24/2011 02/17/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 02/04/2008 02/17/2015 Involuntary Layoff
N/A 11/14/2014 07/31/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 08/18/2008 09/01/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Full Time 10/01/2008 02/01/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 10/01/2008 02/01/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 07/03/2013 04/17/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 05/31/2014 03/23/2015 Terminated
Full Time 08/26/2013 08/07/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Full Time 08/26/2013 10/23/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 04/21/2014 04/15/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 05/29/2014 02/16/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 07/29/2014 05/01/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 09/04/2014 03/02/2015 Terminated

 Agency Turnover Report

Board Packet June 2016 13



Part Time 09/10/2014 12/21/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 10/03/2014 01/27/2016 Terminated
Part Time 09/30/2014 03/07/2016 Terminated
Part Time 10/15/2014 01/04/2016 Terminated
Part Time 10/09/2014 02/12/2015 Terminated
Part Time 10/29/2014 05/18/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 10/24/2014 07/10/2015 Terminated
Part Time 12/02/2014 07/15/2015 Terminated
Part Time 12/22/2014 04/03/2015 Terminated
Full Time 01/01/2015 02/09/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 02/11/2015 07/31/2015 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 03/02/2015 07/10/2015 Termination Due to Retirement
Part Time 04/06/2015 02/17/2016 Terminated
Part Time 06/17/2015 07/06/2015 Terminated
Part Time 06/13/2015 10/16/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 07/01/2015 08/06/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 07/07/2015 01/05/2016 Terminated
Part Time 07/10/2015 02/01/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 07/17/2015 07/28/2015 Terminated
Part Time 08/05/2015 08/21/2015 Terminated
Part Time 07/28/2015 08/27/2015 Terminated
Part Time 08/01/2015 10/21/2015 Terminated
Part Time 09/11/2015 02/01/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 09/28/2015 10/05/2015 Terminated
Part Time 10/21/2015 01/19/2016 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 11/04/2015 03/15/2016 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 11/12/2015 01/04/2016 Terminated
Part Time 11/16/2015 12/09/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 11/22/2015 12/05/2015 Voluntary Resignation
Part Time 11/16/2015 03/17/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 12/07/2015 05/09/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 12/07/2015 05/09/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 12/07/2015 05/09/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Full Time 12/07/2015 05/09/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 12/11/2015 05/09/2016 Involuntary Layoff
Part Time 12/07/2015 05/09/2016 Involuntary Layoff

Board Packet June 2016 14



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-24 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Executive 

Committee has reviewed the updated agency Personnel Policies and Procedures 

and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the proposed Personnel Policies and Procedures and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  Personnel Policies and Procedures. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 15



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Cortland County Community 
Action Program, Inc. 

(CAPCO) 
 

Personnel 
Policies and Procedures Manual 

 
 

 

Board Packet June 2016 16



Table of Contents 
 
 

SECTION 1 
 
INTRODUCTORY ...................................................................................................................... 1 

CAPCO Organizational Chart ............................................................................................... 2 
      Head Start/Early Head Start Organizational Chart ………………………………………………3 
      Head Start/Early Head Start [Education Specific] Organizational Chart……………………….4 

CAPCO Mission, Vision, Values Statements ........................................................................ 5 
CAPCO Employment Philosophy ......................................................................................... 6 
CAPCO Employment Expectations ...................................................................................... 6 
Policy and Procedures Manual ............................................................................................. 7 
Open Door Policy ................................................................................................................. 8 

 
SECTION 2 

 
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES .......................................................................... 9 

Employment-At-Will .............................................................................................................. 9 
Equal Employment Opportunity ............................................................................................ 9 
Political Affiliations ..............................................................................................................11 
Harassment .........................................................................................................................12 
Affirmative Action ................................................................................................................14 
Certification and License Requirements ..............................................................................15 
Child Abuse and Neglect/Vulnerable Adult Abuse and Neglect Reporting Policy 
     [MANDATED REPORTER] ............................................................................................16 
Grievance Policy/Problem Resolution .................................................................................19 
Persons With Disabilities .....................................................................................................20 
Employment Categories and Definitions ..............................................................................21 
Outside Employment ...........................................................................................................23 
Conflict of Interest ...............................................................................................................24 
Employment of Relatives/Nepotism .....................................................................................25 
Employment of Former Employees .....................................................................................26 
Substitutes and Special Agreement Employees ..................................................................27 
Recruitment and Selection ..................................................................................................28 
Internal Job Posting.............................................................................................................30 
Pre-employment Investigation/Background Check ..............................................................31 
Employee Orientation ..........................................................................................................33 
Immigration Policy ...............................................................................................................34 
Introductory Period/Probation ..............................................................................................35 
Human Resources Records ................................................................................................35 
Attendance ..........................................................................................................................37 
Confidentiality of Agency [and Participant] Information ........................................................38 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act .............................................................39 
Promotions ..........................................................................................................................40 
Transfers .............................................................................................................................41 
Job Descriptions ..................................................................................................................42 
Performance Management ..................................................................................................43 
Inclement Weather and Other Emergencies ........................................................................ 44 

Board Packet June 2016 17



 
SECTION 3 

 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PROCEDURES ................................................................................. 47 

Flex Schedules ................................................................................................................... 47 
Holidays ............................................................................................................................. 47 
Annual Leave ..................................................................................................................... 48 
Sick Leave ......................................................................................................................... 50 
Personal Days .................................................................................................................... 51 
Personal Leave of Absence ................................................................................................ 52 
Federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) .................................................................. 52 

     Workplace Lactation Policy………………………………………………………………......55 
Military Service ................................................................................................................... 56 

     Jury Duty……………………………………………………………………………………………..56 
      Victims of a Crime Leave…………………………………………………………………………..57 
      Witness Leave………………………………………………………………………………………58 
      Voting Leave………………………………………………………………………………………...58 
     Bereavement Leave………………………………………………………………………………...59 

Benefit Plans ...................................................................................................................... 60 
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) .............................................. 63 
Workers’ Compensation ..................................................................................................... 63 
Training and Development ................................................................................................. 64 
Education Assistance ......................................................................................................... 66 
Employee Participation in Program Services ...................................................................... 67 

 
SECTION 4 

 
TIMEKEEPING AND PAYROLL ...............................................................................................68 

Hours of Work .....................................................................................................................68 
Overtime .............................................................................................................................69 
Timekeeping .......................................................................................................................69 
Paycheck Distribution ..........................................................................................................71 
Wage and Salary Administration .........................................................................................71 
Payroll Deductions ..............................................................................................................73 
Travel/Expense Reimbursement .........................................................................................74 

 
SECTION 5 

 
EMPLOYEE CONDUCT ...........................................................................................................76 

Safety ..................................................................................................................................76 
     Vehicle Use Policy…………………………………………………………………………………..77 

Hygiene ...............................................................................................................................80 
Dress Policy and Appearance .............................................................................................81 
General Housekeeping ........................................................................................................83 
Security/Inspection ..............................................................................................................84 
Workplace Activity Monitoring .............................................................................................84 
Safe Environment ................................................................................................................85 
Weapons .............................................................................................................................86 
Smoking/Tobacco Usage ....................................................................................................86 
Drug and Alcohol Use .........................................................................................................87 
Fire Safety/Prevention .........................................................................................................88 
Electronic Media Use ..........................................................................................................90 
Electronic Device Use .........................................................................................................91 

Board Packet June 2016 18



Recording Devices in the Workplace……………………………………………………………..93 
Social Media .......................................................................................................................93 
Use of Office Equipment, Mail, and Supplies .......................................................................95 
Solicitation ...........................................................................................................................96 
Agency Bulletin Boards .......................................................................................................96 
Standards of Conduct ..........................................................................................................97 
Corrective Action .................................................................................................................99 
Suspension/Termination ......................................................................................................99 
Exit Interviews ................................................................................................................... 100 

     FMLA Addendum……………………………………………………………………….............101 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 19



SECTION 1 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY 
 
 
 
 

Welcome to the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. (CAPCO) 
 

 
We welcome you to the CAPCO family. This Policies and Procedures Manual serves as your 
Employee Handbook to help you become acquainted with CAPCO and answer many of your 
initial questions. 
 
The mission of CAPCO is to provide programs and resources that promote self-reliance and 
dignity. As an employee of Cortland Community Action Program, the importance of your 
contribution cannot be overstated. You are an important part of this process because your work 
helps us achieve this goal – we are about helping people and changing lives. You make that 
happen. 
 
We are glad you have joined us, and we hope you will find your work to be both challenging and 
rewarding. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lindy Glennon 
Executive Director 

Board Packet June 2016 20



CAPCO ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
 
 

 
 
This Agency chart defines the reporting relationships within CAPCO.  Solid lines indicate direct 
reporting relationships.  Dotted lines indicate indirect reporting relationships.   

HR Director

Board of 
Directors

Executive Director

Assistant Director

Consumer Directed 
Personal Assistance 

Program 

Finance Director

Assistant Finance Director

Fiscal Clerk

Energy Services Director

Quality Improvement/ 
Auditor

Crew Laborer (3)

Office Clerk

Family Development 
Director

Family Advocates 
(4)

GED Instructor

Literacy Volunteers

WIC

Breastfeeding 
Coordinator

Clerks (2)

Peer
Counselors

Nutritionist

Head Start/
Early Head 

Start
(See 

Attached)

Policy Council

 

Board Packet June 2016 21



[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
The Head Start/Early Head Start Policy Council represents an approval/disapproval relationship 
regarding specific decisions made within the Agency.  Decision specifics are described in 45 
CFR Part 1304.50.  
 
45 CFR Part 1304.52(a) Organizational Structure must be defined along with roles and 
responsibilities.  Organizational Chart with staff names and title along with current and accurate 
job descriptions addresses major functions and responsibilities assigned to each staff person. 
 
 
Head Start/Early Head Start Organizational Chart: 

 
 

 

Board Packet June 2016 22



Head Start/Early Head Start [Education Specific] Organizational Chart: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Board Packet June 2016 23



MISSION, VISION, VALUES STATEMENTS 
 
Definition: 
 
CAPCO’s mission statement is a statement of the fundamental purpose of CAPCO; it’s the 
reason for existing. 
 
CAPCO’s vision statement outlines what CAPCO wants to be in the future. 
 
CAPCO’s values statement contains the shared framework of the Agency which drives our 
culture. 
 
CAPCO’s core mission, vision, and values are: 
 

Mission:  CAPCO is dedicated to providing and advocating for community-wide actions and 
programs that increase individuals’ dignity and self-reliance and improve community 
conditions, engaging all sectors of the community in Cortland County’s fight against poverty. 
 
Vision:   

• Family and Individuals – CAPCO services and supports will provide opportunities 
for people in Cortland County to increase their self-reliance, improve their economic 
circumstances, and strengthen their connections to family and community. 

• Community – CACPO’s programs, advocacy, and leadership role in the community 
will result in improved conditions and greater influence for individuals and families in 
community-wide initiative to change the public’s response to poverty in Cortland 
County. 

• Agency Capacity – CAPCO will increase its capacity to develop and align diverse 
partnerships, revenues, human resources and organizational systems to address 
critical community needs, as an effective leader in Cortland County’s efforts to break 
the cycle of poverty. 

 
Values:  To truly live our mission and, ultimately, achieve our vision, the following are 
CAPCO’s values: 
 

1. The voices and experiences of the people we serve, and their full 
participation in our community. 

2. Respect for ourselves, and all those with whom we come in contact in our 
work. 

3. Accountability for our resources and results to our participants and our 
community. 

4. Cooperation and partnership within CAPCO and with the individuals and 
organizations, locally, statewide and nationally, which support our mission. 

5. A commitment to understanding our own and others’ strengths, and using 
these strengths to support our program, management and governance 
activities.   

 
When we make decisions, we must first think about what is the right thing to do (integrity).  Then 
we must consider the decision’s effect on the people it touches (caring).  Only then can we think 
about the steps we must take to ensure that a task is done excellently.  To be successful, tasks 

Board Packet June 2016 24



must be done with teamwork and with perseverance.  In other words, it’s not just what we do; it 
is, more importantly, how we do it. 
 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT PHILOSOPHY 
 
The personnel policies and procedures at CAPCO are based on the belief that the Agency’s 
success is primarily dependent upon the employees.  Employees can expect the Agency to: 
 

• Live and promote the mission, vision, and values through all the Agency does. 
 

• Recognize employees as an important part of the CAPCO team. 
 

• Review employees’ performance annually. 
 

• Maintain competitive wages and benefits for the marketplace and industry. 
 

• Provide a safe, efficient, and pleasant workplace. 
 

• Encourage employees to expand their knowledge and value to the Agency through 
educational and professional development opportunities. 

 
• Establish and maintain a truly “open door” communications environment. 

 
• Encourage high-quality service to clients. 

 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT EXPECTATIONS 
 
Because CAPCO is service-oriented, employees need to be committed to the Agency’s mission, 
vision, and values.  Employees are expected to: 
 

• Give high-quality service to clients.  CAPCO exists because of its mission.  Those 
served are to be treated with the utmost respect, courtesy, promptness, cooperation, 
friendliness, and confidentiality.  
 

• Perform at the highest level.  Employees are hired for their skills and abilities in certain 
areas. Every employee needs to be at work on a regular basis, understand and perform 
the job well, continue to improve competencies, and be constantly thinking of ways to 
better serve the community and clients. 

 
• Strive to make this a great place to work.  Every employee impacts the culture of 

CAPCO.  Cooperating with one another, taking initiative, knowing and respecting one 
another’s strengths and weaknesses, and treating one another with courtesy is the 
foundation to creating a positive culture and a great place to work. 

 
 

Board Packet June 2016 25



POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
This Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual (“Manual”) contains information about the 
employment policies and practices of CAPCO. All employees, including managers and 
Supervisors, are expected to familiarize themselves with its contents, as it will provide an 
understanding and answer many questions concerning policies and procedures and your 
employment at CAPCO. This Manual serves to provide management and staff members with an 
understanding and approach to administering personnel, payroll, and human resource 
department policies and procedures.  This Manual supersedes and replaces any and all prior 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Manuals and Employee Handbooks as well as inconsistent 
verbal or written policy statements. 
 
The Board of Directors and Agency leadership believes that we accomplish the vision and 
mission of CAPCO together (see Mission, Vision, and Value Statements).  Because of this we 
believe that full transparency about Personnel Policies and Procedures is important. 
 
This Manual covers many of the situations that will affect employees’ day to day work life in the 
Agency, but not all.  This Manual is not an employment contract and does not create contractual 
obligations, nor is it a contract guaranteeing employment for any specific duration; either the 
employee or CAPCO may terminate this relationship at any time, for any reason.  No oral 
statements by Supervisors or management can create a contract or modify their status as an 
employee at-will.  As an employee at-will, an employee may quit at any time, with or without 
notice.  CAPCO has the same right to terminate employment.  Only the Executive Director or 
the Board of Directors has the authority to create an employment contract, and such contracts 
must be in writing and signed by the appropriate parties to be valid. 
 

Please contact your Supervisor or the Human Resource Director for specific questions and 
concerns or suggestions for the Manual.  The Agency reserves the right to revise, 
supplement, or rescind any policies or portion of the Manual from time to time as it deems 
appropriate, in its sole and absolute discretion. Employees will, of course, be notified of 
such changes to the Manual as they occur through official notices. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The Manual will generally be distributed to the Board of Directors, administrators, 
Supervisors, and all current and newly hired CAPCO employees.   

 
2. The Manual applies to employees or volunteers. 

  
3. In response to updated regulations, laws, personnel, payroll, and human resources best 

practices, the Executive Director reserves the right to revise, delete, add, or otherwise 
change the provisions of this Manual. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 26



4. Changes to this Manual will be communicated to and acknowledged by all staff prior to a 
changed policy’s implementation. Communication and staff acknowledgement of 
changes to this Manual can be done electronically or via physical distribution/sign-off.  

 
5. Written authorization and approval from the Board of Directors and Head Start Policy 

Council is required prior to changing/updating the Manual.    
 

6. No oral statements or representations can change the provisions of this Manual. 
 
 
 
 
OPEN DOOR POLICY 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO is committed to promoting and practicing an “open door” attitude among all of the 
employees to discuss differences of opinions and/or problems that may arise.  
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. If there is a question, concern, or problem related to employment at CAPCO, the 
situation should be discussed directly with the immediate Supervisor.  CAPCO 
encourages employee involvement and participation in problem solving.   
 

2. Problems or concerns should be discussed as soon as the issue or problem arises.  If an 
employee is uncomfortable talking to her/his Supervisor about the problem or the 
concern remains unresolved, he/she may approach the Program Director for guidance. If 
the problem remains unresolved, the employee may approach the Human Resource 
Director for guidance.  If, after speaking with the Supervisor, Program Director, and the 
Human Resource Director, the matter remains unresolved, the employee may seek 
progressive levels of involvement and discussions, in the specific order presented, with 
reference to CAPCO’s grievance policy. 

 
 

Board Packet June 2016 27



 
SECTION 2 

 
 
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT-AT-WILL 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO is an at-will employer. Employees who do not have a written employment agreement or 
operate under a collective bargaining agreement are employed at the will of CAPCO for an 
indefinite period.  Employees may resign from the Agency at any time, for any reason with or 
without notice.  Employees may be terminated by the Agency at any time, for any reason except 
as expressly prohibited by law, with or without notice, and with or without cause.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. No one may modify this policy for any employee or enter any agreement contrary to this 
policy.  No one will make any representation to any employee or applicant concerning 
any term or condition of employment with the Agency that is not consistent with this 
policy. 

 
2. No statement contained in the Manual, employee handbook, employment application, 

recruiting material, or other written materials provided to any employee in connection 
with her/his employment will be construed as contradicting this policy by creating any 
express or implied contract of employment. 

 
3. At the time of hiring, each employee will be informed that he/she is employed at the will 

of the Agency and is subject to termination at any time, for any reason, with or without 
notice, and with or without cause.    

 
4. Completion of an introductory period will not change an employee’s status as an 

employee-at-will or in any way restrict the Agency’s right to terminate an employee. 
 
 
 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO is committed to providing a policy of equal employment opportunity for all employees.  
Employment decisions are based on merit, qualifications, competence, and the needs of the 
Agency.  CAPCO prohibits discrimination on the basis of an employee or applicant’s race, color, 
religion, gender, age, national origin, disability sexual orientation, military service, veteran’s 

Board Packet June 2016 28



status, marital status, arrest or conviction record, genetic information, domestic violence victim 
status, familial status[mm1], or any other characteristic protected by law.  This policy governs all 
aspects of employment, promotion, assignment, discharge, and other terms and conditions of 
employment.  All employees are required to have proof of identity and authorization to work. 

This policy applies to all personnel actions including hiring, transfers, promotions, 
demotions, compensation and benefits administration, participation in Agency-sponsored 
training, education and social programs, layoffs, recalls and termination of employment. 
 
CAPCO is committed to providing a work environment free from discrimination. You may 
discuss equal employment opportunity related questions with the Human Resources Director or 
any other member of management. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The Human Resources Director is responsible for overseeing the administration of the 
EEO Policy and may act through the Executive Director as necessary to carry out this 
policy.  

 
2. The Agency is responsible for ensuring that it does not illegally discriminate, harass, or 

retaliate in any policy, practice, or procedure on the basis of any non-merit factor as 
outlined in the federal and state laws and regulations. 

 
3. The Human Resources Director will administer the Agency’s applicant tracking system 

and compiling data for required EEOC reports, ensuring the Agency meets all EEOC-
related requirements, including confirming appropriate notices are posted on the bulletin 
boards of the various programs and sites.  This information may also be used to ensure 
that employment-related decisions are made in compliance with federal and state non-
discrimination laws and this policy. 

 
4. The Human Resources Director will arrange for EEO and diversity training for all 

employees and volunteers.  All employees are responsible for creating and maintaining 
a work environment free of discrimination and harassment. 

 
5. CAPCO is committed, and required by law, to take action if it learns of discrimination, 

harassment, or retaliation in violation of the Agency’s EEO Policy, whether or not the 
aggrieved employee files a complaint.  

 
6. An employee, or applicantwill be given the option to file a discrimination, harassment, or 

retaliation complaint with the Human Resources Director.  Both parties will be promptly 
informed at the conclusion of the investigation whether allegations have been found to 
be founded, unsubstantiated, or unfounded. 

 
7. The Human Resource Director is responsible for promptly responding to, reporting, 

and/or investigating any suspected acts of unlawful discrimination, harassment, and 
retaliation in violation of CAPCO’s EEO Policy.  The Human Resources Director must 
immediately report suspected unlawful discrimination, harassment, and retaliation to the 
Executive Director.  

 
 

Board Packet June 2016 29



 
 
 
POLITICAL AFFILIATIONS  
 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO, its management and administration will ensure, as far as reasonably possible, that all 
program activities are conducted in a manner which provides assistance effectively, efficiently, 
and free of any influence of partisan political bias.  
 
CAPCO employees may not: 
 

1. Use her/his official authority or influence for the purpose of interfering with or affecting 
the result of an election or nomination for office. 

 
2. Directly or indirectly coerce, attempt to coerce, command, or advise a state or local 

officer or employee to pay, lend, or contribute anything of value to a political party, 
committee, agency, or person for a political purpose. 

 
3. Be a candidate for elective public office in a partisan election. 

 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Programs will not be carried on in a manner involving the use of program funds, the 
provision of services, or the employment or assignment of personnel in a manner 
supporting or resulting in the identification of such programs with: 

 
a. Any partisan or nonpartisan political activity or any other political activity associated 

with a candidate, or contending faction or group, in an election for public or party 
office. 

b. Any voter registration activity, unless otherwise mandated by the funding source. 
c. Any activity to provide voters or prospective voters with transportation to the polls or 

similar assistance in connection with any such election. 
 
The Hatch Act 
 
The Hatch Act applies to the political activity of certain state and local government employees. 
Covered employees under the act are persons principally employed by state or local executive 
agencies in connection with programs financed in whole or in part by federal loans or grants. 
The act does not apply to the political activity of persons employed by educational or research 
institutions or agencies supported in whole or in part by (a) states or their political subdivisions, 
or (b) religious, philanthropic, or cultural organizations. 
 
It should be noted that some statutes make Hatch Act provisions applicable to other categories 
of individuals, e.g., persons employed by private, non-profit organizations that plan, develop, 
and coordinate Head Start and certain other types of federal assistance. 

Board Packet June 2016 30



 
State and Local Hatch Act Do’s  
Covered state and local employees may:  

i. run for public office in nonpartisan elections  
ii. campaign for and hold office in political clubs and organizations  
iii. actively campaign for candidates for public office in partisan and nonpartisan 
elections  
iv. contribute money to political organizations and attend political fundraising functions 

 
State and local Hatch Act Don’ts  
Covered state and local employees may not:  

i. be candidates for public office in a partisan election  
ii. use official authority or influence to interfere with or affect the results of an election or 
nomination  
iii. directly or indirectly coerce contributions from subordinates in support of a political 
party or candidate. 

 
Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Act  

(a) Treatment as a state or local agency.-- For purposes of chapter 15 of title 5, United 
States Code, any entity that assumes responsibility for planning, developing, and 
coordinating activities under this subtitle and receives assistance under this subtitle shall 
be deemed to be a State or local agency. For purposes of paragraphs (1) and (2) of 
section 150(a) of such title, any entity receiving assistance under this subtitle shall be 
deemed to be a State or local agency. 

(b) (b) Prohibitions, C Programs assisted under this subtitle shall not be carried on in a 
manner involving the use of program funds, the provision of services, or the employment 
or assignment of personnel, in a manner supporting or resulting in the identification of 
such programs with— 

i. any partisan or nonpartisan political activity or any political activity associated 
with a candidate, or contending faction or group, in an election for public or party 
office;  
iii. any activity to provide voters or prospective voters with transportation to the 
polls or similar assistance in connection with any such election; or  
iii. any voter registration activity. 

 
 
 
HARASSMENT 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO is committed to maintaining a work environment that is free from unlawful harassment 
where employees at all levels of the Agency are able to devote their full attention and best 
efforts to the job.  Harassment, either intentional or unintentional, will not be allowed in the 
workplace.  CAPCO prohibits and will not tolerate any form of harassment based on race, color, 
religion, gender, age, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, military service, veteran’s 
status, marital status, arrest or conviction record, genetic information, domestic violence victim 
status, familial status, or any other characteristic protected by law.   

Board Packet June 2016 31



The purpose of this policy is not to regulate the personal morality of employees. It is to ensure 
that the workplace is free from unlawful harassment.   
 
CAPCO takes very seriously its commitment to providing a respectful work environment and will 
not tolerate disrespectful or bullying behavior toward anyone for any reason.  We look to all 
employees to create and maintain a respectful and professional work environment. 
 
 
Sexual harassment includes unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other 
verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: 
 

• Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of 
employment; or 

 
• Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for decisions affecting an 

individual’s employment; or 
 

• Such conduct has the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive 
work environment. 

 
No supervisor is to threaten or insinuate, either explicitly or implicitly, that an employee’s refusal 
or willingness to submit to sexual advances will affect the employee’s terms or conditions of 
employment.  Other sexually harassing or offensive conduct in the workplace, whether 
committed by a supervisor, non-supervisory employee, or non-employee is also prohibited.  This 
conduct includes: 
 

• Unwanted physical contact or conduct of any kind, including sexual flirtations, touching, 
advances or propositions; 

 
• Verbal harassment of a sexual nature, such as lewd comments, sexual jokes or 

references; 
 

• Demeaning, insulting, intimating, or sexually suggestive comments; 
 

• The display in the workplace of demeaning, insulting, intimidating, or sexually suggestive 
objects, pictures, photographs or electronically transmitted messages. 

 
Any of the above conduct, or other offensive conduct directed at an individual because of their 
race, color, religion, gender, age, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, military service, 
veteran’s status, marital status, arrest or conviction record, genetic information, domestic 
violence victim status, familial status, or any other characteristic protected by law is prohibited.  
 
All employees should understand that submission to, or acceptance of, any form of harassment 
is not a term or condition of employment.  No employee is required to submit to, or accept, any 
form of harassment in order to maintain their position, promotional opportunities, benefits, or to 
meet any other condition of employment. 
 
 
PROCEDURE  
 

Board Packet June 2016 32



Reporting Procedures 
 

1. Any individual, regardless of position, who has a complaint of, or who witnesses, 
harassment or at work by anyone has a responsibility to immediately report the matter to 
the one of the following members of the management who have been designated to 
receive such complaints: Greg Richards, Human Resources Director, at (607) 753-6781 
and 32 N. Main Street, Cortland, NY 13045 or Lindy Glennon, Executive Director, at 
(607) 753-6781 and 32 N. Main Street, Cortland, NY 13045. If an employee reports an 
incident, the designated management member is responsible for immediately 
investigating the alleged incident.  If an employee makes a report to any of these 
members of management and the manager either does not respond or does not respond 
in a manner the employee deems satisfactory or consistent with this policy, the 
employee is required to report the matter to one of the other members of management 
designated in this policy to receive complaints.  

 
2. CAPCO will make every reasonable effort to conduct all proceedings in a discreet 

manner that will protect the confidentiality of all parties to the extent feasible.  Parties to 
the complaint should treat the matter under investigation with discretion and respect for 
the reputation of all parties involved. Adverse action will not be taken against an 
employee because he or she, in good faith, reports or participates in the investigation of 
a complaint of a violation of this policy. 

 
3. Complainants will be asked to provide a written description of their complaint to the 

designated management member.  
 

4. Once a complaint has been accepted for review, an investigation will begin.  The 
investigation may include, but is not limited to, review of written statements from both 
parties, witness interviews, obtaining witness declarations, review of documentation, and 
on-site investigation.  Any person conducting an investigation will maintain a written 
record of all witness interviews, evidence gathered, the outcome of the investigation, and 
any other appropriate documents.  Records of such an investigation will not be 
maintained in personnel files unless they are part of a formal corrective action. 

 
5. Results of the investigation will be shared with the appropriate people.  When there is 

sufficient evidence to support the complaint, written notification of investigative findings 
will be sent to the complainant and the respondent. 

 
6. If it is concluded that discrimination, harassment, or retaliation has occurred, a 

determination will be made as to the appropriate sanctions or corrective action. 
Violations of this policy are not permitted and may result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge.  

 
 
 
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION[mm2] 

Effective Date June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 

Board Packet June 2016 33



CAPCO recruits and hires a diverse workforce and provides equal opportunities to all 
candidates to better reflect our job market, the people we serve, and to provide better service to 
our clients.   
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. When recruiting for open positions, it is the responsibility of the Program Director, 
Supervisor, and Human Resource Director to advertise and recruit in media and markets 
that offer equal opportunities.   

 
2. The Human Resource Director reviews hiring records to ensure a diverse workforce is 

being maintained.   
 

3. The Human Resource Director will be responsible for monitoring and maintaining the 
affirmative action records.   

 
4. All advertisements will state equal opportunity employer. 

 
5. Advertisements must be approved by the Human Resource Director. 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION AND LICENSE REQUIREMENTS 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO requires employees to obtain and maintain all job related licenses and certifications. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Prior to beginning work, employees whose position requires licenses and/or certifications 
must show the original for verification to the hiring manager and/or Human Resource 
Director.  A copy of the license and/or certification will be kept in the personnel file.   

 
2. Where licenses or certifications are required, renewal must be made according to federal 

and/or state law.  It is the employee’s responsibility to ensure the licenses and/or 
certifications are kept current and copies are submitted to the appropriate Supervisor 
and/or Human Resource Director.   

 
3. Failure to keep required licenses and/or certifications current may result in 

suspension/termination. 
 
4. If allowable by the funding source, CAPCO will pay toward the renewal of licenses 

and/or certifications deemed to be relevant and related to the employee’s position.   
 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 34



CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT/VULNERABLE ADULT ABUSE  
AND NEGLECT REPORTING POLICY 
[MANDATED REPORTER] 

Effective Date: June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO must respond to suspected or known child abuse and neglect or child sexual abuse 
whether it occurs inside or outside of the program.  CAPCO must respond to suspected or 
known vulnerable adult abuse and neglect whether it occurs within or outside of the Agency.  
Each person within the Agency must report suspected abuse and neglect in accordance with 
the provisions of applicable state or local law. 

 
 

PROCEDURES 
 

1. Individuals in the Agency will preserve the confidentiality of all records pertaining to 
known or suspected child or vulnerable adult abuse or neglect in accordance with 
applicable state law.  

 
2. No one within the Agency will undertake on their own to investigate or treat cases of 

suspected child or vulnerable adult abuse and neglect. 
 

3. Any person in the Agency suspecting child or vulnerable adult abuse or neglect will 
report it immediately to the Program Director. The Program Director and the reporting 
employee will work together to make the report. 
 

4. Each person in the Agency will cooperate fully with child protective service agencies, 
local law enforcement and county social services agencies. 

 
5. CAPCO will make every effort to retain in the program children allegedly abused or 

neglected.  
 

6. The Program Director is designated with responsibility for: 
 

a. The Program Director will work closely with the employee suspecting child or 
vulnerable adult abuse or neglect to ensure reporting to the authorities is handled 
correctly according to state law.  

b. Establishing and maintaining cooperative relationships with the agencies providing 
child protective services and adult social services in the community and with any 
other Agency to which abuse and neglect must be reported under state law, 
including regular formal and informal communication with staff at all levels of the 
agencies. 

c. Informing parents and staff of what state laws require in cases of suspected child 
and vulnerable adult abuse and neglect.   

d. Knowing what community medical and social services are available for families with 
an abuse or neglect problem. 

Board Packet June 2016 35



e. Reporting instances of suspected child abuse and neglect among Head Start/Early 
Head Start children reportable under federal (and/or applicable state) law on behalf 
of the Head Start/Early Head Start program.  

f. Discussing the report with the family if it appears desirable or necessary to do so. 
g. Informing other staff regarding the process for identifying and reporting suspected 

child and vulnerable adult abuse and neglect.  
 

7. Training: 
 

a. CAPCO provides orientation and training, which fosters a helpful rather than a 
punitive attitude toward abusing or neglecting parents and other caretakers, for staff 
on the identification and reporting of child abuse and neglect.  

b. CAPCO provides information for parents, which fosters a helpful rather than a 
punitive attitude toward abusing or neglecting parents and other caretakers, on the 
need to prevent abuse and neglect and provide protection for abused and neglected 
children 
.  

 
 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
Our Head Start / Early Head Start programs are legally required to report all situations of 
suspected child abuse and maltreatment to the Child Abuse Registry in Albany (Social 
Services Law, Section 413).  All staff are mandated reporters during work hours.  Although not 
mandated off hours, staff may make a hotline call as a concerned citizen.   
 
Head Start and Early Head Start play an important role in working with families to prevent child 
abuse and neglect.  Staff from both programs help to identify risk factors for abuse, enhance 
parenting skills, and offer the family emotional support and resources.  A Mental Health 
Consultant is available to provide support to families. 
 
It is the intent of the CAPCO Head Start / Early Head Start not to become an investigation 
agency.  
 
A hotline call may be made on both families and staff members if there is reasonable cause to 
suspect child abuse or maltreatment. 
 
In the event of suspected abuse or neglect, the following procedures will be implemented by all 
staff members. 
 
Operational Procedures: 
 
1. If a staff member recognizes indicators that there are signs of child abuse or maltreatment, 

either through child or adult disclosure, physical indicators, or tracking of behavioral 
indicators they are required to made a call to the Child Abuse Registry.  The staff person 
who has a concern is to report the suspicion of child abuse or maltreatment immediately.  
After the hotline call has been made, the staff person will contact the Family Engagement 
Coordinator or the Director to notify them of the situation.  If they are not available, the staff 
member should immediately contact any other available management member. 
Management’s role will be to listen and provide support and guidance.   

Board Packet June 2016 36



 
2. If a hotline call is going to be made, the mandated reporter will complete a DSS 2221A 

reporting form prior to making the call.  Reporting forms will be on site at each location.  
They are also in the forms box at the Main Office.   

 
3. The staff person who suspects abuse or neglect of a child is required to call to the Child 

Abuse Registry in Albany: 1-800-635-1522.    The operator’s name and the call ID # should 
be documented on the report form.  If the call is not accepted, it is important to ask why.  
Also, have operator read back notes to ensure accuracy. 
* Please check the “yes” box to request findings of the investigation.  Once you receive the 
letter from local CPS, forward to Family Engagement Coordinator. 

 
4. The completed form is immediately given to the Family Engagement Coordinator (or other 

management member supporting you through the process) to be mailed to local CPS within 
the required 24 hours.  This completed form should be given to the Family Engagement 
Coordinator even if the call was not accepted.  One copy of the report is filed in the CPS 
tracking binder, located in the Family Engagement Coordinator’s locked file cabinet. 

 
5. The staff person, in cooperation with the Family Engagement Coordinator or Director, will 

discuss and decide, case by case: 
  A.  WHAT steps will be taken to ensure that the child is safe. 

B.  WHAT type of contact is appropriate and safe, and 
  C.  WHEN contact should be made. 
 
6.   Confidentiality must be maintained at all times.  Staff will not tell the family who made the            

Hotline call, only that someone from the agency did.  The family will be notified that the                
Hotline call was made only after CPS has had contact with the family.  Frequent reminders             
to families that staff are mandated reporters should be conducted throughout the program                
year.  Discretion must be used as to who on staff will receive any or all information                        
pertaining to the report. 

 
7.   The staff person who makes the report will contact the local CPS Supervisor (753-5156) to           

confirm the information and provide their contact number in case any further information is           
needed.  This call to local CPS should be made immediately after the hotline call is made.              
Be sure to let CPS know of any pertinent demographic information such as: # of children               
the home, animals present, other adults in the home, and possible weapons. 

 
8. Head Start / Early Head Start staff are expected to cooperate fully with the Department of 

Social Services staff through the entire investigation.  Local CPS will attempt to obtain a 
release from the family.  With or without the release, by law, we are required to share all 
relevant information. 

 
9. To protect the confidentiality of the source of the Hotline report, Contact notes should not               

indicate that a Hotline call was made.  Contact notes should reflect the follow-up to the                              
Hotline call. 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 37



GRIEVANCE POLICY/PROBLEM RESOLUTION 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides means for all persons involved in the Agency to bring problems and concerns 
regarding their employment to management.  CAPCO supports and encourages all employees 
to use appropriate conflict resolution practices to address their concerns and issues at the most 
immediate level.   
 
Employees will be given an opportunity to present their concerns and to appeal decisions by 
management through a formal problem resolution/grievance procedure.  All concerns or 
incidents will be documented and placed in a file separate from the employee’s personnel file.  
Documentation will be required at all four levels of grievance. This policy in no way alters the 
policy of employment-at-will. 
 
 
PROCEDURE  
 

1. Immediate Supervisor:  Concerns should be presented to an immediate Supervisor in 
writing using the standardized grievance form.  The individual and Supervisor should 
attempt to address the problem through discussion or after consulting with appropriate 
management, when necessary.  The Supervisor will document the discussion.  If the 
problem involves an employee’s immediate Supervisor or if the immediate Supervisor 
cannot resolve the issue, the employee should proceed to the Program Director. If an 
employee’s immediate Supervisor is the Program Director, the employee will proceed to 
the Human Resource Director.   
 

a. Functional Area Coordinator [HEAD START SPECIFIC]:  
i. This section of the grievance process applies to the Head Start/Early 

Start Program only. If an employee does not work for the Head Start/Early 
Head Start Program, she/he should proceed directly to step 2. 

ii. If the problem involves an employee’s immediate Supervisor or if the 
immediate Supervisor cannot resolve the issue, the employee should 
proceed to the Functional Area Coordinator. The Functional Area 
Coordinator will document the conversation. If an employee’s immediate 
Supervisor is the Functional Area Coordinator, the employee will proceed 
to the Program Director.   

 
 

2. Program Director:  If there is no resolution with an employee’s immediate Supervisor, 
the employee may then present concerns to the Program Director in writing using a 
standardized grievance form. The Program Director will discuss the complaint with the 
employee and the appropriate Supervisor, when necessary. The Program Director will 
document the discussion. After a documented investigation, the Program Director will 
notify the employee of a decision in writing and provide such documentation to the 
Human Resource Director. If the problem is not resolved, the employee should proceed 
to the Human Resource Director.  

 

Board Packet June 2016 38



3. Human Resource Director:  When previous efforts fail to bring a satisfactory resolution, 
the individual may petition the Human Resource Director.  The Human Resource 
Director counsels and advises the employee, assists in putting the problem in writing, 
and visits with the employee’s Supervisor(s), if necessary.  If the problem is not 
resolved, the employee should proceed to the Executive Director.   

 
4. Executive Director:  The problem must be presented to the Executive Director in 

writing.  The Executive Director will review and consider the problem.  The Executive 
Director will inform the individual of the decision and forward a copy of the written 
response to the Human Resource Director for filing.  The Executive Director has full 
authority to make any adjustment deemed appropriate to resolve the problem. 
 
If the problem involves the Executive Director, the employee should proceed to the 
Human Resource Director who will attempt to mediate the problem.  If the problem is 
unresolved, the Human Resources Director will contact the Board of Directors’ President 
and Executive Committee.    
 

5. Board of Directors Executive Committee:  The problem may be presented to the 
Board of Directors Executive Committee in writing and within 5 business days of the 
Executive Director’s decision.  The Executive Committee will consider and review the 
problem and may ask the employee to meet with the Committee.  The Executive 
Committee will make its decision within 5 business days of hearing the problem and 
inform the individual of the decision in writing with a copy of the response to the Human 
Resources Director for filing.  The Executive Committee has full authority to make any 
adjustment deemed appropriate to resolve the problem.  The Executive Committee’s 
decision is final. 

 
 
 
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
[mm3]The Agency complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) and the New 
York Human Rights Law and ensures equal employment opportunity for qualified persons with 
disabilities.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employment opportunities will be afforded to persons with disabilities who are qualified 
to perform the essential functions of the job with or without reasonable accommodation.  
CAPCO will make reasonable accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities 
that do not result in undue hardship on CAPCO.     

 
2. The Human Resource Director will be responsible for implementation of guidelines and 

operational procedures related to ensuring Agency compliance with the ADA and 
applicable state law. 

 

Board Packet June 2016 39



3. Qualified employees with a disability may be entitled to leave under the Family Medical 
Leave Act (FMLA) or an extension of their medical leave as a reasonable 
accommodation under the ADA.  Questions regarding leave rights should be directed to 
the Human Resource Director.   

 
4. CAPCO will comply with federal law and state law and regulation that provide persons 

with disabilities greater protection than the ADA. 
 

5. Employees with a qualifying disability that requires an accommodation should contact 
their immediate Supervisor and the Human Resource Director. 

 
 
 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORIES AND DEFINITIONS 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO classifies employees and defines categories and responsibilities of employment 
according to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and the New York State Labor Law.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Job descriptions will indicate whether the position is exempt or nonexempt.  
2. Classification will be determined based on the FLSA and New York Labor Law.  

 
The following are the descriptions of each category. 
 
EMPLOYEE CATEGORIES: 
 
Regular Full-Time Employee 
A regular full-time employee is an employee regularly scheduled to work at least 37.5 hours per 
week, may be exempt or nonexempt, and is not in a temporary status or introductory period.  
Regular full-time employees are eligible for all standard benefits, subject to the terms, 
conditions, and limitations of each benefit program. 
 
Regular Part-Time Employee 
A regular part-time employee is an employee with regularly scheduled hours that are less than 
37.5 hours per week, may be exempt or nonexempt, and is not in a temporary status or 
introductory period.  Regular part-time employees are not eligible for CAPCO benefits that 
include minimum hours for eligibility (except those legally required). Refer to Section 3 of this 
Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual for benefit eligibility guidelines.  
 
Program Year Employee [HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
At the conclusion of a successful Introductory Period, the employee will be placed on a regular 
Program Year status. All such employees will receive paid approved recesses of the Head Start 
calendar. The number of weeks of employment will be determined in accordance with the 

Board Packet June 2016 40



approved Head Start calendar. Sick leave and personal leave benefits for employees who work 
part-time with regularly scheduled hours of 20 hours per week or more will be pro-rated based 
upon the number of actual hours and weeks worked. Program Year Employees with a full-time 
work week of 37.5 hours shall receive the Agency’s health and life insurance throughout the 
entire year according to the Agency’s benefit requirements. 
 
Introductory (Probationary) Employee 
All exempt and nonexempt employees are on an introductory period for the first 90 days of 
employment.  Before the end of the introductory period, a written evaluation will be made by the 
employee’s immediate Supervisor, based on satisfactory CAPCO standards, for the purpose of 
determining the employee’s continued employment with the Agency.  However, the completion 
of the introductory period does not guarantee employment for any period of time thereafter. 
Employees who satisfactorily complete the introductory period will be notified of their new 
employment category.   
 
Head Start/Early Head Start Employee [HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
Employees working primarily* within the Head Start/Early Head Start program or more of the 
time are classified as Head Start/Early Head Start employees.  These employees may work less 
than 12 months and are subject to additional Head Start/Early Head Start regulations and 
requirements. 
*Per OHS Policy Clarification, “…the dollar amount constitutes more than half of the particular individual’s 
compensation.” 
 
Temporary Employee 
A temporary employee is hired as an interim replacement to supplement the work force or to 
assist in a specific project.   
  
Employment assignments in this category are of a limited duration.  Temporary employees 
retain that status until notified of a status change.  Temporary workers receive all legally 
required benefits (e.g., Workers’ Compensation (WC) and Social Security), but are not eligible 
for any of CAPCO’s benefit programs. 
 
NON-EMPLOYEE CATEGORIES: 
 
Volunteer 
The term "volunteer" means an unpaid person who is trained to assist in implementing ongoing 
program activities on a regular basis under the supervision of a staff person in areas such as 
health, family development, education, transportation, nutrition, and management. 
 
Independent Consultant 
A person who receives compensation for professional or technical services at a fee agreed 
upon and paid by the Agency, who is engaged as an independent contractor (or third-party 
contractor) for specified services and is not a CAPCO employee.  Consultants will be informed 
that their compensation will be reported to the IRS and IRS Form 1099 will be issued for all 
contracts of six hundred dollars ($600) or more. 
 
Board of Directors 
The governing body with legal and fiscal responsibility for administering the programs within the 
Agency.  
 
Policy Council [HEAD START SPECIFIC] 

Board Packet June 2016 41



The formal group of parents and community representatives required to be established by the 
Agency to assist in decisions about the planning and operation of the Head Start/Early Head 
Start program.  
 
EMPLOYMENT DEFINITIONS: 
 
Employees are classified as exempt or nonexempt from the overtime provisions of the FLSA (29 
CFR Part 541) and state wage and hour laws. 
 
Exempt Employee 
Employees in exempt positions are: 
 

• Paid on a salaried basis. 
• Paid to do the job and must meet the federal and state DOL requirements for exemption. 
• Excluded from specific provisions of federal and state wage and hour laws.  
• Not eligible for overtime pay. 

 
Nonexempt Employee 
Employees in nonexempt positions are: 
 

• Paid on an hourly or salary basis.  
• Entitled to overtime pay for hours worked in excess of 40 in a work week. 

 
Nothing contained in this policy will impact the policy of employment-at-will.   
 
 
 
OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO’s policy regarding outside employment is to ensure other outside employment does not 
interfere with an employee’s performance or ability to meet the job requirements at the Agency.  
Employees may hold outside employment as long as the outside employment is not with a 
competitor, supplier or one that may involve the use of or access to confidential or proprietary 
information of the Agency.  Employees are required to discuss potential employment with the 
Agency prior to beginning such employment in order to ensure a conflict of interest does not 
exist and that the employee will be able to fulfill the responsibilities of her/his position with the 
Agency.  
 
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees who are employed outside the Agency, or are considering employment 
outside the Agency, are required to review the employment for any conflict of interest 
with their Program Director.   

 

Board Packet June 2016 42



2. When an employee provides consultation or training to organizations on her/his own 
time, and the service is rendered entirely outside of the employee’s working hours, the 
service is considered outside employment.  In this situation, the use of CAPCO’s office 
equipment and supplies and the utilization of CAPCO’s personnel in the preparation of 
such services are prohibited.   

 
3. Employees are prohibited from utilizing other CAPCO employees for services not related 

to Agency business during an employee’s regularly scheduled work hours. 
 

4. If it is determined that an employee’s outside work interferes with job performance, the 
ability to meet the requirements of their position, or has an adverse impact on CAPCO 
due to conflict of interest, the employee may be required to terminate the outside 
employment if he or she wishes to remain with CAPCO. 

 
5. Employees are not allowed to work for another employer while on a designated leave of 

absence or while absent from the Agency because of illness. 
 
 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO conducts business ethically and avoids conflicts of interest including the appearance of 
such conflicts.  All persons involved in the Agency operations have an equal obligation to avoid 
conflicts of interest, as set out in this policy.  
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees are expected to report conflicts of interest to their immediate Supervisor or 
Program Director immediately upon discovery or suspicion of the conflict.  Examples of 
conflicts of interest are listed below (but are not limited only to these items): 

 
a. An employee has outside employment that competes with the activities or services 

offered by the Agency. 
b. An employee has an outside business interest that competes with the activities of the 

Agency. 
c. An employee has an outside business that is a purchaser or supplier of goods or 

services to the Agency. 
d. An employee has an outside business involvement or employment that interferes 

with the ability to devote necessary attention to the responsibilities at the Agency 
(moonlighting). 

e. An employee has a relative or a person with a significant relationship employed by, 
or has a business interest in companies that compete with, sell to, or buy from the 
Agency. 

f. An employee receives purchase inducements (gifts, premiums, money, goods, or 
services) from vendors that benefit the employee personally (directly or indirectly) or 
are unauthorized or questionable in nature. 

Board Packet June 2016 43



 
2. Personal gifts and favors from people with whom the Agency has a business relationship 

are prohibited.  Minor gifts of more than nominal value $25.00 should be tactfully 
declined or returned to avoid any appearance or suggestion of improper influence.  

 
3. Members of the Board of Directors, Governing Board, or Administering Board of any 

public, private, or nonprofit Agency funded by CAPCO, or members of any major policy 
advisory bodies, are not eligible for employment with the Agency.  Former members of 
these Boards and advisory bodies are eligible for employment following their resignation. 
 

4. No paid staff member of CAPCO may serve on any board of any CAPCO program in 
Cortland County. 

 
5. When the Board votes and a Board of Director member has a vested interest in the vote 

(e.g., it is their Agency, they have family members involved, etc.) that Board member is 
to leave the room during the entire discussion where conflict may arise and refrain from 
voting by stepping outside the room while a vote occurs.  

 
6. CAPCO expects employees to conduct business in accordance with relevant policies, 

procedures, and laws and to refrain from any illegal, dishonest, or unethical conduct. 
 

7. Disregarding or failing to comply with this standard of business ethics and conduct could 
lead to disciplinary action, up to and including possible termination of employment. 

 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES/NEPOTISM  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO prohibits employment of relatives in a direct reporting relationship to avoid creating or 
perpetuating circumstances in which the possibility of favoritism, conflict of interest, or 
impairment of efficient operations may occur. 
 
Employees are prohibited from using their positions for a purpose that is, or gives the 
appearance of, being motivated by a desire for private gain for themselves or others, particularly 
those with whom they have family, business, or other relationships. 
 
No person shall hold a job while she/he or a member of her/his immediate family serves on a 
board or committee of a grantee or delegate agency if that board or committee has authority to 
hold personnel action affecting her/his job. 
 
Further, a person with an immediate family member serving on a board or committee, which 
either by rule or practice, regularly nominates, recommends, or screens candidates for positions 
with CAPCO may not be employed.  
 

Board Packet June 2016 44



For purposes of this policy, relatives are defined as "immediate family" meaning wife, husband, 
son, daughter, mother, father, brother, sister, step-relative, or a relative by marriage of 
comparable degree, significant other, and fiancé.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Relatives of current employees may not occupy a position that will be working directly for 
or supervising a relative.  Individuals involved in a dating relationship with a current 
employee may also not occupy a position that will be working directly for or supervising 
the employee with whom they are involved in a dating relationship. 

 
2. Administrators and managers will exercise caution in hiring decisions to ensure that a 

new employee is not placed in a direct reporting relationship with a relative as defined by 
this policy.   

 
3. If, due to promotion, a direct reporting relationship is created between relatives, the 

Human Resource Director will work with the employees to resolve the situation.  
Resolution may include transfer of one family member or a change in reporting 
relationships.  The Human Resource Director will be contacted to discuss resolution 
options.   

 
4. If the relative relationship is established after employment, the Human Resource Director 

will work with employees to resolve the situation.  Resolution may include transfer of one 
family member or a change in reporting relationships.  The employee, immediate 
Supervisor, and/or Program Director will contact the Human Resource Director to report 
the relationship and discuss resolution options. 

 
5. No employees will be transferred into a position that would result in a reporting 

relationship to a relative.   
 

6. When the Agency cannot adequately staff positions without hiring an immediate family 
member, the Agency may deviate from this policy.  This must be approved by the 
Agency’s Executive Director and Board of Directors. 

 
7. In other cases where a conflict or the potential for conflict arises because of the 

relationship between employees, even if there is no line of authority or reporting 
involved, the employees may be separated by reassignment or terminated from 
employment.   

 
8. Employees in a relationship will refrain from public workplace displays of affection or 

excessive personal conversation as the nature of these displays may be offensive to 
other employees. 

 
 
 
EMPLOYMENT OF FORMER EMPLOYEES  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE 

Board Packet June 2016 45



 
CAPCO allows former employees to be rehired provided they are eligible for rehire and there 
are no prior performance problems or policy violations.  Employees rehired within 30 days of 
their termination date will be reinstated with their original date of hire. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The original date of hire will be used for employees rehired within 30 days for sick, 
annual, and personal leave calculation purposes. However, the 90 day introductory 
period resets and begins with the date of rehire. Per policy provisions, sick, annual, or 
personal leave cannot be used within the 90 day introductory period. Retirement and 
insurance benefits will be reinstated in accordance with the provisions of the individual 
plans. 

 
2. Former employees will not be given preference as job applicants for rehiring. 

 
3. If rehired beyond 30 days of their termination date, the Agency will require rehires to 

complete all pre-employment paperwork and practices as if they are a new employee. 
 
 
 
SUBSTITUTES AND SPECIAL AGREEMENT EMPLOYEES  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO supplements the regular work force with substitutes when necessitated by periods of 
peak workload, employee absences, or other situations as determined by management.  In 
addition, employment opportunities are offered for persons under the sponsorship of various 
employment programs or those persons interested in utilizing the Agency to complete 
professional and technical internships. 
 
 
PROCEDURE  
 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC] Substitutes 
 
A substitute employee is an individual who is hired either full-time or part-time for a limited 
period (30 days) under the following conditions: 
 

1. Substitute Teachers and Teacher Assistants can be requested by the regular Teacher or 
Teacher Assistant.  A request for a substitute will be made to the Classroom Supervisor. 

 
2. When requesting the services of a substitute, the following information must be provided:   

 
a. Reason substitute is required.  
b. Person the substitute is replacing.  
c. Functions to be performed. 

 

Board Packet June 2016 46



Consultants/Services Providers 
A consultant is a person or company that provides CAPCO with a particular service(s) required 
to meet the objectives of the program.  CAPCO pays the consultant for the services provided 
and the independent consultant will: 
 

1. Provide professional documents and certification giving evidence of the ability to conduct 
the services outlined in the contract.   

 
2. Carry the appropriate liability insurance and provide evidence of the insurance.  

Independent consultants and the Agency will agree upon a scope of work to be 
performed.  Consultants will be oriented to the Agency’s expectations of conduct.   

 
3. It is the responsibility of Executive Director to assure that all required reports are 

completed and submitted in a timely manner. 
 

4. All contracts for consultants will be forwarded to the Executive Director for review.  Final 
approval on all contracts and work agreements must be approved by the Executive 
Director. 

 
Student Teachers/Internships 
Program agreements with educational institutions providing for internships will be subject to the 
prior approval of the Program Director. 
 
Volunteers 
Volunteer workers, when performing work for CAPCO, are required to: 
 

1. File personal information for identification purposes (name, address, and telephone 
number). 

 
2. Observe established volunteer hours  

 
3. Complete time and attendance records. 

 
4. Be accountable to the volunteer coordinator for the specific program. 

 
All special agreement independent consultants or service providers, interns, student teachers, 
and volunteers, where applicable, are required to follow CAPCO’s Policies and Procedures 
when working with the Agency’s staff or clients.   
 
 
 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
To maintain consistent procedures for recruiting and selecting applicants, CAPCO recruits and 
selects the most qualified applicants for available positions in compliance with all applicable 

Board Packet June 2016 47



federal and state laws and regulations and with the Agency’s commitment to Equal Employment 
Opportunity.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. If a position experiences turnover, prior to the recruitment effort, an analysis is 
conducted to determine if the department and related roles and responsibilities can be 
realigned and assigned to others.  If it is determined a position is needed, the position is 
defined or redefined to ensure the requirements of the department are met. 
 

2. The Program Director and the Human Resource Director work closely together to update 
the position description to capture any changes to the nature of the position or reporting 
structure.  The Human Resource Director assigns and/or validates the exemption status 
given to the position.  The Human Resource Director and Program Director conduct an 
external market and internal budget analysis on the position and determines pay range. 

 
3. The hiring manager, Program Director, and Human Resource Director create the 

selection criteria that will be used to screen application materials and narrow the pool of 
candidates.  
 

4. The hiring manager and Human Resource Director create position appropriate interview 
questions relevant to the position and that reflect a combination of open and close ended 
questions.  
 

5. The Program Director researches and determines the external sourcing strategy and 
associated costs and seeks approval for strategy and cost from the Executive Director.  
The Program Director and/or the Human Resource Director posts internal staff 
opportunity (please refer to Job Posting policy). 
 

6. The hiring manager and/or Human Resource Director receive and screen all resumes 
and application materials received using the selection criteria as the basis of the review 
to narrow the field of candidates. 
 

7. The hiring manager, Program Director, or Human Resource Director may conduct a 
telephone screen to further qualify candidate and determines mutual interest in the 
opportunity. 
 

8. The hiring manager shares potential finalist with the appropriate director/manager and 
identifies which candidates will participate in a face-to-face interview process. 
 

9. The hiring manager coordinates the interview schedule and facilitates the interview 
process.  
 

10. The Human Resource Director works closely with the hiring manager and Program 
Director to evaluate and identify the desired candidate. 
 

11. All candidates are required to complete an application form regardless of the level of the 
position hired.  The appropriate management team conducts pre-employment checks on 
the final candidates for the position.  These may include, but are not limited to, criminal 
record check, references, and education verification. 

Board Packet June 2016 48



 
12. The hiring manager extends the offer to the candidate via a written offer letter and sends 

rejection letters to all other candidates.  The Human Resource Director maintains 
records of the selection process, such as applications, evaluation criteria, notes from 
interviews, and reference checks, in the administration office for one year.  
 

13. Appointment to a senior management position requires the prior approval of the 
Executive Director.  The Executive Director (or similar management position) is 
appointed by the Board of Directors. 

 
 
 
Anniversary Date: 
The first day you report to work will be recorded in CAPCO records as your anniversary date. 
This date may be used to calculate many different CAPCO benefits. If you have any questions 
regarding your anniversary date, please see your immediate Supervisor and/or the Human 
Resource Director. 
 
 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
PROCEDURE FOR HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START EMPLOYEES 
 

1. In addition to the procedures above, when hiring employees working primarily* for the 
Head Start/Early Head Start program, procedures below must be followed:   
*Per OHS Policy Clarification, “…the dollar amount constitutes more than half of the particular individual’s 
compensation.” 

 
a. The Head Start/Early Head Start Policy Council must be consulted in the decision-

making process.  The Policy Council can be called upon to give advice or 
information. 

b. The Policy Council must approve decisions before the individual is hired and begins 
working. 

c. The appointments of all Head Start/Early Head Start staff are subject to the 
recommendation of the Head Start Director and the Agency’s Head Start/Early Head 
Start Policy Council.   

d. Current and former Head Start/Early Head Start and Head Start/Early Head Start 
parents must receive preference for employment vacancies for which they are 
qualified. 

e. The appointment of the Head Start/Early Head Start Program Director is subject to 
prior approval from the Executive Director, Board of Directors, and the Policy Council 
and funding source. 

f. Criminal background checks must be completed prior to an individual starting her/his 
employment. 

 
 
 
INTERNAL JOB POSTING 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 49



PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO’s job posting procedures provide employees with information regarding job 
opportunities within the Agency.  Although CAPCO may from time to time post position 
vacancies internally, CAPCO reserves the right to recruit and hire external candidates in all 
cases in its sole and absolute discretion.  
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Job openings are posted through the CAPCO email server and on the Main Office 
bulletin board and normally remain for seven (7) days.  Each job posting notice can 
include, but is not limited to, the date of the posting, job title, component/program, 
location, job summary, essential duties, skills and abilities necessary to perform the job, 
and degrees or certification required for the job. 

 
2. To be eligible to apply for a posted job, an employee must have been in their current 

position for at least 90 days.  Employees who have a written record on file of job 
performance counseling received in the last 90 days, or are in their introductory period, 
on probation or suspension, are not eligible to apply for posted jobs.   

 
3. Employees interested in applying for an opening should submit a résumé with a cover 

letter to the hiring manager and/or Program Director.  Employees must possess the 
necessary knowledge, skills, and abilities (KSAs) to perform the work of the open 
position to be considered for an interview.  Past work history and performance, including 
attendance will be considered in making the final determination.   

 
4. The hiring manager determines the pool of candidates to be interviewed and conducts 

interviews with counsel from the Program Director and Human Resource Director.  The 
hiring manager extends offers of employment and informs candidates who were not 
selected. 

 
[mm4] 
 
 
PRE-EMPLOYMENT INVESTIGATION/BACKGROUND CHECK  
 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
To ensure pre-employment checks are conducted within legal and professional limits to be 
employed in the position for which the candidate is applying, CAPCO conducts pre-employment 
investigations for applicable employees to determine or verify background information, including 
criminal history and information in compliance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA).  
Having a criminal history or criminal conviction does not necessarily preclude employment.  
 
To be in compliance with program requirements, CAPCO initiates pre-employment background 
investigations, including criminal history.  
 

Board Packet June 2016 50



Consumers of the CDPA Program have the option of waiving, in writing, their right to a 
candidate background check if the candidate is a family member, personal friend, family friend, 
and/or well-known associate to the consumer. If the candidate is not indicated as known to the 
consumer in writing, a background check must be initiated. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Selected candidates are required to sign a background check consent form authorizing 
the pre-employment investigation. The candidate may also be required to sign a release 
of information by former employers, educational institutions, or other agencies as part of 
the reference and background checking process.  A refusal to sign such a release form 
may disqualify the selected candidate from further consideration for employment.   

 
2. Employment is contingent upon the results of the pre-employment investigation.  

 
a. The Program Director or designee coordinates obtaining the pre-employment 

investigation.  The Program Director and the Human Resource Director evaluate the 
relevance of any offense in accordance with federal and state laws.   

b. An applicant who provides misleading, erroneous, or deceptive information on the 
application form, résumé, or in an interview will be eliminated from further 
consideration for employment.  

 
3. Personal and professional reference checks may be conducted by the hiring manager 

and/or Program Director before the job offer is made.  Employment is contingent upon 
the results of the personal and professional reference checks. 

 
4. Employees whose position requires licensure or certification provide a copy of their 

licensure or certification prior to beginning work.  Where licensure or certification is 
required, renewal must be made according to state law and a copy of the current 
licensure or certification is submitted to the Human Resource Director.  Failure to keep 
required licenses or certifications current may result in termination. 
 

5. Program-specific screenings, such as physicals and TB Tests, must be completed 
before a selected candidate can begin employment. Reimbursement for the cost of 
these screenings are dependent on the restrictions of the Program funding source. 
Hepatitis B vaccinations will be offered to all newly hired employees at the expense of 
CAPCO. 

 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
HEAD START/EARLY HEAD START 
 
In addition to the employment checks detailed above, the following must be performed for Head 
Start/Early Head Start candidates. 
 

1. All employees hired to positions within the Head Start/Early Head Start program are 
required, in accord with the Department of Health and Human Services guidelines, to 
declare all convictions related to child abuse and neglect and all convictions of violent 
felonies.   

 

Board Packet June 2016 51



2. Newly hired candidates must obtain three letters of reference, one of which must be a 
personal reference, before she/he can begin work. 

 
3. After employment has been offered, a health exam including TB screening is required for 

Head Start/Early Head Start staff and regular volunteers.  Periodic reexaminations may 
also be required.   

 
4. A state or national criminal record check, as required by state law or administrative 

requirement, must be conducted prior to hiring an employee.  
 

5. CAPCO  requires that all current and prospective employees sign a declaration prior to 
employment that lists:  

 
a. All pending and prior criminal arrests and charges related to child sexual abuse and 

their disposition. 
b. Convictions related to other forms of child abuse and neglect.  
c. All convictions of violent felonies. 

 
6. The Program Director must review each application for employment individually in order 

to assess the relevancy of an arrest, a pending criminal charge, or a conviction.  
 
 
 
EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO’s new employees must understand mission, vision, values, goals, and objectives.  This 
includes the scope of services and locations and an employee’s contribution to the 
accomplishment of those goals and objectives.  All newly hired employees and volunteers are 
required to participate in the Employee Orientation Program within 60 days of employment.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Program Director and Program-Specific Leadership team responsibilities: 
 

a. Review and initiate new hire paperwork in accordance to applicable state and federal 
law and the Agency’s policies and procedures. Initiate background investigations for 
newly hired employees 

b. Offer Agency new employee orientation as developed and approved by the Human 
Resource Director. 

c. Provide each new employee with orientation specific to her/his workplace. 
d. Provide on-the-job training (OJT) needed for new employees to assume their 

responsibilities. 
e. Provide new employees with the dates and locations of the orientation program. 

 
2. Human Resource Director Responsibilities: 

 

Board Packet June 2016 52



a. Provide new employees with timely and relevant benefit information. 
b. Provide information and resources concerning Agency-wide policies. 
c. Provide program/components with strategies, resources, and tools for development 

of its workplace orientation process.  
 

3. New Employees’ and Volunteers’ Responsibilities: 
 

a. Participate in appropriate orientation processes. 
b. Seek information to enhance her/his orientation process. 
c. Complete and return appropriate personnel forms. 

 
4. All staff members, volunteers, and consultants are to be provided with information and 

training about the underlying philosophy and goals of the Agency and the program in 
which they work.   

 
 
 
IMMIGRATION POLICY  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO complies with the regulations of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 
(IRCA) as enforced by the Department of Homeland Security.  This Act requires that all 
employees provide appropriate documentation to prove that they are eligible to work in the 
United States.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. CAPCO requires, as a condition of employment, that all new hires must complete the 
employment eligibility verification INS Form I-9.  

 
2. In addition to completing the I-9, all new hires must present the required documentation 

establishing identity and employment eligibility within the first three days of employment.  
Failure to do so may result in the offer of employment being withdrawn or withheld. 

 
3. All former employees who are rehired are also required to complete a new I-9 if:  

  
• They did not complete an I-9 for CAPCO within the previous three (3) years.  
   Or 
• Their previous I-9 is no longer valid.  
   Or 
• Their previous I-9 was not retained. 

 
4. I-9s will be maintained in a file separate from that of the employee’s personnel file. 

 
 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 53



INTRODUCTORY PERIOD/PROBATION  
Effective Date: June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
All of CAPCO’s new and rehired regular employees and all current regular employees who have 
transferred or been promoted to a new position are placed on introductory status.   
 
The introductory period gives employees the opportunity to decide whether the position suits 
them and gives the Agency the opportunity to decide whether the employee meets the 
expectations of the position. 
 
Successful completion of the introductory period does not create a contract of employment or 
alter the at-will nature of the employment relationship. .   
 
This policy does not apply to temporary employees or to those employees who are provided 
employment opportunities through special employment and training program agreements. 
 
This policy will not change the employment-at-will status of an employee.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The introductory period is defined as 90 days.   
 

2. Upon completion of this introductory period, an employee’s immediate Supervisor 
conducts a formal performance appraisal with the employee to review the employee’s 
progress/performance to date.  Introductory periods may be extended, if deemed 
appropriate, by the immediate Supervisor and Program Director. 

 
3. Transferred or promoted employees who do not meet job requirements in their new 

position during introductory period may be returned to their original job, if a vacancy 
exists, or be terminated at the discretion of the Agency. 

 
4. Upon completion of the introductory period, an employee will be classified under the 

“regular” employment classification and may be eligible for certain Agency-sponsored 
benefits.   

 
 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES RECORDS  

Effective Date: June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO endeavors to ensure the proper handling of confidential information and paper records 
pertaining to employees and their personnel matters. 
 
PROCEDURE 

Board Packet June 2016 54



 
1. Records are secured in locked file cabinets and secured electronic files and access will 

be controlled by the Human Resource Director.  Documents containing medical 
information regarding an employee will be kept in secure files separate from the 
employee’s personnel file.  

 
2. At no time will employee files leave the premises. 
 
3. The Human Resource Director is responsible for creating and maintaining employee 

personnel files.  Main employee files should have a separate file for each employee and 
include, but not limited to, information such as the following: 

 
a. Employment application  
b. Job title  
c. Job description  
d. Employee classification (exempt from overtime or nonexempt)  
e. Hire date  
f. Salary history  
g. W-4 form  
h. IT-2104 form 
i. Employment contracts, if applicable  
j. Employee authorization for release of information  
k. Employee signature acknowledging receipt and review of policies and procedures 

and/or receipt of this Manual  
l. Employee résumé  
m. Performance appraisal  
n. Disciplinary documents  
o. Grievances  
p. Performance goals  
q. Scheduled training and completed training records 
 

4. Employees are responsible for notifying the Human Resource Director immediately if 
there is a change in any of the following information: 

 
a. Legal name 
b. Home mailing address 
c. Telephone number 
d. Marital status 
e. Number and names of dependents 
f. Number of tax exemptions on your W-4 and/or IT-2104 forms 
g. Insurance classification 
h. Emergency contacts 
i. Beneficiary changes 
j. Driving record or status of driver's license, if you operate any Agency vehicles or 

drive as part of your employment 
k. Military or draft status 
l. Training certificates 
m. Professional license 

 

Board Packet June 2016 55



Failure to inform of personal data changes may have a significant impact on benefits and 
the ability to contact the employee or a family member in the event of an emergency. 

 
5. Access to personnel files is limited to persons within the Agency  on a “need to know” 

basis.  Anyone needing access to an employee’s file should contact the Human 
Resource Director.   

 
6. Employee files must be reviewed in the CAPCO Human Resource Office. 

 
[mm5] 

7. External requests for references or other information directed to the Agency regarding 
current or former employees must be referred to the Human Resources Director.  Only 
basic employment information (i.e., dates of employment, title of position held) for 
employment verifications and those requests meeting legal requirements are provided 
by the Human Resource Director or her/his designee.   

 
8. The Agency will not release detailed personnel information to anyone outside the 

Agency without prior written consent by the employee, unless required by law.   
 

9. Employees have the right to review their file contents.  Employees may review their own 
personnel files at the CAPCO Main Office located at 32 N. Main Street, Cortland, NY 
and in the presence of an individual appointed by the Agency.  Employees who wish to 
review their own file should make a written request to the Human Resource Director.  
CAPCO will fulfill within seven (7) business days of the written request. 

 
 Exceptions to this include: 
 

a. Letters of reference. 
b. Materials relating to employer staff planning and business development. 
c. Information of a personal nature about another person, the disclosure of which could 

constitute an unwarranted invasion of privacy. 
d. Investigatory or security records maintained by the employer to investigate employee 

misconduct or other conduct which could be harmful to the Agency. 
 
 
 
ATTENDANCE  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
Attendance and punctuality are important factors for your success within CAPCO. We work as a 
team and this requires that each person be in the right place at the right time. 
 
CAPCO understands occasions arise when an employee must be absent from work.  At the 
same time, it is important for employees to understand that in order for CAPCO to operate 
efficiently and effectively, regular attendance by all employees is imperative.  Employees need 
to be present and accountable during their scheduled work time, and there are attendance 
expectations.   

Board Packet June 2016 56



 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Authorized Absence—The employee notifies their immediate Supervisor in advance and 
obtains approval to be away from, or late, to work.  This includes absences such as 
vacations, personal days, approved leaves of absence, etc. 

 
2. Unauthorized Absence—An employee not showing up for work, not calling in, and not 

having a valid reason for an absence, as determined by the administration.  Advance 
notification of an absence is necessary to make arrangements to handle work in the 
absence of a scheduled employee.   

 
3. Tardiness—An employee late for work, or leaving early from work on any work day 

without giving prior notification and receiving approval for the tardiness.   
 

4. Employees should make reasonable efforts to schedule appointments or other personal 
matters during nonworking hours if possible. 

 
5. A nonexempt salaried employee who does not work or does not work her/his full shift is 

paid only for the actual time worked.  If an employee has not called in to their Supervisor 
before the start of scheduled work time with a valid reason for absence, the employee is 
considered as having an unauthorized absence without pay.  Time sheets are noted 
accordingly.   
 

6. An exempt salaried employee who does not work or does not work her/his full scheduled 
shift is required to use their accrued annual, sick, or personal leave as applicable.  

 
Excessive Absenteeism/Tardiness 
 

1. Excessive Absenteeism or Tardiness—Absenteeism or tardiness that affects the job, 
Program, and/or Agency performance.  If it is determined that absenteeism or tardiness 
has become unreasonable, the immediate Supervisor should determine the appropriate 
action.   

 
2. An employee who is chronically or excessively absent or tardy may be subject to 

disciplinary action up to and including termination.     
 

3. If an employee is absent for three (3) consecutive days without notifying CAPCO, it is 
assumed that the employee has abandoned their position with CAPCO and employment 
automatically is terminated. 

 
 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY OF AGENCY [AND PARTICIPANT] INFORMATION  

 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 

Board Packet June 2016 57



CAPCO has Confidential Information that should not be discussed with anyone inside or outside 
the Agency, except when required in the normal course of business.  “Confidential Information” 
shall mean proprietary or secret information relating the Agency, its affiliates, and service 
recipients, including, but not limited to, information regarding service recipients (e.g., service 
recipients’ names, contact information, medical or financial information) and information of a 
strategic nature (e.g., future developments or strategies pertaining to marketing, fee structures, 
service recipient lists, sources of revenues and referral sources), disclosed to or known by you 
as a consequence of or through your employment with the Agency (including information 
conceived, originated, discovered or developed by you), which information is not otherwise 
generally known in the profession or is public knowledge.  
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. All information pertaining to CAPCO’s service recipients and participants is confidential 
and must not be discussed with or divulged to anyone outside the Agency without a 
written release of information.  Inside the Agency, service recipient and participant 
information is shared on a “need to know” basis.  Even the presence of a particular 
service recipient or participant should not be acknowledged to others without proper 
authorization. 

 
2. Confidential Information is to be used only in connection with the legitimate functions of 

an employee’s job duties.  The release of Confidential Information may occur only with a 
proper written release of information authorization.  Exceptions will only be made as 
required by law as in the case of subpoenas or other court orders. 
 

3. If an employee leaves, the employee must surrender all information-bearing items in 
her/his possession that are the property of CAPCO, whether or not containing 
Confidential Information, including but not limited to, storage media, notebooks, reports, 
other information from a third party or anything containing CAPCO Confidential 
Information.    

 
4. If an employee is contacted about Confidential Information, the employee should direct 

the inquiring party to the Program Director.  Service recipient and participant files should 
not be removed from the offices of CAPCO unless under the authorization and 
procedure prescribed by Program guidelines.  Accessing electronic service recipient or 
participant data files must occur through secure data connections.  Electronic service 
recipient or participant files are not to be downloaded onto personal computers that are 
not sanctioned and secured by the Agency.  
 

5. Violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of 
employment. 

 
 
 
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT  
 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 

Board Packet June 2016 58



 
CAPCO complies with the proper handling of all private information and individually identifiable 
health information and outlines steps in appropriate Health Insurance and Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA) compliance. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Any Protected Health Information (PHI) within the meaning of HIPAA is confidential and 
may not be discussed with anyone except on a “need-to-know” basis in order to perform 
job duties.  PHI contains individually identifiable information such as names, addresses, 
birth dates, telephone numbers, fax numbers, electronic mail addresses, social security 
numbers, health plan beneficiary numbers, or any other unique identifying number, 
characteristic, or code. 

 
 

2. CAPCO is prohibited from using or disclosing PHI except as  permitted by law.  This 
includes all personally identifiable health information. 

 
3. CAPCO Program Directors and designees are responsible for developing and 

implementing privacy policies and procedures as well as ensuring general compliance. 
 

4. Any reported complaint of a violation will be investigated and appropriate action will be 
taken to ensure that privacy practices are being followed. 

 
5. Records should be secured in locked file cabinets and secured electronic files and 

access will be controlled by the appropriate designee(s). 
 
 
 
PROMOTIONS  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO ensures each employee has equal access to opportunities for growth and development.  
In general, CAPCO will attempt to give first consideration to internal candidates who have a 
history of satisfactory job performance and meet the job qualifications for the vacancies.  In all 
its selection and promotion decisions, CAPCO complies with equal employment opportunity 
requirements.   
 
PROCEDURE  
 

1. Two types of advancement opportunities are outlined below: 
 

a. A promotion is the movement from one position to another position which is in a 
higher salary grade and may involve a salary increase.  A promotion may be within a 
program or between programs and may result in a title change.   

Board Packet June 2016 59



b. A reclassification is an approved change in pay grade of an existing position as a 
result of significant changes in the duties and responsibilities of that position.  A 
reclassification may result in a pay grade and/or title change.  
 

2. Every effort is made to fill vacancies by promoting qualified employees.  Program 
Directors, working with Supervisors, are encouraged to identify employees for 
promotion.  Employees must possess the necessary skills, abilities, and knowledge to 
satisfactorily perform the work of the advanced position.  Past work history and 
performance, including attendance is also reviewed in order to make this determination. 

 
3. Employees are encouraged to maintain an awareness of vacancies and to seek job 

opportunities for which they qualify.  An expression of interest in a promotion, either by 
submitting an application or resume and cover letter to the hiring manager and/or 
Program Director as a result of a job posting or through discussions with the hiring 
manager and/or Program Director, does not have any adverse effect on the status of the 
employee’s current position.  

 
4. The hiring manager with counsel from the Program Director and Human Resource 

Director selects the appropriate candidate for promotion.  Refer to the policy on 
Recruitment and Selection for more information. 

 
5. The newly promoted employee is subject to an introductory period.  Refer to the policy 

on Introductory Period for more information. 
 
 
 
TRANSFERS  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides opportunities wherein an employee may transfer, or may be transferred, when 
the employee meets the job qualifications and when the transfer will benefit both the employee 
and the Agency. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. An employee who is transferred temporarily to a higher paying position may receive 
additional compensation.  Temporary assignment constitutes a formal assumption of 
another position’s duties for an established period of time, not the occasional filling in for 
a job or “helping out.” 

 
2. An employee who is transferred temporarily, at the request of CAPCO, to a lower paying 

position continues to be paid at her/his existing rate for as long as the temporary transfer 
is in effect.   

 
3. If the employee has not been returned to her/his regular position at the end of 90 days 

from the date of temporary transfer, CAPCO reviews the situation and either returns the 

Board Packet June 2016 60



employee to her/his former position, extends the period of temporary transfer, or 
completes the transfer to the new position.  

 
4. Employees transferred to lower paying positions are paid at the lower rate of the new 

position at the end of 90 days.   
 

5. Employees must be in their current position for 90 days before being eligible for 
transfers.  Prior to transfer, employees are encouraged to discuss their request with their 
current Supervisor.   

 
 
 
JOB DESCRIPTIONS  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO creates job descriptions and properly determines the exemption status for every job 
according to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and New York Labor Law.  Records are 
maintained of all authorized positions within the Agency.  Job descriptions are designed to 
assist the employee in being successful in performing her/his job and to assist the Agency in 
meeting its mission and vision. 
 
PROCEDURE   
 

1. Supervisors are responsible for ensuring that employees are performing the tasks 
included in their jobs.  Each description includes, but is not limited to: 

 
a. Job’s purpose and function 
b. Essential duties and responsibilities 
c. Education, credentials, and experience qualifications 
d. Behavioral competencies 
e. Bona fide occupational qualification (BFOQ) 
f. Physical demands 
g. Work environment 

 
2. Job descriptions indicate whether the position is exempt or nonexempt.  Classification is 

determined based on criteria under applicable law. 
 

3. Newly created positions or changes in position qualifications that may result in salary 
adjustment require budget review and approval of the Program Director and Executive 
Director. 

 
4. After review, the Executive Director, working with the Program Director and Human 

Resource Director, assigns the position to a recommended salary grade and appropriate 
exemption status under the FLSA and New York Labor Law.  

 
5. All new or revised job descriptions will be approved by the Program Director and/or 

Executive Director.    

Board Packet June 2016 61



 
6. Annually, typically during the performance review period, employees and their 

Supervisors review the job description to ensure they remain relevant and accurately 
reflect the responsibilities and accountabilities assigned to the position.  

 
 
 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO evaluates strengths and areas of improvement in performance of all employees in a fair 
and equitable manner.  The Performance Appraisal (PA) process is intended to be a positive 
experience to assist the employee in being successful in the performance of her/his job.  
Discussions regarding an employee’s job performance are recommended on an informal basis 
as needed. An effective performance appraisal process is an ongoing, open process between 
the employee and her/his supervisor. This process will include a formal written Performance 
Appraisal at least annually. 
 
Performance management is completed to uphold or modify staff performance expectations 
necessary, to assist staff in improving skills and professional competencies, and to identify 
training and development needs. 
 
 
PROCEDURE   
 

1. The Human Resource Director will provide notification of upcoming appraisals to the 
individual responsible for writing an evaluation.  Notification occurs 30 days prior to the 
performance appraisal’s due date.  Performance appraisals are conducted on an annual 
basis using the standardized performance appraisal system, which is designed to ensure 
reviews are conducted objectively.  

 
2. The schedule for performance appraisals may vary based upon the employment 

arrangement of the employee.  The schedule typically follows: 
 

a. Evaluation upon completion of the introductory period (90 days).  
b. On an annual basis between the months of June and August. 

 
3. The Supervisor completes the performance appraisal and then schedules a review with 

the employee.   
 

4. The reviewer and the employee may discuss the following topics: 
 

a. Previous performance plans and achievement of past goals. 
b. Current performance appraisal including demonstrating appreciation for employee 

contributions. 
c. Constructive feedback on employee’s performance. 
d. Future expectations and goals. 

Board Packet June 2016 62



e. Employee training needs and professional development opportunities. 
 

5. The employee may submit comments or statements on the performance appraisal form. 
 

6. The Supervisor signs the completed form.  The employee signs the completed review 
acknowledging that they have read and understand it, although they may not necessarily 
agree with the appraisal.  A refusal to sign should be documented by the Supervisor. 

 
7. The Supervisor documents employee progress on such areas as:  
 

a. Successes 
b. Additional responsibilities 
c. Awards or recognitions 
d. Attendance at training, where applicable 
e. Comments from clients, peers 

 
8. Performance appraisals are placed in the employee’s personnel file and may be used for 

such actions as transfers, promotions, pay adjustments, and salary considerations. 
 
9. Leaves of absence and breaks in service may affect the timing of performance 

appraisals. 
 
 

INCLEMENT WEATHER AND OTHER EMERGENCIES 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO monitors and keeps employees informed of changing weather conditions and other 
emergency situations before, during, and after the event.  The Agency strives for safety for all 
employees in the event of inclement weather, and other emergency situations, through staff 
support systems. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The Executive Director determines if the Agency will open or remain open in the event of 
severe weather conditions or other emergencies.  If the decision is made not to open the 
Agency, the phone message will be changed to state that CAPCO is closed due to 
inclement weather.   

 
2. If the Agency is closed or closes early due to inclement weather, the Executive Director 

or her/his designee will send a notification to employees using the designated CAPCO 
contact system. The closure will also be posted on local radio and television stations as 
available.  

 
3. If the Agency is closed or closes early due to inclement weather, employees are paid for 

the hours they were scheduled to work. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 63



4. If the Agency remains open and the weather is questionable, employees are to 
determine if they feel it is safe to try and come to work or leave early.  If a nonexempt 
employees chooses not to come in to work, chooses to leave early, or chooses to come 
in late, he/she will not be paid for hours not worked, but may use accrued time off 
benefits.  [mm6]If an exempt employee chooses not to come to work and is absent for a 
full day, he/she will not be paid for that day, but may use accrued time off benefits.  The 
employee must contact her/his Supervisor prior to the scheduled starting time to indicate 
if and when he/she will be arriving to work.  

 
5. If the Agency is open and the employee chooses not to come to work or chooses to 

leave early and then the Agency closes, he/she will receive pay for the hours the Agency 
closed provided he/she was scheduled to work. 

 
6. Employees who are not scheduled to work, or using personal time off benefits, or on any 

other paid or unpaid type of absence are not eligible for paid time off due to weather-
related or other emergencies. 

 
7. In the event of a fire, storm, or other emergency, safety is most important.  Employees 

are to move to a position of safety or exit the building as quickly as possible.  Employees 
are required to follow written evacuation and safety procedures. 
 

 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
SNOW DAYS 
 
In additions to the procedures above, the Head Start/Early Head Start Program may be delayed 
or shut down due to inclement weather while the CAPCO Agency remains open. In general, the 
Head Start/Head Start Program makes determinations for delaying or shutting down the 
program based on the shutdown decisions of the local school districts, particularly when the 
Head Start/Early Head Start classrooms are located in schools.  In rare instances, some Head 
Start/Early Head Start classrooms may shut down while others remain open. If the school/center 
shuts down, Education staff reporting to classrooms in shutdown schools/centers will not report. 
All other Head Start/Early Head Start staff will report unless the Agency closes. 
 

a. If the Head Start/Early Head Start classrooms are on a delay or shutdown 
due to inclement weather, the Head Start Program Director or her/his designee 
will send a notification to Head Start/Early Head Start employees using the 
designated CAPCO contact system.  
 

b. The Head Start Program Director or her/his designee will contact Channel 
3, 5, 9 local news stations and Channel 10 YNN news to further communicate 
with staff and inform participant families  of delays and program closings. 

 
c. The Head Start Program Director or her/his designee will contact Cortland 

and Ithaca area radio stations to further communicate any delays or program 
closings. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 64



d. If a Head Start/Early Head Start classroom is on a delay, all Head Start/ 
Early Head Start staff, including Education staff, are still to report to work at their 
regularly scheduled time. 

Board Packet June 2016 65



 
SECTION 3 

 
 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PROCEDURES 
 
 
FLEX SCHEDULES  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 

PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides arrangements to non-exempt employees to ensure hours are kept within their 
scheduled workweek, not to exceed 37.5 hours per week. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. If an employee works her/his scheduled hours prior to the completion of the 
workweek, the employee is to work with her/his immediate Supervisor to determine 
flex time within the same week that the scheduled hours have been met. 

 
2. The immediate Supervisor must approve the flex schedule request before the 

employee uses flex time and is responsible for ensuring appropriate staffing.  Not all 
flex schedule requests will be honored.  

 
 
 
HOLIDAYS 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides regular full-time and regular part-time employees the benefit of paid holidays.  
Holidays are recognized as non-work days for employees.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The following are recognized by CAPCO as a holiday:  
 

a. New Year’s Day  
b. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 
c. Presidents’ Day 
d. Memorial Day 
e. Independence Day 
f. Labor Day 
g. Columbus Day 
h. Veterans’ Day 

Board Packet June 2016 66



i. Thanksgiving Day 
j. Day after Thanksgiving 
k. Christmas Day 

 
2. In addition to the above holidays, CAPCO recognizes a floating holiday that is 

designated by management each year. 
 

3. A list of actual holiday dates to be observed by CAPCO is set and communicated to all 
employees the first of each New Year. 

 
4. Holiday pay is calculated based on the employee’s regular hourly rate multiplied by the 

number of hours the employee was regularly scheduled to work that day.  If an 
employee was not scheduled to work, then no holiday pay will be awarded.  

 
5. An employee who has an unscheduled absence the working day prior to and/or following 

a holiday is not paid for that holiday.  An authorized absence includes only sick time, 
prior approved annual and personal leave time, bereavement leave, and jury duty. 

 
6. If a paid holiday falls during an employee’s scheduled annual leave period, holiday pay 

is provided and he/she still has an annual leave day to use. 
 

7. Employees on a paid approved leave of absence are eligible for holiday pay.  If the 
approved leave of absence is not paid, the employee is not eligible for holiday pay. 

 
8. Holiday pay is not counted as hours worked for the purposes of determining overtime. 

 
 
 
ANNUAL LEAVE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides annual leave time for employees to refresh themselves and encourages and 
supports all employees to use annual leave time regularly. Leave must be preapproved and is 
not guaranteed to be granted. Leave is approved based on the demands of the program and to 
insure all program functions are sufficiently covered. All regular full-time and regular part-time 
employees earn and use annual leave time in accordance with the guidelines outlined below.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees begin to accrue annual leave time immediately upon hire but are ineligible to 
take annual leave time until after the successful completion of their introductory period. 
 

2. Annual leave time off accruals are based on an employee’s anniversary date. 
 

3. An eligible employee earns annual leave time beginning on his/her first day of 
employment based on the employee’s regular schedule and length of service 
determined by anniversary date.  

Board Packet June 2016 67



 
4. Non-exempt, regular full-time employees earn annual leave time based on the following 

schedule: 
 

Completed Years of Service  Annual Leave Accruals 
per Pay Period 

Less than 1 Year 3.693 hours 
After 1 Year 4.0 
After 2 Years 4.31 
After 3 Years 4.616 
After 4 Years 4.924 
After 5 Years 5.232 
After 6 Years 5.539 

After 7+ Years 5.847 
 

5. Accruals for part-time employees are prorated, and part-time employees must 
consistently work at least 20 hours during the work week to be eligible to accrue annual 
leave. 

 
6. Employees should request approval in writing at least two weeks in advance before 

taking annual leave time.  Scheduled absences are preplanned with an employee’s 
Supervisor/Program Director in accordance with department guidelines, negotiating the 
least impact to the work area.  

 
7. It is necessary that CAPCO provide consistent services to the community as indicated 

by CAPCO’s programs and funding sources. Necessary staffing will be maintained at all 
times to insure this.  
 

8. Time-off requests can be denied if proper request protocol is not followed and/or 
program demands do not allow it for the time requested. There will be no additional 
consideration for time-off requests for employees who have pre-planned leave before 
actually requesting the time-off. Employees should not make leave plans before the 
time-off approval has been granted. 
 

9. When scheduling conflicts arise, priority for annual leave is established at the discretion 
of management. Length of employment may determine priority in scheduling annual 
leave time.  Decisions about annual leave time and scheduling are the responsibility of 
the Supervisor and Program Director. 

 
10. Annual leave time off can be taken in half hour increments of time.   

 
11. CAPCO does not advance annual leave time. 

 
12. CAPCO strongly encourages employees to take annual leave time every calendar year.  

Full-time employees are allowed to carry over annual leave from one year to the next 
calendar year at a maximum of 40 hours. Part-time employees are allowed to carry over 
annual from one year to the next calendar year at a maximum of 20 hours.   

 
13. Any earned but unused annual leave is paid to eligible employees at the time of 

termination provided at least two (2) weeks written advanced notice of resignation is 

Board Packet June 2016 68



provided for nonexempt staff and at least thirty (30) days’ notice for exempt staff. All 
other employees will not be paid for accrued but unused annual leave time upon 
termination.  Annual leave time may not be used to extend the termination date.   
 

14. Upon providing written notice of resignation, an employee is not permitted to take 
accrued leave that was not pre-approved before the resignation notice was provided.  

 
 
 
SICK LEAVE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides sick leave for employees to rest and recover from illness. Regular full-time 
employees accrue sick leave at the rate of 3.7 hours (prorated for part-time employees) per pay 
period.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Sick leave will begin to accrue immediately upon hire. 
 
2. Employees may request use of paid sick leave after successful completion of the 

introductory period.  Time must be taken in half hour increments. Reasonable 
accommodations may be made in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and the New York Human Rights Law.  

 
3. Sick leave may not be used as additional annual leave, but is granted when a person is 

unable to perform her/his assigned duties because of illness or injury.  This could include 
appointments with physicians, dentists, or other recognized practitioners.  
 

4. Employees may use sick leave to care for an immediate family member. Immediate 
family members are defined as: spouses, domestic partners, parents, brothers, sisters, 
children, step-children, children of domestic partners, grandchildren, grandparents, 
parents-in-law, and parents of domestic partners. 

 
5. Following Program procedures, each employee is responsible for notifying her/his 

Supervisor prior to the start of a scheduled work day that she/he intends to utilize sick 
leave for that day.  The employee is also responsible for keeping her/his Supervisor 
informed regularly of her/his condition. 
 

6. Employees must provide notification for each day of absence unless on an authorized 
paid or unpaid leave of absence. 
 

7. Employees who have unpaid breaks in employment, including leaves of absence (e.g., 
Family Medical Leave Act, military leave) do not accrue sick leave during their absence.   

 
8. Employees receiving workers’ compensation benefits are not entitled to sick leave pay. 

 

Board Packet June 2016 69



9. If an employee uses three (3) consecutive days of sick leave, she/he will be required to 
bring in a medical certification releasing the employee to return to work.  
 

10. Full-time employees accrue up to a maximum of 360 hours of total sick leave; part-time 
employees accrue up to a maximum of 180 hours of total sick leave. 
 

11. Employees are not paid for any unused sick leave time remaining at the end of a 
calendar year or upon separation from employment. However, employees are allowed to 
carry over sick leave hours to the next calendar year, at a maximum of 360 hours for full-
time employees and 180 hours for part-time employees. 
 

12.  Sick leave is coordinated with family/medical leave (FMLA) and other leaves.   
 

13. Unused sick leave is not paid out upon termination.  
 
 
 
PERSONAL LEAVE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides personal leave for eligible employees.  All regular full-time employees accrue 
personal leave at a rate of 1.23 hours (pro-rated for part-time employees) per pay period and 
may use personal leave in accordance with this policy.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Personal leave will begin to accrue immediately upon hire. 
 

2. Employees may request use of paid personal leave after successful completion of the 
introductory period.  Time must be taken in half hour increments.  

 
3. Employees are not paid for any unused personal leave time remaining at the end of a 

calendar year or upon separation from employment. However, employees are allowed to 
carry over personal leave hours to the next calendar year, at a maximum of 8 hours. 
 

4. Personal leave must be scheduled one week in advance with exceptions approved by an 
employee’s immediate Supervisor.  
 

5. All personal leave requests must be approved by an employee’s Supervisor before 
taken. 
 

6. The time is paid at the employee’s regular hourly rate and is not used in the calculation 
of overtime. 

 
7. Unused personal days are not paid out upon termination. 

 
 

Board Packet June 2016 70



PERSONAL LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
Effective Date: June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides personal leaves of absence that are authorized, without pay, to full-time 
employees with one (1) or more years of continuous service, for up to three (3) months.  
Personal leaves of absence may be available to employees who have not yet qualified for FMLA 
and/or whose situation is not a qualifying event. The granting of this type of leave of absence is 
normally for compelling reasons, including as a form of reasonable accommodation for a 
disability, and is dependent upon the written approval of the Executive Director. It is not 
intended to simply provide employees with additional time off.  
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Only the Executive Director may authorize personal leaves of absence.   
 

2. Employees who wish to continue benefits coverage during their leave of absence must 
bear the full cost of those benefits. 

 
3. Employees on personal leave of absence are informed prior to the leave as to whether 

or not they are guaranteed that their position or a similar position will be available when 
they return from their absence.  If a comparable position is not available at the time the 
employee returns to work, the employee may be offered a lesser position.  If no 
acceptable position is available at the time the leave expires, the employee’s 
employment with CAPCO will be terminated.  [mm7] 

 
4. It should be determined whether the personal leave of absence is covered under the 

Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA).  See the policy on FMLA for more information. 
 
 
 
FEDERAL FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT (FMLA) 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY  
 
CAPCO provides leaves in compliance with Federal FMLA.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees are eligible for leave under the Federal FMLA if they have been employed by 
CAPCO for at least 12 months and have worked at least 1,250 hours for CAPCO during 
the most recent 12 consecutive month period.   
 

2. To the extent permissible under the FMLA, employees are required to exhaust all 
accrued paid time off benefits concurrently with the use of FMLA leave.  When such 
benefits are exhausted, the remainder of the FMLA leave will be without pay.  Paid time 
off benefits are not earned/accrued during FMLA leave. 

Board Packet June 2016 71



 
3. Under the Federal FMLA, up to twelve (12) weeks of leave may be taken during a 12-

month period that begins on the employee’s first day of leave for any one or more of the 
following reasons:  

 
a. An employee’s own serious health condition.  
b. To care for a spouse, parent, biological child, adopted child, foster child, step-child, 

legal ward, or a child of a person standing in loco parentis (who is under 18 years of 
age, or 18 years or older and incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical 
disability) with a serious health condition. 

c. For the birth of an employee’s child, or placement of a child with an employee for 
adoption or foster care.  Leave for birth, adoption, or foster care must conclude within 
12 months of the birth or placement.   

d. To care for a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin who is a covered military 
service member recovering from a serious illness or injury sustained in the line of 
duty.  The eligible employee is entitled to up to 26 weeks of leave in a single 12-
month period to care for the service member; this military caregiver leave is available 
during a single 12-month period, during which an eligible employee is limited to a 
combined total of 26 weeks of all types of FMLA leave. 

e. Any “qualifying exigency”, as defined in regulations issued by the Department of 
Labor, arising from the fact that an employee’s spouse, child, or parent is on active 
duty status in the National Guard or Reserves in support of a contingency operation. 
 

4. The 12-month period in which 12 weeks of leave may be taken is the 12-month period 
measured forward from the date any employee’s first FMLA leave begins. 

 
5. Any leave due to the birth and care of a child or the placement of a child for adoption or 

foster care, and care of the newly placed child, must be completed within one (1) year of 
the date of birth or placement of the child. 
 

6. FMLA leave may run concurrently with other types of leave.  
 
7. During an approved FMLA leave, CAPCO will maintain an employee’s health benefits 

under the same terms and conditions applicable to employees not on leave. 
 

a. If paid leave is substituted for unpaid FMLA leave, CAPCO will deduct the 
employee-portion of the health plan premium as a regular payroll deduction.  

b. If leave is unpaid, the employee must pay his/her portion of the premium by 
making arrangements with the Human Resource Director. 

c. An employee’s health insurance may cease if his/her premium payment is 
more than thirty (30) days late. If payment is more than thirty (30) days late, 
CAPCO will send the employee a letter to this effect. If CAPCO does not 
receive the employee’s copayment within fifteen (15) days of this letter, the 
employee’s coverage will cease. 

d. If an employee elects not to return to work at the end of the leave for at least 
thirty (30) calendar days, the employee will be required to reimburse CAPCO 
for the cost of the premiums paid by CAPCO for maintaining coverage during 
the unpaid leave unless the employee cannot return to work because of a 
serious health condition or because of other circumstances beyond the 
employee’s control. 

Board Packet June 2016 72



 
8. When spouses are employed by CAPCO, they are entitled to a combined total of up to 

twelve (12) weeks leave: (1) for birth, adoption, or foster care and in order to care for 
such a child; or (2) to care for a parent with a serious health condition. Each individual is 
entitled twelve (12) weeks leave because of his or her own serious health condition or to 
care for the serious health condition of his or her child or spouse without counting leave 
time taken by the other spouse. 
 

9. Eligible leave under FMLA may be taken intermittently (in separate blocks of time due to 
a single health condition) or on a reduced leave schedule (reducing the usual number of 
hours you work per workweek or workday), in accordance with the provisions of the 
FMLA.  
 

10. Medical Certification for a Serious Health Condition: If an employee is requesting 
leave because of her/his own or a covered family member’s serious health condition, the 
appropriate health care provider must supply medical certification. Obtain a medical 
certification form from the Human Resources Director. If possible, the employee should 
return a completed medical certification within 15 days. If the employee provides at least 
30 days’ notice of her/his need for medical leave, she/he should provide the medical 
certification before the leave begins. If the employee does not provide the required 
medical certification in a timely manner, the leave may be delayed until it is provided. 

 
11. When possible, employees should notify their immediate Supervisor and the Human 

Resource Director of leave at least 30 days before the date of the anticipated leave.  A 
written request for time off under FMLA must be completed.  In an emergency situation, 
notice must be given as soon as possible, but no later than 48 hours after the 
occurrence of the reason for leave.  Failure to make timely notification of the need for 
leave may result in the delaying of leave until proper notification is received. 
 

12. If leave is taken for an employee’s own serious health condition (except if taken 
intermittently), the employee must provide a fitness-for-duty certification from the treating 
medical provider indicating the employee is able to return to work before she/he returns. 
Employees failing to complete the return-to-work medical certification will not be 
permitted to resume work until it is provided. 
 

13. The taking of another job while on family or medical leave or any other authorized leave 
may lead to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 
 

14. Where state or local family and medical leave laws offer more protection or benefits to 
employees, the protection or benefits provided by such laws will apply.  

 
Military Leave Provisions (FMLA) 
 
Qualifying Exigency Leave- Eligible employees who are the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of 
a military member may take up to 12 weeks of FMLA leave during any 12-month period to 
address the most common issues that arise when a military member is deployed to a foreign 
country, such as attending military sponsored functions, making appropriate financial and legal 
arrangements, and arranging for alternative childcare. This provision applies to the families of 
members of both active duty and reserve components of the Armed Forces. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 73



Military Caregiver Leave- Eligible employees who are the spouse, son, daughter, parent or next 
of kin of a covered service member may take up to 26 weeks of family/medical leave during a 
single 12-month period to care for the service member who is undergoing medical treatment, 
recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary 
disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness incurred or aggravated in the line of duty on 
active duty. This provision applies to the families of members of both the active duty and 
reserve components of the Armed Forces. 
 
 
 
WORKPLACE LACTATION POLICY  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO recognizes that breast milk promotes optimum growth and development of infants and 
accommodates mothers who choose to continue breastfeeding after returning to work. CAPCO 
will not discriminate in any way against an employee who chooses to express milk in the 
workplace. 
 
 
PROCEDURE  
 

1. CAPCO will provide reasonable unpaid break time each day to allow an employee to 
express breast milk for her nursing child for up to three (3) years following child birth. 
 

2. CAPCO shall provide written notification to employees who are returning to work, 
following the birth of a child, of her right to take unpaid leave for the purpose of 
expressing breast milk. 
 

3. An employee wishing to avail herself of this benefit is required to give her immediate 
Supervisor or Program Director advance notice. Such notice shall preferably be provided 
prior to the employee’s return to work following the birth of the child in order to allow 
CAPCO an opportunity to establish a location and schedule work coverage if needed. 
 

4. Reasonable unpaid break time is sufficient time to allow the employee to express breast 
milk. Each break shall generally be in thirty (30) minute increments at least once every 
three (3) hours if requested by the employee. Employees can elect to take shorter 
unpaid breaks for this purpose. 
 

5. CAPCO will make a reasonable effort to provide a room or other location, in close 
proximity to the work area, where an employee can express milk in privacy. The room or 
location provided by CAPCO will not be a restroom or toilet stall. 
 

6. Should there be more than one employee at a time needing access to a lactation room, 
CAPCO may dedicate a centralized location for use by all such employees. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 74



7. Employees will have the option of using their accrued time to supplement, or in lieu of, 
the unpaid break time granted for expressing breast milk. All requests to use accrued 
time for this purpose must be approved by an employee’s immediate Supervisor. 

 
 
 
MILITARY SERVICE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO complies with all applicable statutes that require reservists and National Guard 
personnel to be given leave of absence for active duty and training exercises under Uniformed 
Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA) of 1994.  The time off will be 
unpaid, except where applicable law dictates otherwise. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. It is the employee's responsibility to inform their immediate Supervisor as soon as 
orders for military duty have been received.  Employees are required to give advanced 
notice of their service obligations to CAPCO unless military necessity makes this 
impossible. 
 

2. When requesting a military leave of absence, the employee should present a copy of 
the training orders to their immediate Supervisor and/or the Human Resource Director. 

 
3. Employees are able to substitute accrued annual leave to offset the “without pay” 

provision of military leave.   
 

4. Continuation of health insurance benefits is available as required by USERRA based on 
the length of the leave and subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations of the 
applicable plans for which the employee is otherwise eligible.  

 
5. Benefit accruals such as annual leave, sick leave, personal leave, and holidays are 

suspended during the USERRA leave and will resume upon the employee’s return to 
active employment. 

 
6. When an employee returns from military leave, she/he is assigned to a position as 

required by law.  Military leave time is immediately credited to the employee's length of 
service and all benefits apply as if the employee had never left her/his job.  The 
employee's salary will be equal to or greater than the salary at the time the leave 
commenced unless salaries have declined. 

 
 
JURY DUTY  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 

Board Packet June 2016 75



CAPCO accommodates all employees who are called to serve on jury duty. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. All regular full-time and regular part-time employees are eligible for the payment of 
regular wages for up to five (5) days of designated jury duty.  Additional required days off 
are granted without pay from CAPCO. 

 
2. Jury duty pay is calculated based on employee’s rate of pay at the time of the absence 

and the number of hours the employee would have been scheduled to work.  If an 
employee was not scheduled to work, he/she is not paid for that time. 
 

3. Employees must present a copy of all fees, except travel, received for serving on the jury 
to their immediate Supervisor and/or Human Resource Director.  The employee receives 
the difference between any fees received and the wages missed during the regular 
payroll cycle for all paid jury time.   
 

4. For employees who are paid a daily wage that is less than the New York State jury fee, 
New York State makes up the difference. 

 
5. Employees are expected to report for work whenever the court schedule permits. 

 
6. Employees must provide proof of jury service issued by the court to their immediate 

Supervisor and/or the Human Resource Director upon return to work. 
 

7. Jury duty pay is not used in the calculation of overtime. 
 

8. Eligible employees will continue to receive and accrue benefits during jury duty including 
annual leave, sick leave, personal leave, holiday pay, and health insurance coverage.   

 
 
 
VICTIMS OF CRIME LEAVE  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides employees reasonable and necessary time off of work who are victims of a 
crime to attend or participate in legal proceedings pertaining to the crime. 
  
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Time off for court proceedings are provided without pay. Employees may elect to use 
accrued annual or personal time while out on a victims of crime leave. Sick leave is also 
available to employees subject to the policy provisions of sick time usage. 
 

2. Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with 
state and federal wage and hour laws. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 76



3. Affected employees must give their immediate Supervisor reasonable notice that leave 
under this policy is required.  

 
 
 
WITNESS LEAVE  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO provides employees necessary time off to attend or participate in a court proceeding in 
accordance with state law. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Time off for court proceedings are provided without pay. Employees may elect to use 
accrued annual or personal time while out on witness leave. 
 

2. Exempt employees may be provided time off with pay when necessary to comply with 
state and federal wage and hour laws. 

 
3. Employees should notify their immediate Supervisor of the need to take witness leave as 

far in advance as is possible. 
 
 
 
VOTING LEAVE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO believes that every employee should have the opportunity to vote in any local, state, or 
federal election, general primary or special primary. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Any employee whose work schedule does not provide her or him four consecutive hours 
to vote while polls are open will be granted up to two (2) paid hours off, usually at the 
beginning or end of your scheduled shift, in order to vote. An employee’s immediate 
Supervisor reserves the right to select the hours she/he is excused to vote. 
 

2. Employees should notify their immediate Supervisor of the need for voting leave two (2) 
to ten (10) days before the election.  
 

3. Upon return from voting leave, employees must present a voter’s receipt to their 
immediate Supervisor as soon as possible to ensure leave is designated as paid voter 
leave. 

 

Board Packet June 2016 77



 
 
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
Immediately upon hire, CAPCO provides compensation for regular full-time and regular part-
time employees who must be off work due to the death of an immediate family member as 
defined by this policy. Paid leave for the death of a non-immediate family member may also be 
available. 
 
The term "immediate family" includes spouses, domestic partners, parents, brothers, sisters, 
children, children of domestic partners, grandchildren, grandparents, parents-in-law, parents of 
domestic partners and immediate step-relatives.  
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees will be paid their hourly rate of pay for up to three (3) work days due to the 
death of an immediate family member as defined in this policy.  The bereavement leave 
may be taken to make funeral arrangements, attend a funeral, and/or to take care of 
personal affairs normally associated with a death.  
 

2. Full-time and part-time employees are eligible immediately upon hire to be paid their 
hourly rate of pay for up to one (1) work day due to the death of a relative not considered 
an immediate relative as listed above. 
 

3. Employees who need to take time off due to a death of an immediate family member or 
other approved relative should notify her/his Supervisor as soon as possible and inform 
them of the expected date of return.   

 
4. If an employee needs to take additional time off (in addition to the 3 paid bereavement 

days), she/he may use other accrued personal or annual to leave to extend 
bereavement. This needs to be discussed with and approved by the employee’s 
immediate Supervisor. If sick leave is used, it must be used in accordance with the Sick 
Leave Policy.  

 
5. Employees continue to accrue annual, personal, and  sick leave time during the 

bereavement leave.  
 

6. Bereavement pay is calculated based on the employee’s rate of pay at the time of the 
absence and the number of hours they would have been scheduled to work.  If an 
employee was not scheduled to work, she/he is not paid for that time. 

 
7. Bereavement pay is not used in the calculation of overtime. 

 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 78



BENEFIT PLANS 
 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
This policy is intended as a brief introduction to CAPCO’s benefit programs.  A more thorough 
explanation of the benefit plans and programs discussed herein are contained in the summary 
plan descriptions (SPD) and insurance policies.  If there is an inconsistency between this 
Manual description and the summary plan descriptions or insurance policies, the terms of the 
SPD and insurance control. CAPCO reserves the right, in its discretion and without prior notice, 
to modify, add or discontinue the benefits for eligible employees described in this employee 
handbook, including but not limited to changing the share of premiums which the Agency pays. 
 
CAPCO provides medical insurance, dental insurance, life insurance, New York State disability 
insurance, and a 401(k) savings plan to employees of the Agency.  Employees should refer to 
their SPD for plan details.  The Agency’s Human Resource Director is the point-of-contact for 
employee benefit plans. The following procedure provides a summary of benefits provided by 
the Agency’s current insurance provider(s). 
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Medical Insurance 
 

1. Full-time and part-time employees that work at least thirty (30) hours per week (or have 
an hours increased to thirty per week) are eligible to enroll in CAPCO’s health insurance 
program the first (1st) of the month following sixty (60) days of employment and/or from 
the time the employee’s hours increase. (The Agency’s introductory period remains at 90 
days). 

 
2. A SPD and information on cost of coverage is provided to eligible employees in advance 

of enrollment, usually by the Human Resource Director. Refer to the actual plan 
document and summary plan description if you have specific questions regarding this 
benefit plan. Those documents are controlling. 
 

3. Upon termination you may be entitled to continuation or conversion of the group medical 
insurance plan in accordance with applicable state and federal law. For more 
information, contact the Human Resource Director. 

 
Dental Plan 
 

1. Full-time employees that work thirty-seven and a half (37.5) hours per week (or have an 
hours increase to thirty-seven and a half per week) are eligible to enroll in CAPCO’s 
dental insurance program the first (1st) of the month following sixty (60) days of 
employment and/or from the time the employee’s hours increase. (The Agency’s 
introductory period remains at 90 days). 

 

Board Packet June 2016 79



2. A SPD and information on cost of coverage and other plan details is provided to eligible 
employees in advance of enrollment, usually by the Human Resource Director. Refer to 
the actual plan document and summary plan description if you have specific questions 
regarding this benefit plan. Those documents are controlling. 
 

3. Upon termination you may be entitled to continuation or conversion of the group dental 
insurance plan in accordance with applicable state and federal law. For more 
information, contact the Human Resource Director. 

 
Life Insurance 
 

1. Full-time employees that work thirty-seven and a half (37.5) hours per week (or have an 
hours increase to thirty-seven and a half per week) are eligible to enroll in CAPCO’s life 
insurance program, including Accidental Death & Dismemberment, the first (1st) of the 
month following sixty (60) days of employment and/or from the time the employee’s 
hours increase. (The Agency’s introductory period remains at 90 days). 

 
2. A SPD and information on cost of coverage and other plan details is provided to eligible 

employees in advance of enrollment, usually by the Human Resource Director. Refer to 
the actual plan document and summary plan description if you have specific questions 
regarding this benefit plan. Those documents are controlling. 
 

3. Eligible employees must complete an enrollment form and designate a beneficiary. 
 

4. Upon termination, options for continuing life insurance benefits may be available. For 
more information, contact the Human Resource Director. 

 
 
New York State Disability Insurance 
 

1. CAPCO complies with Article 9 of the New York Workers’ Compensation Law, Disability 
Benefits Law, by contracting with a NYS disability carrier to provide temporary cash 
payments for eligible wage earners who are incapacitated by an illness or disability from 
a non-occupational injury. 

 
2. Employees should see the Human Resource Director regarding applying, eligibility, 

length of leave, payments, and other specific plan provisions for NYS Disability 
Insurance. 

 
401(k) Savings Plan 
 

1. All employees become eligible to participate in employee elective deferrals the first full 
pay period following the calendar quarter (January, April, July, October) after her/his 
initial election of 401(k) contribution and completion of enrollment form. 

 
2. Employees are eligible the first full pay period following the calendar quarter (January, 

April, July, October) for the Agency’s matching or base contribution after completing one 
(1) year of service and one thousand (1,000) hours, calculated as of the employee’s 
anniversary date.  

 

Board Packet June 2016 80



3. The Agency contributes a two percent (2%) base contribution of an employee’s bi-
weekly gross pay after fulfillment of eligibility requirements. The Agency contributes up 
to an additional one percent (1%) dollar-for-dollar matching contribution to the 
employee’s elected deferrals for a total maximum contribution of three percent (3%).  

 
5. A SPD and plan details are provided to employees at the time of enrollment, usually by 

the Human Resource Director. Refer to the actual plan document and summary plan 
description if you have specific questions regarding this benefit plan. Those documents 
are controlling. 

 
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) 
 

1. Eligible full-time and part-time employees may participate in our Employee 
Assistance Program immediately upon hire. 
 

2. The administrative cost of this program is fully paid by CAPCO. 
 

3. Our EAP helps eligible employees and their immediate families with a wide range 
of life challenges and opportunities. Employee conversations and records with our 
EAP are strictly confidential. 

 
4. Complete details of this program may be obtained from the Human Resource 

Director and the available SPD. 
 

Section 125 Plans 
 

CAPCO offers a pretax contribution option for select and permissible benefit plans for 
employees. This employee benefit is known as a Section 125 plan.  

 
A Section 125 plan is a benefit plan that allows employees to make contributions toward 
premiums for medical insurance, dental insurance, and out-of-pocket medical expenses 
and dependent care expenses on a “before-tax” rather than an “after-tax” basis. An 
employee’s premium contributions and qualified expenses are deducted from an 
employee’s gross pay before income taxes and Social Security is calculated. 

 
Employees must meet eligibility requirements to participate in CAPCO’s Section 125 
plans. If eligibility is met, an election form must be completed and returned to the Human 
Resource Director. Employees cannot make any changes to their pretax contributions 
until the next applicable open enrollment period unless eligible for a special open 
enrollment due to a qualifying event as specified under the plan.  

 
Social Security 
 

During your employment, you and CAPCO both contribute funds to the federal 
government to support the Social Security program. This program is intended to provide 
you with retirement benefit payments and medical coverage once you reach retirement 
age. 

 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 81



CONSOLIDATED OMNIBUS BUDGET RECONCILIATION ACT (COBRA) 
  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
When an eligible employee terminates employment with CAPCO, the employee or qualified 
beneficiary is entitled to continue participating in the Agency’s group health plan for a prescribed 
period of time, usually 18 months.  In certain circumstances, such as an employee’s divorce or 
death, the length of coverage period may be longer for qualified dependents. CAPCO’s COBRA 
compliance is administered by the Agency’s designated health insurance broker. 
 
PROCEDURE 

 
1. General notice of coverage is provided to employees and spouses covered by the plan 

within 90 days of individual’s coverage date. 
 
2. Written notice of continued health insurance coverage is provided to the terminated 

employee and/or dependents by the Agency’s insurance broker within 14 days of the 
qualifying event. 
 

3. Employees must decide whether to continue coverage within 60 days after the date 
coverage would otherwise terminate due to the qualifying event.  

 
4. If a former employee chooses to continue group benefits under COBRA, she/he must 

pay the total applicable premium plus an administrative fee up to two percent (2%) or up 
to one hundred and two percent (102%) of the full premium cost, except in the case of 
an 11-month disability extension where you may be required to pay up to one hundred 
and fifty percent (150%) of the full premium cost for coverage.  
 

5. The first COBRA payment must be received forty-five (45) days after the initial election, 
and thereafter, within thirty (30) days of the due date (the grace period). Each month’s 
premium is due prior to the first day of the month of coverage. You or your dependent is 
responsible for making timely payments. 

 
6. Coverage ceases if the former employee fails to make premium payments as scheduled, 

or within thirty (30) days of the scheduled payment, becomes covered by another group 
plan or becomes eligible for Medicare, or when the plan terminates for all employees. 

 
7. For detailed information or questions on COBRA, employees are requested to check 

with the Human Resource Director.   
 

 
 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 

Board Packet June 2016 82



 
CAPCO employees who suffer a work-related illness or injury, regardless of fault, may be 
entitled to benefits under Workers’ Compensation. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Employee Responsibilities 
 

1. The employee should inform her/his immediate Supervisor of the injury or accident as 
soon as possible and no later than 24 hours after the accident.  The employee should 
immediately fill out a CAPCO accident report which will include the following: 

 
a. Date, time, and place of injury or accident.  
b. Brief description of and conditions that caused the injury or accident. 
c. Description of injured parts of the body or disease resulting from the injury or 

accident. 
d. Medical attention sought and time away from work, if any. 

 
2. If applicable, request doctor to promptly provide information requested by the employer 

about the condition of the employee. 
 
3. Keep records of all bills, dates of treatment, compensation payment dates worked and 

not worked, to whom the injury or accident was reported, and any other information 
relating to the employee’s injury or accident. 

 
Supervisor Responsibilities 
 

1. Promptly conduct a thorough investigation to determine if the injury or accident was 
caused by a work-related incident.  

 
2. Notify the Program Director and the Human Resource Director of the accident or injury, 

and work with them to resolve or correct the cause of the accident or injury.   
 

3. Fill out a Supervisor Accident Investigation Report, and forward to the Program Director 
and Human Resource Director for notification of the insurance company. 

 
 
 
TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO believes employees are a valuable partner in meeting the Agency’s mission, values, 
and vision.  CAPCO supports the development of employees’ and volunteers’ skills through both 
in-house and external training opportunities.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

Board Packet June 2016 83



1. It is a joint responsibility between the immediate Supervisor(s), Program Director(s) and 
employees to identify training opportunities and needs.  Training and leadership 
development plans are part of the annual job performance review process.  

 
2. Safety training and employee orientation are provided to all employees.  Please see 

specific policies for details. 
 

3. Other training courses are offered on an annual or  “as needed” basis and may include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 

 
a. Computer training 
b. Diversity training 
c. Harassment training 
d. First aid and CPR 
e. Abuse and neglect reporting (see Head Start Specific information below) 

 
4. It is the responsibility of the immediate Supervisor and the Program Director to assign 

employees to the training sessions to ensure they receive the required training on a 
regular basis. 

 
5. An employee desiring training must complete a written request for the specific training to 

their Program Director for review and approval. 
 

All-Staff Days 
 
CAPCO holds two (2) All-Staff Training Days per year, usually in the Fall and Spring of the year. 
These are mandatory staff training days. Any accrued leave requests that fall on an All-Staff 
Day will not be approved by an immediate Supervisor or Program Director. Any requests for 
time-off that falls on an All-Staff Training Day must be made directly to the Executive Director. 
Generally, no requests for leave that fall on an All Staff Training Day will be approved unless 
deemed to be an extenuating circumstance by the Executive Director. The Executive Director 
has the final say in any and all All-Staff Training Day requests. 
 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
Head Start/Early Head Start 

 
1. Head Start/Early Head Start staff must participate in additional ongoing, structured 

training to acquire knowledge and skills as mandated by State regulations and Federal 
Head Start Performance Standards. 

 
2. Applicable Head Start/Early Head Start employees participate in training enabling them 

to obtain a Child Development Association (CDA) credential.  In the event that the 
employee is not a Head Start/Early Head Start employee and not eligible for Head 
Start/Early Head Start classes, her/his courses may be reimbursed through the 
Education Assistance policy.  

 
3. Orientation is provided to all new staff, consultants, and volunteers. 

 
 

Board Packet June 2016 84



 
EDUCATION ASSISTANCE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
This policy applies only in accordance with available Program resources and funding source 
guidelines and restrictions. CAPCO recognizes that the skills and knowledge of its employees 
are critical to the success of the Agency.  The Education Assistance Program encourages 
professional development through formal education so employees can elect to maintain and 
improve job-related skills or enhance their ability to compete for jobs within CAPCO.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Eligible employees include: 
 

a. Those who have completed one (1) full year of service as a regular full-time 
employee  and have received at least a “meets expectations” rating on performance 
appraisals. 

I. Exceptions may apply for training/education requirements of the Head 
Start/Early Head Start Program [HEAD START SPECIFIC] 

b. Those who remain on the active payroll and are performing their job satisfactorily 
through completion of each course may continue to receive education assistance.  

c. Those who have completed and submitted a written request and obtained prior 
approval from the Executive Director. 

d. Those whose training is explicitly authorized by the Executive Director or a funding 
agency. 

 
 The guidelines for reimbursement include courses taken and passed with a grade of “B” 

or better in the course and from an accredited, academic institution.  This will entitle the 
employee to receive reimbursement of tuition only at a designated percentage. 

 
2. Approval for participation in the program and percentage of tuition reimbursed depends 

on availability of funds in the budget and is at the discretion of the Agency.    
 

3. Courses submitted for reimbursement are not to exceed more than two (2) per semester 
or quarter unless otherwise approved by the Executive Director. Reimbursement does 
not take place until course completion and proof of grade is provided to the Executive 
Director. 

 
4. Individual courses or classes that are part of a degree, licensing, or certification program 

must be related to the employee’s current job duties or a foreseeable future position in 
the Agency in order to be eligible for educational assistance.   

 
5. While educational assistance is expected to enhance employee performance and 

professional abilities, CAPCO cannot guarantee that participation in formal education will 
entitle the employee to automatic advancement, a different job assignment, or any pay 
increase.   

 

Board Packet June 2016 85



6. If an employee voluntarily separates from CAPCO employment within three (3) years 
after education assistance payment by the Agency, the employee is required to repay up 
to 100% of the original educational assistance payment.   
 

7. Costs of additional education at an undergraduate or postgraduate college level, 
including that provided at the Agency’s own facilities, will be paid only when the course 
or degree pursued is relative to the field in which the employee is now working or may 
reasonably be expected to work, and are limited to:  

 
a. Tuition charged by the educational institution or, in lieu of tuition, instructors' salaries 

and the related share of indirect costs of the educational institution to the extent that 
the sum thereof is not in excess of the tuition which would have been paid to the 
participating educational institution.  

 
 
 
EMPLOYEE PARTICIPATION IN PROGRAM SERVICES 

Effective Date: June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO employees may participate in programs or services operated by the Agency.  
Employees must meet all program eligibility requirements and are not given priority or 
preferential treatment over other applicants. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees should be advised that the services’ application process may include more 
oversight than usual in order to avoid any appearance of conflict of interest.  Employee 
questions about the process should be directed to Executive Director.   

 
2. All employees are required to pay fees if a program requires a fee for service(s).   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Board Packet June 2016 86



SECTION 4 
 
 
TIMEKEEPING AND PAYROLL 
 
 
HOURS OF WORK 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO maintains work hours in accordance with federal and state regulations and in 
accordance with workload, program participants’ requirements, and the efficient management of 
personnel resources.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The Agency pay period begins 12:00 a.m. Saturday and ends 11:59 p.m. Friday on a bi-
weekly basis. Pay periods are based on the Agency’s pay period and pay date schedule, 
which is made available to all employees. Questions regarding these schedules can be 
answered by your immediate Supervisor. 
 

2. Standard Agency operating hours are 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday. An 
employee’s regular scheduled work hours may vary from standard Agency hours.  
 

3. Employees may be required to work hours different from their regular schedule, such as 
evenings or weekends, depending on the needs of the Agency. 

 
4. Employees receive an unpaid meal period of thirty (30) minutes in length if she/he works 

a shift of more than six hours, which extends over the noon-day meal period. Additional 
meal period times may be provided to employees according to their work schedules, per 
applicable law. 

 
5. Lunches should be taken away from the employees’ work area between the hours of 

11:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. and accommodate staffing needs and operating requirements. 
a. [WIC SPECIFIC]: For WIC scheduled work days that span from 11:00am-

7:00pm, lunch breaks are granted in 30 minute increments to accommodate 
program needs. 

 
6. During the meal break, employees are relieved from duty and are free from interruptions 

except when an emergency arises.  Nonexempt employees are prohibited from 
performing work during the meal period. If a nonexempt employee is unable to take an 
uninterrupted meal break during her/his shift, the employee should notify her/his 
immediate Supervisor, who assigns relief so the meal break can be taken or authorize 
the additional time.  Employees may not work through meal periods without prior 
approval from the Program Director.  

 
7. Nonexempt employees scheduled to attend a meeting, training class, workshop, or 

seminar at the request of the Agency are compensated for the hours of the meeting or 

Board Packet June 2016 87



seminar and the travel time to and from the work site, per Department of Labor 
regulations. 

 
8. The Agency retains the option to determine the mode of transportation for which it pays 

travel time for any given trip.  An employee is not paid for travel time exceeding the time 
required for selected mode of transportation (i.e. driving time).   

 
9. Travel time to and from home is not considered work time and therefore is not paid. 

 
10. Exempt employees that attend a meeting or class will not receive additional 

compensation. 
 
 
 
OVERTIME 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO maintains work hours in accordance with federal and state regulations and in 
accordance with workload, program participants’ requirements, and the efficient management of 
personnel resources.  In order to meet client needs, it may be necessary for employees to work 
hours in addition to their normal work schedule. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Immediate Supervisors must approve any deviations from regularly scheduled work 
hours in advance.   
 

2. Program Directors must approve all overtime hours in advance and initial employees’ 
time card/activity reports.  Disciplinary action may be taken when a non-exempt 
employee works overtime without obtaining prior approval, refuses to work required 
overtime as requested by the Agency, or failure to record time (including overtime) 
worked. 
 

3. Nonexempt employees will be paid at one and one-half times their regular rate of pay for 
actual hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a workweek.  When calculating overtime, 
only actual time worked is used.  Training and eligible travel time may be counted as 
time paid in the calculation of overtime. Paid time off for holidays, annual leave, personal 
leave, sick time or any other form of paid time off for hours not actually worked is not 
considered time worked for purposes of overtime.  

 
 
 
TIMEKEEPING 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 

Board Packet June 2016 88



 
Federal and state law and regulations require CAPCO to maintain accurate records of all time 
worked by employees.  Employees must record all time actually spent on the job performing 
assigned duties or other work-related projects.  
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. New employees receive training during orientation on procedures for completing time 
sheets/personal activity reports (PAR).   

 
2. All employees must accurately record the following daily: 
 

• Beginning and ending work time. 
• Beginning and ending of each unpaid meal period. 
• Beginning and ending time of any split shift or other personal departures from work. 
• Approved time-off (annual, personal, sick holiday, jury, etc.). 

 
3. Employees are responsible for recording and verifying their own time worked.  

Tampering, altering, or falsifying time records or recording time on another employee’s 
time sheet is not allowed and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
suspension/termination.  Under no circumstances is an employee allowed to record time 
for another employee. 

 
4. Employees who are late to work should record the time they actually started work.  

Lateness may be reflected in paychecks in accordance with applicable law.  Excessive 
tardiness may be cause for disciplinary action (see Policy on Attendance). 
 

 
5. Time sheets/activity reports must be submitted to an employee’s immediate Supervisor 

by the end of a pay period at the specified time designated by the employee’s 
associated program or immediate Supervisor. It is the responsibility of the employee to 
submit the time sheet/activity report on schedule to her/his immediate Supervisor. 
 

6. Supervisors must submit reviewed, approved, and signed timesheets to the CAPCO 
Fiscal Office no later than 12:00 p.m. noon on the Monday of a payroll week.  
 

7. On occasion, the due date of timesheets may be affected by holidays. Specifics will be 
communicated to employees and Supervisors in advance. 
 

8. Failure to timely submit a timesheet, either on the part of the employee or the 
Supervisor, may result in disciplinary action as well as the employee not receiving pay 
for time worked on the scheduled and corresponding pay date.  

 
9. It is the employees’ responsibility to sign time sheets/PARs to certify the accuracy of all 

time recorded.  The immediate Supervisor reviews and initials the time sheets/PARs 
before they are submitted and processed for payroll.  In addition, if corrections or 
modifications are made to the time sheets/PARs, both the employee and the immediate 
Supervisor must verify the accuracy of the changes by initialing the time sheets/PARs. 

 
10. Any exceptions to the above procedures must be approved by the Fiscal Director. 

Board Packet June 2016 89



 
PAYCHECK DISTRIBUTION  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO is committed to maintaining appropriate control regarding the security and distribution 
of employee paychecks. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees receive paychecks or direct deposit vouchers on a bi-weekly basis. You will 
be paid biweekly on Friday for the period that ends the previous Friday. When a payday 
is a holiday, you normally will be paid on the last working day before the holiday. 

 
2. Payroll checks may be electronically deposited to an account at a financial institution 

that the employee designates.  Employees are responsible for notifying the Human 
Resource Director of any change in banks or bank accounts to ensure the proper direct 
deposit of payroll to the employee’s account.   

 
3. Employees who do not have direct deposit may pick up paychecks at the CAPCO Main 

Office on paydays during the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. For security reasons, 
paychecks are only released to the individual whose name appears on the check and 
identification and a signature are required.  All remaining paychecks are mailed to the 
address on record after 3:00 p.m. on the pay date.  Employees are responsible for 
keeping their mailing addresses current.  

 
4. Notify the Human Resource Director immediately if a paycheck is lost, stolen, or 

destroyed.  If the check has not been negotiated, a duplicate check is issued to the 
employee, but the employee may be responsible for any stop payment charges 
assessed by the banking institution. 

 
 
 
WAGE AND SALARY ADMINISTRATION 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE /POLICY 
 
Being responsive to market influences and federal and state prevailing wage requirements, 
CAPCO strives to recruit and retain highly qualified individuals.  Equitable and compliant wage 
and salary administration not only recognizes different levels of experience, qualifications, and 
performance among employees, but also provides financial incentive for employees at all levels 
of the Agency.  
 
PROCEDURE  
 

Board Packet June 2016 90



1. Employees receive fair and equitable compensation not to exceed salaries for similar 
positions in the community and human services industry. Employees do not receive less 
than minimum wage.   
 

2. Suggested salary increases guidelines must be approved by the Program Director and 
the Executive Director.  

 
3. Employees may receive wage/salary adjustment based on the following situations: 

 
a. Workload or job responsibilities adjustment 

 
• Adjustment for substantial, documented reassignments or changes in the 

duties/responsibilities within the same position may be initiated after consultation 
with the Program Director. 

 
b. Change in position 

 
• An employee who moves from one position to another will be considered for a 

pay rate adjustment based on the established pay rate for the position, market 
research, and an employee’s experience/qualifications for the new position. 

 
• Employees whose current salary is already within the pay range for the higher 

level position may be granted a salary increase dependent upon the availability 
of funds, internal equity, and other pertinent factors.  

 
c. Merit increases 

 
• Increases are based on level of performance identified through documentation, 

including an outstanding appraisal. 
 

4. All salaries including any adjustments are recorded in a wage compensation schedule 
and updated accordingly. 
 

5. Employees who receive a pay rate adjustment must sign-off on a Notice and 
Acknowledgement of Pay Rate and Payday acknowledging the change in pay rate. 
 

Incentive Compensation 
 
Contingent upon available funding, each program may assert the option of distributing additional 
pays. A pay distribution may be allocated on a fair and consistent basis to all regular status 
program employees and is not based on performance evaluations. Additional pays can be 
allocated on a pro-rated basis for employees hired during the program year. Any incentive 
payments must be approved by the Executive Director and the Board of Directors. 
 
 
Cost of Living Increase (COLA):  
 

1. Cost of living increases are determined by funding agency guidelines.   
 

Board Packet June 2016 91



2. Cost of living increases, when given, are given as soon as administratively possible 
upon being awarded by the funding source. 

 
3. Employees who receive a salary increase as a result of a promotion or change in job 

responsibilities within the current grant/contract year corresponding to the COLA may 
not receive a cost of living increase. 
 

4. Cost of living allowances, if any, are determined annually and are subject to the approval 
of the Board of Directors.  Cost of living allowances, including retroactive COLAs, are 
only paid to actively employed staff. 

 
 
 
PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO makes paycheck deductions from employee paychecks according to various laws and 
to pay for employee elected benefits.  Various federal and state laws require CAPCO to make 
deductions for federal, state, and local income taxes and payments, as well as social security.  
In addition, eligible employees may voluntarily authorize deductions from their paychecks to 
cover contributions to the 401(K) Savings plan, health insurance, supplemental life insurance, 
etc.  
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Mandatory deductions and wage attachments that are required by law are automatically 
made from all paychecks issued by CAPCO.  These deductions may change as they are 
affected by changes in the amount earned, legislation, and the number of dependents 
declared. 

 
2. Employees desiring to change the amount withheld for taxes may submit a revised form 

to the Human Resource Director. 
  
3. Additional deductions the Agency is authorized to make, or which are required by law 

(e.g., garnishments, child support), are automatically deducted and will not be stopped 
until proper documentation has been received.  

 
4. Court orders, wage deduction summonses, tax levies, and other similar orders against 

an employee should be immediately forwarded to the Human Resource Director. 
 

5. The Human Resource Director will: 
 

a. Notify the employee of the legal action being taken against her/him. 
b. Provide the employee with a copy of the official court order or tax levy. 
c. Inform the employee of the dates the garnishment will be deducted from the 

employee’s paycheck. 

Board Packet June 2016 92



d. Advise the employee of her/his rights under the Consumer Credit Protection Act 
(CCPA). 

 
6. In the event that garnishment or similar proceedings are instituted against an employee, 

the Agency deducts and remits the required amount from the employee’s paycheck in 
accordance with CCPA guidelines. 

 
7. An employee may not be terminated for having a garnishment served against her/him.  

 
 
 
TRAVEL/EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO advances and/or reimburses employees for actual and necessary travel and other 
expenses incurred while conducting Agency business.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees required to travel for business must obtain advance approval from the 
applicable Program Director and/or Executive Director. 
 

2. Funds will be advanced for upcoming travel only upon receipt of a completed and 
properly approved travel authorization form. Overnight travel status for staff must be 
authorized on an “Out of Town Travel authorization/advance form” in advance by the 
appropriate Program Director or her/his designee and the Executive Director. Advances 
will be allowed within one week prior to the date of travel. 
 

3. All requests for out of town travel for Program Directors must be approved by the 
Executive Director or her/his designee. 

 
4. CAPCO reimburses employees for reasonable meal, transportation, lodging, and 

incidental expenses actually incurred (or per diem rates) while traveling for business 
purposes.  Employees are expected to limit expenses to reasonable amounts and within 
the standard per diem rates based on locality, published in the federal per diem rate 
chart. If locality is not listed, the Continental U.S. (CONUS) rate will be used. The 
Agency follows IRS polices for per diem rates for meals and incidentals based on the 
number of days the travel will cover. These rates are updated annually by the IRS and 
will be adjusted by the Agency accordingly. 
 

5. In the event that meal(s) are covered by someone other than the traveler, (included in 
conference etc.) then the per diem amount for the meal must be deducted from the daily 
allowance. 

 
6. CAPCO does not reimburse for personal activities while traveling or other expenses 

such as entertainment, dry cleaning, etc.   
 

Board Packet June 2016 93



7. Employees must submit a travel expense report within fourteen (14) days of completion 
of travel in order to receive reimbursement.  Expenses are paid to the employees on the 
next regularly scheduled date reimbursement checks are cut following receipt of the 
request.   
 

8. Employees sign an agreement form to repay advances where receipts are not submitted 
within fourteen (14) days or the amount will be deducted from their pay. The Agency 
does not require the return of receipts if the per diem rate is used for travel advances for 
means and incidentals. 

 
9. Mileage is reimbursed at the approved Agency rate based on the prevailing IRS rate 

(which encompasses expenses for general maintenance, insurance, gas, oil, etc.) for 
travel other than to and from the employee’s residence and regular work site and 
includes: 

 
a. Travel from an employee’s residence to a different meeting site (or returns) further 

than the regular work site, in which case only the additional mileage is reimbursed.  If 
the mileage is less, no reimbursement will be made.   

b. Travel from the regular work site to a different site of official business and 
subsequent return to the regular work site is reimbursable for the mileage in both 
directions. 

c. There is no advance given for mileage reimbursement. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 94



 
SECTION 5 

 
 
EMPLOYEE CONDUCT 
 
 
SAFETY 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
To provide employees with a safe place to work, CAPCO operates as safely as possible in 
accordance with the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and other 
applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The Human Resource Director is responsible for establishing and communicating all 
safety policies and procedures including, but not limited to:   

 
a. Inspecting work areas. 
b. Training employees in health and safety matters, and ensuring that all staff and 

volunteers can demonstrate safety practices. 
c. Maintaining safe practices in work areas.  
d. Identifying unsafe conditions and eliminating any possible hazards present.  
e. Investigating all accidents immediately.   

 
2. All employee safety and/or health-related inspections, accidents, or incidents must be 

reported to the Human Resource Director immediately.   
 
3. Each employee, as a condition of continuing employment, is required to work safely, to 

observe all safety rules and regulations, to wear required safety equipment, and to 
perform her/his job in a manner to avoid accidents and injury to others. 

 
4. A list of emergency telephone numbers that is readily accessible to employees is posted 

at CAPCO facilities. 
 

5. The Human Resource Director completes, submits, and maintains records and reports in 
accordance with established OSHA and the Department of Labor requirements 
including:  

 
a. A log of all recordable occupational injuries. 
b. Information and services with the insurance carrier.     

 
6. CAPCO promotes safety awareness among children and parents by incorporating it into 

child and parent activities as well as in interactions with all clients served. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 95



7. CAPCO maintains readily available, well-supplied first aid kits appropriate for the ages 
served.  The first aid kits are maintained at each location and available on outings away 
from the site.  Each kit is accessible to staff members at all times and is kept out of the 
reach of children. 

 
 
 
VEHICLE USE POLICY 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
Employees in certain positions may be required to drive CAPCO or personal vehicles to conduct 
business on behalf of CAPCO. Employees must operate vehicles in a safe and responsible 
manner, and in compliance with all motor vehicle and traffic laws. 
.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 
Driver’s License 
 

1. Any employee who drives a CAPCO or personal vehicle to conduct Agency 
business must possess a valid driver’s license that is free from major infractions 
and meets Agency safety standards at the time of hire and throughout 
employment. 
 

2. Following a conditional offer of employment, the Agency will conduct Motor 
Vehicle Record (MVR) checks of final applicants and employees who apply for 
positions that explicitly or may involve driving. 

 
 

3. A MVR check will occur on an annual basis, or more or less frequently based on 
the business needs of the Agency, for all current employees whose positions 
may require the use of a vehicle to perform their job duties. All requests for 
information regarding an applicant’s or employee’s motor vehicle record or 
background will be in compliance with the Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA). 
 

4. Employees who drive on Agency business must immediately notify their 
Supervisor of any moving violations or license suspension or revocation during 
working or nonworking hours. 

 
5. An employee is not allowed to drive on Agency business with a suspended or 

revoked license. The employee is responsible for paying the cost of any traffic or 
parking tickets, moving violations, or fines that result from driving on Agency 
business. 

 
6. If an employee’s Agency driving privilege is suspended and that employee’s 

position requires regular use of a vehicle in order to perform her/his job duties, 
the employee will either be reassigned to another comparable position if 

Board Packet June 2016 96



available, or he/she will be terminated for being unable to perform the duties of 
her/his job. 

 
Use of Personal Vehicles for Agency Business 
 

1. There may be times when an employee is asked to use her/his personal vehicle 
for Agency business purposes. An employee who drives a personal vehicle to 
conduct Agency business must provide proof of acceptable auto liability 
insurance (for both bodily injury and property damage). If an employee’s liability 
insurance lapses, the employee’s Supervisor must be notified immediately. 
 

2. CAPCO does not assume any liability for injury to the public caused by the 
negligence of an employee who is driving a personal vehicle in the course of 
Agency business. 

 
3. CAPCO is not responsible for any damage to an employee’s personal vehicle or 

loss or damage to personal property contained within the vehicle. 
 

4. In the event CAPCO is brought into a lawsuit involving an automobile accident 
caused by an employee, the employee’s personal insurance coverage will 
provide protection for the employee and the Agency, followed secondarily by the 
Agency’s insurance program. 

 
Use of Agency Vehicles 
 

1. Agency-provided vehicles may be assigned to employees for the purpose of 
conducting Agency business. Only authorized employees are allowed to drive 
Agency vehicles. Agency vehicles should be used only for authorized CAPCO 
business and may not be used for personal use or to transport unauthorized 
individuals or materials. 
 

2. An employee is not permitted to transport program participants in an Agency 
vehicle unless they are conducting authorized Agency business. If transporting a 
program participant under the age of 18 without the parent or legal guardian, 
written consent must be obtained from the parent or legal guardian prior to 
providing transportation. 

 
A. [HEAD START SPECIFIC]: At least two (2) staff members must be in the 

vehicle when transporting any number of program participants. 
 

3. At no time are there to be riders in an Agency vehicle except authorized program 
participants and Agency staff. Unauthorized riders include, but are not limited to 
family members, friends, etc. 

 
4. Operators of CAPCO vehicles are responsible for the safe operation and 

cleanliness of the vehicle and obeying all state traffic laws. Papers and garbage 
are to be removed from the vehicle at the end of each usage. 

 
5. Smoking is prohibited in CAPCO vehicles. Vehicles should be maintained in a 

safe and secure condition when not in use. Any employee found to be smoking in 

Board Packet June 2016 97



an Agency vehicle will result in a minimal three (3) day suspension without pay 
and will be subject to additional disciplinary action.  

 
6. It is the employee’s responsibility to notify the appropriate Program Director when 

an Agency vehicle is in need of maintenance or repair work.  
 

7. Accidents involving a CAPCO vehicle must be reported to your immediate 
Supervisor and Program Director immediately. They are responsible for reporting 
it immediately to the Executive Director or Fiscal Director. 

 
Vehicle Safety Regulations 
 

1. The use of safety belts is mandatory for operators and all passengers of CAPCO 
vehicles and employees driving personal vehicles on CAPCO business. The 
driver is responsible for the ensuring passengers wear their safety belts. 
  

2. In accordance with New York State regulation, an employee is not allowed to 
make or receive calls or messages on a cell phone while operating a vehicle 
unless a headset or hands-free device is used. Cell phone calls and messages 
should be made when the vehicle is parked. It is illegal for drivers to use 
handheld portable electronic devices while their vehicle of operation is in motion. 
This includes a hand-held mobile telephone, laptop computer, pager, broadband 
personal communication device, two-way messaging device, electronic game, or 
portable computing device.  

 
3. Employees must not operate a vehicle, personal or Agency provided, at any time 

when her/his ability to do so is impaired, affected, influenced by alcohol, illegal 
drugs, prescribed or over-the-counter medications, illness, fatigue, or injury.  

 
4. Employees who drive Agency vehicles must become familiar with the vehicle 

before driving. Employees should check the glove box to make sure the 
registration and insurance cards are available. Driver Vehicle Check Lists and 
log-sheets found in Agency vehicles must be filled out before and after the usage 
of an Agency vehicle.  

 
5. Each CAPCO vehicle must have an updated insurance card in the glove 

compartment at all times. Please be sure that all employees using CAPCO 
vehicles know where to locate the card. Also, all CAPCO employees using 
CAPCO vehicles must carry a valid NYS Driver’s license.  

 
In Case of an Accident 
 

1. Find the closest point to move your car off the road if possible.  

2. Notify the police, even if there appears to be no injuries or damage to the 
vehicles. 
 

3. Call medical aid if necessary. 

Board Packet June 2016 98



4. Remain at the scene unless there is danger, such as a fuel spill. If you must 
move away from your car, keep it in sight, so that you will see when the police or 
emergency vehicles arrive. 
  

5. If this information can be obtained safely, record names, address of driver, 
witnesses and occupants of other vehicles and any medical personnel who may 
arrive on the scene. Obtain the license plate number of the other vehicles 
involved, insurance company names, date and time of the accident.  

 
6. Note the weather and road conditions. One or both could have contributed to the 

accident, potentially affecting CAPCO's insurance and whether you are ticketed 
or charged with a crime.  

7. Under no circumstance should an employee risk his or her own safety, or the 
safety of any passengers or witnesses to obtain the information listed above. If 
the other party or parties involved appear threatening in any way, stay in your 
vehicle if you can safely do so, and wait for law enforcement. If you cannot 
remain in your vehicle, maintain a safe distance from the threatening parties and 
wait for law enforcement. 

8. Do not discuss the accident with anyone at the scene except law enforcement 
officers. No statements should be shared with anyone other than the law 
enforcement officers. Do not accept any responsibility for the accident. Do not 
argue with anyone. 

9. Employees must notify their Supervisor or the Executive Director of any accident, 
theft, or damage involving an Agency vehicle or personal vehicle being used for 
Agency business. Notification must happen as soon as practical, but no later the 
24 hours following the incident. 

10. As soon as all the above steps are taken, immediately report back to the office to 
begin the claim process. Any delay in notifying the Agency could affect the 
amount of the claim.  

 
 
 
HYGIENE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO promotes a safe and clean environment, including hygiene.  Personal hygiene and 
good grooming are expected at all times.  All staff and volunteers are required to follow the 
hygiene guidelines specified below which includes sanitation and safety. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees, volunteers, and children must wash their hands with soap and running water 
(at a minimum):  

Board Packet June 2016 99



 
a. After diapering or toilet use. 
b. Before food preparation, handling, consumption, or any other food-related activity 

(e.g., setting the table). 
c. Whenever hands are contaminated with blood or other bodily fluids. 
d. After handling pets or other animals. 
e. Before and after giving medications. 
f. Before and after treating or bandaging a wound. 
g. After assisting a child with toilet use.  

 
2. Nonporous (e.g., latex or similar) gloves must be worn by employees and volunteers 

when they are in contact with spills of blood or other visibly bloody bodily fluids. 
 

3. Spills of bodily fluids (e.g., urine, feces, blood, saliva, nasal discharge, eye discharge, or 
any fluid discharge) must be cleaned and disinfected immediately in keeping with 
professionally established guidelines (e.g., standards of the Occupational Safety Health 
Administration, U.S. Department of Labor).  Any tools and equipment used to clean spills 
of bodily fluids must be cleaned and disinfected immediately.  Other blood-contaminated 
materials must be disposed of in a plastic bag with a secure tie. 

 
4. Employees and volunteers must follow and conduct all sanitation and hygiene 

procedures for diapering to ensure the adequate protection of the health and safety of 
children.  

 
5. Cribs and cots must be at least three (3) feet apart to avoid spreading contagious illness 

and to allow for easy access to each child.  
 
 
 
DRESS POLICY AND APPEARANCE 

Effective Date: June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO employees are required to present a positive image to the public and clients.  
Accordingly, each employee is required to wear appropriate attire for the work being performed.  
Appropriate dress is defined below, although job and work location should be taken into account 
as well. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. At all times appearance is neat, clean, and professional.  Employees with community and 
client contact are expected to wear appropriate attire. 

 
2. An employee’s immediate Supervisor, working with the Human Resource Director, is 

responsible for monitoring the dress policy. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 100



3. Employees working in administrative office positions are expected to dress business 
casual while conducting CAPCO business. Business casual dress includes items such 
as: 

 
a. Blazers and sport coats 
b. Casual dresses (appropriate cut and length for the Agency environment) 
c. Skirts (appropriate cut and length for our business environment) 
d. Shirts (oxford, polo, blouses, button-down, turtleneck) 
e. Sweaters  
f. Slacks 
g. Loafers, dress shoes, flats  

 
4. Dress which is not acceptable, regardless of position, includes items such as: 

 
a. Form fitting stretch clothing (spandex, lycra, etc.) 
b. Sweat pants/sweat suits/jogging suits/warm-up suits 
c. Tank tops/halter tops/low-cut tops/cropped tops/spaghetti strap tops/shorts 
d. Any clothing that shows or allows to be visible under garments 
e. Torn, worn, or frayed clothing* 

*This standard (standard “e”) may be different for employees whose 
primary job function is construction or maintenance. Employees working 
in construction or maintenance jobs must clarify with their supervisor 
acceptable standards of “torn, worn, or frayed clothing”.  

 
5. Clothing that contains derogatory, discriminatory or offensive graphics or messages are 

not permitted in the workplace or outside the workplace while conducting business. 
 

6. Employees are prohibited from wearing excessive fragrances as others may be sensitive 
or allergic.  
 

7. If an employee/volunteer is inappropriately dressed or groomed, she/he is instructed to 
go home, make necessary changes, and to return to work in a reasonable amount of 
time.  This time will not be compensated.  Any questions regarding what is or is not 
appropriate attire at the agency should be directed to the Human Resource Director. 
 

[HEAD START SPECIFIC] 
 
Performance Objective: In addition to the Agency’s Dress and Appearance Policy, the 
following dress code is REQUIRED for CAPCO Head Start/Early Head Start staff and anyone 
volunteering in a Head Start center. It is strongly recommended for any adult visiting CAPCO 
Head Start/Early Head Start classroom. 
 
Operational Procedures: 
 
Adults must wear shirts and/or blouses (depending on your location). Shirts/blouses which show 
the torso, stomach, cleavage, or midriff are NOT ALLOWED. If you show up to work with 
clothing that is not allowed, you will be asked to leave for home, change your clothes, and report 
back to work. Employees working with children and/or going to the playground must wear shoes 
that are appropriate to maintain professionalism and the safety of themselves, colleagues, and 

Board Packet June 2016 101



program participants. Adults may not wear short shorts, miniskirts/dresses. Undergarments 
must not be visible. Adults may not wear any clothing, jewelry or other insignia that: 
 
 Advocates or encourages the use or abuse of drugs, tobacco, or alcohol. 
 Expresses or advocates prejudice or discrimination against people based on race, 

ethnicity, gender, religion, national origin, or sexual orientation. 
 Advocates or encourages illegal activity. 
 Clothing which has been deemed by local law enforcement or other experts to be gang 

related. 
 
Identification Badges 

 
Employees will be issued an identification badge upon hire. Employees must wear identification 
badges where it can be seen at all times when working. Badges are to be returned upon 
termination of employment. 
 
 
 
GENERAL HOUSEKEEPING 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO promotes a neat, clean, and orderly work area that contributes to efficiency and creates 
a good impression for those served. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees are encouraged to keep beverages in lidded containers to avoid accidental 
spills that may damage office equipment or other work materials.   

 
2. Empty soda cans, coffee cups, and food containers are to be kept to a minimum for 

health and safety purposes. 
 

3. Personal items brought into the work area should not overwhelm employees’ desks or 
otherwise create a work hazard. 
 

4. Space heaters and other electrical equipment must be pre-approved prior to use to 
prevent work place hazards. 
 

5. Music and sound devices should only be utilized in a non-disruptive manner to those 
around you including other employees and those served.  Headphones are permitted 
with prior approval from an employee’s immediate Supervisor, and when they do not 
impact the employee’s ability to fulfill her/his duties or jeopardize the safety of the 
employee or other (i.e. reception). 

 
 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 102



SECURITY/INSPECTION  
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO has the right to use and inspect all Agency equipment and property. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Operations often require others to have access to work areas, desks, files, or 
computers.  .  Authorized individuals may have access and business needs to retrieve 
information on Agency-provided voicemail and e-mail systems.  As such, employees 
should not maintain any expectation of privacy to such equipment or systems. 

 
2. All Agency equipment and property are provided for business purposes.  Management 

has the right to access and inspect them.   
 

3. Security concerns may warrant inspection of a facility and any personal property on 
the premises, including vehicles, purses, backpacks, lunch containers, and other 
items. 

 
 
 
WORKPLACE ACTIVITY MONITORING 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO maintains the right to conduct workplace monitoring for the purposes of quality control, 
employee safety, security, and the satisfaction of those serviced by CAPCO.  CAPCO is 
sensitive to the legitimate privacy rights of staff, volunteers, and those served.  Every effort will 
be made to conduct workplace monitoring in an ethical and respectful manner. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees who regularly communicate with those served by CAPCO may have their 
telephone conversations monitored or recorded.  Telephone monitoring is used to 
identify positive interactions and to collect and correct performance problems through 
targeted training. 

 
2. CAPCO may conduct video surveillance of non-private workplace areas.  Video 

monitoring is used to identify safety concerns, maintain quality control, detect theft and 
misconduct, and discourage or prevent acts of harassment and workplace violence.  

 
3. Employees can request access to information gathered through workplace monitoring 

that may impact employment decisions.  Access will be granted unless there is a 
legitimate business reason to protect confidentiality or an ongoing investigation. 

 
 

Board Packet June 2016 103



 
SAFE ENVIRONMENT 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
To maintain a safe work environment and prevent workplace violence, CAPCO does not tolerate 
acts of workplace violence committed by or against employees and/or all persons involved in 
the CAPCO’s operation.  Employees are prohibited from making threats or engaging in violent 
acts.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. All employees, volunteers, and community members should be treated with courtesy and 
respect at all times.  Employees are expected to refrain from fighting, horseplay, or other 
conduct that may alarm or be dangerous to others. 

 
2. All threats of violence, or violent acts, whether direct or indirect, should be reported 

immediately to an employee’s immediate Supervisor, Program Director, and the Human 
Resource Director.  This includes threats or stalking by employees, clients, community 
members, vendors, solicitors, or other members of the public.  The employee’s 
immediate Supervisor, Program Director, and Human Resource Director should attempt 
to obtain the most specific and detailed information as possible from the affected 
individual. 
 

3. The Human Resource Director, working with the Executive Director and applicable 
Program Director, determines whether threats of physical violence will be reported to 
Law Enforcement.  

 
4. All suspicious individuals or activities should be reported as soon as possible to an 

employee’s immediate Supervisor.    
 

5. Conduct that threatens, intimidates, or coerces another employee, parent, child, or 
member of the public at any time, including off-duty periods, is not tolerated.  This 
prohibition includes all acts of harassment (refer to Harassment Policy).   

 
6. CAPCO thoroughly and promptly investigates all reports of threats of violence, actual 

violence, or suspicious individuals and activities. 
 

7. Anyone determined to be responsible for threats of or actual violence or other conduct is 
in violation of these guidelines and is subject to prompt disciplinary actions up to and 
including suspension/termination and/or legal action as appropriate. 

 
8. CAPCO will investigate disputes or differences among employees that are reported by 

an employee to the Human Resources Director.  Such disputes or differences should be 
reported to the Human Resource Director before the situation escalates into potential 
violence.  The Agency is eager to assist in the resolution of employee disputes and does 
not retaliate against employees for raising bona fide concerns.   

 

Board Packet June 2016 104



9. Dangerous or hazardous devices or substances are prohibited on the premises. 
 
 
WEAPONS 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO strictly prohibits firearms and weapons on the Agency’s owned, leased or rented 
property.  Employees are also strictly prohibited from carrying firearms, knives, or other 
weapons while they are in the course of their employment, regardless of whether they are on 
the Agency’s property or at a location where firearms or weapons are otherwise allowed.  This 
restriction during the course of employment applies to all employees, and includes any location 
where the Agency’s service is conducted. 
 
This policy does not pertain to authorized security or law enforcement personnel. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Any employees in violation of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including suspension/termination and/or legal action as appropriate. 

 
2. All employees must report the presence of weapons and incidents of threats or acts of 

physical violence of which they are aware.  The report should be made to their 
immediate Supervisor, Program Director, and the Human Resource Director. 

 
 
 
SMOKING/TOBACCO USAGE 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO programs and services will be conducted in a tobacco-free environment in order to 
promote wellness and maintain a safe, healthy, and efficient work environment.  This policy 
applies to all persons in CAPCO facilities. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. No one may use tobacco anywhere on CAPCO’s premises at any time.  There are no 
designated smoking or tobacco areas.  

 
2. Employees who want to use tobacco during work hours must leave the premises 

(building and property) during designated unpaid meal periods and be off CAPCO 
property at least twenty (20) feet from any building entrance. 

 
3. Any employees in violation of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and 

including suspension/termination. 

Board Packet June 2016 105



DRUG AND ALCOHOL USE 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO ensures the health and safety of others in accordance with the Drug Free Workplace 
Act of 1988 and is committed to providing employees with a work environment that is free of the 
problems associated with the unlawful and possession of illegal drugs and alcohol. 
 
Illegal drugs include all controlled substances under federal or state law not prescribed for 
current personal treatment by a licensed medical professional and all other substances not 
prescribed for the employee by a licensed medical professional whose use is capable of 
creating adverse effects on a person’s physical, emotional or mental state, including, but not 
limited to, all types of narcotics, hallucinogens, depressants and stimulants.  “Controlled 
substances” are defined as those drugs listed in Schedules I through V of Section 202 of the 
federal Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. 812, and include but are not limited to marijuana, 
cocaine (including “crack” and other cocaine derivatives), morphine, codeine, phenobarbital, 
heroin, amphetamines, and many barbiturates.   
 
All employees are prohibited from using, selling, purchasing, dispensing, distributing, 
possessing or manufacturing alcohol or illegal drugs, or attempting to do any such act, on 
CAPCO’s property, including in CAPCO’s vehicles, or during working hours, and from reporting 
to work or performing any work with alcohol or illegal drugs in their system. 
 
Further prohibited is the use, sale, possession, distribution, dispensation, formulation, 
manufacture or transfer of illegal drugs on non-working time to the extent such conduct impairs 
an employee’s ability to perform his/her job or affects the reputation of CAPCO to the general 
public or threatens its integrity. 
 
Any employees in violation of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
suspension/termination and/or legal action as appropriate. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Employees are required to notify their immediate Supervisor and the Human Resource 
Director of any criminal conviction under a drug or alcohol statute for a violation 
occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such conviction.   

 
2. CAPCO maintains a drug and alcohol free awareness program to inform employees 

about: 
 

a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace. 
b. CAPCO’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace. 
c. Availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation, and Employee Assistance Program 

(EAP). 
 

3. Employees who have a problem with the use of controlled substances are encouraged 
to seek professional advice and assistance.  One source of assistance may be a drug 
rehabilitation program acquired through a health insurance provider or an Employee 

Board Packet June 2016 106



Assistance Program.  [mm8]Participation in the rehabilitation program is confidential and is 
encouraged by CAPCO; however, it does not preclude normal disciplinary action or 
relieve an employee of responsibility for performing assigned duties.  

 
4. An employee with a drug or alcohol problem that has not resulted in, and is not the 

immediate subject of, disciplinary action may request approval to take unpaid time off to 
participate in a rehabilitation or treatment program under CAPCO’s health insurance 
benefit coverage or another legitimately recognized rehabilitation program.  Leave may 
be granted if the employee agrees to abstain from use of the problem substance; abides 
by all policies, rules, and prohibitions relating to conduct in the workplace; and such 
leave will not cause CAPCO undue hardship. 

 
5. The legal use of controlled substances prescribed by a licensed medical practitioner is 

permitted and is not considered a violation of this policy so long as it does not impair the 
employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of the job effectively and in a safe 
manner that does not endanger persons involved at CAPCO.  [mm9]If you are taking 
drugs prescribed by a licensed medical practitioner which affects your ability to safely 
perform your job, you must obtain a written statement from the prescribing medical 
practitioner specifying any work restrictions.  This statement should be given to the 
Human Resources Director prior to you starting work under the influence of such 
drug(s).  Employees who are taking any over-the-counter medication that may impair 
performance or effect judgment so as to place the employee or others at risk of injury 
should inform the Human Resources Director. 

 
6. CAPCO has the right to require blood and/or urine samples in any of the following 

situations: 
 

a. CAPCO has reasonable suspicion that an employee's behavior is being influenced 
by one or more illegal drugs, alcohol, or misuse of a controlled substance. 

 
7. Employees refusing to submit to a test or testing positive for drugs or alcohol is subject 

to disciplinary action up to and including suspension/termination.   
 

8. Any employee testing positive has the right to appeal the results and have the original 
sample retested at her/his own expense.  If the test again indicates a positive result, 
CAPCO may take disciplinary action up to and including immediate 
suspension/termination.   

 
 
 
FIRE SAFETY/PREVENTION 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO maintains a safe environment through fire prevention and communicating appropriate 
procedures for all persons to follow in case a fire should occur within CAPCO buildings.  
 
PROCEDURES 

Board Packet June 2016 107



 
Fire Prevention: 
 

1. Know the location of the nearest fire extinguishers and ensure they are kept accessible 
at all times.  

 
2. Notify the Human Resource Director if an extinguisher is used or if the seal is broken.  

Extinguishers rated A, B, or C can be used for paper, wood, or electrical fires.  
 

3. All flammable liquids must be stored in approved and appropriately labeled safety cans 
and not exposed to any ignition source. 

 
In Case of Fire: 
 

1. If the fire is small and contained, locate the nearest fire extinguisher.  This should only 
be attempted by employees who are knowledgeable in the correct use of fire 
extinguishers. 

 
2. Dial 911 or the local fire department if necessary. 

 
3. If possible, immediately contact your immediate Supervisor.  Evacuate all people from 

the area.  Assist clients and vulnerable people to evacuate. 
 

4. If the fire is out of control, leave the area immediately.  No attempt should be made to 
fight the fire. 

 
5. Proceed in an orderly fashion to a predetermined location near the building.  Be present 

and accounted for during roll call. 
 

6. When the fire department arrives, direct the crew to the fire.  Do not re-enter the building 
until directed to do so by the fire department. 

 
Emergency Evacuation: 
 

1. Stop all work immediately. 
 

2. Contact outside emergency response agencies, if needed. 
 

3. Shut off all electrical equipment and machines, if possible. 
 

4. Assist clients and vulnerable persons in the area to evacuate. 
 

5. Walk to the nearest exit, including emergency exit doors. 
 

6. Exit quickly, but do not run.  Do not stop for personal belongings. 
 

7. Proceed in an orderly fashion to a parking lot near the building.  Be present and 
accounted for during roll call. 

 
8. Do not re-enter the building until instructed to do so. 

Board Packet June 2016 108



ELECTRONIC MEDIA USE  
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
All persons with access to CAPCPO-provided Internet, intranet, and e-mail systems are 
responsible for seeing that they are used properly and in accordance with this policy.  Questions 
concerning the policy should be directed to the Assistant Director and/or Human Resource 
Director.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. CAPCO’s internet, intranet, and e-mail systems (referred to as “electronic media 
systems”) are provided for business purposes.  Conducting personal business, including 
accessing social media, should be limited to non-working time, such as lunch breaks and 
before or after work.  Employees may not engage in personal uses of CAPCO’s 
electronic media systems during working time, which, for purposes of this policy, means 
time that the employee is or should be engaged in performing his/her work tasks for the 
Agency. 

 
2. Employees using the Agency’s electronic media systems are expected to comply with all 

Agency Policies and Procedures.  At no time should any subject matter of a sexual or 
violent nature be viewed, printed, or distributed. 
 

3. The Agency may block Internet sites or protocols that the Agency deems to be 
inappropriate or may contain the risk of harmful or malicious programs.  A site that is not 
blocked should not necessarily be considered acceptable.  Employees must immediately 
leave inappropriate sites they encounter. 

 
4. There is no personal privacy in any material created, received, or sent from the Internet 

or e-mail system.  CAPCO, at its discretion, reserves the right to monitor and access any 
matter created in, received through, or sent from the Internet or e-mail system. 

 
5. Messages sent during working hours should be sent only with good business reason for 

doing so.  Copies should be forwarded only for good business reasons. 
 

6. Each employee is responsible for the messages that are sent from her/his account.  
Employees with e-mail passwords should not share their passwords with anyone.  
Passwords are to be kept strictly confidential. 
 

7. Sending e-mail messages under an assumed name or obscuring the origin of an e-mail 
message sent or received without authorization by the Executive Director is strictly 
prohibited. 

 
8. All e-mails must follow Agency policy banning solicitation and distribution.  Chain letters, 

pyramid schemes, promoting religious beliefs or tenets, and other solicitations are 
prohibited to the extent that they violate the Agency’s solicitation policy.  
 

Board Packet June 2016 109



9. Employees are prohibited from engaging in any communication that is in violation of 
federal, state, or local laws. 

 
10. No e-mail that constitutes intimidating, hostile, or offensive material on the basis of race, 

color, religion, gender, age, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, military service, 
veteran’s status, marital status, arrest or conviction record, genetic information, domestic 
violence victim status, familial status, or any other characteristic protected by law may be 
created, sent, or received at any time.  CAPCO’s policy against harassment applies fully 
to the Internet and e-mail system.   

 
11. The unlawful use, installation, copying, or distribution of copyrighted, trademarked, or 

patented material on the Internet is expressly prohibited.  Employees are also 
responsible for ensuring that the person sending any material over the Internet has the 
appropriate distribution rights.  

 
12. To ensure a virus-free environment, no files may be downloaded from the Internet 

unless the origin of the message is known.  E-mail messages and attachments should 
not be opened unless the sender is known to the receiver.  
 

13. All Confidential Information (as defined in the Confidentiality of Agency Information 
policy) sent over external networks by any means must be encrypted with approved 
Agency technology.  Certain types of transmissions may require additional controls.  
Please contact the Assistant Director for further guidance. 
 

14. Employees must not disclose any Agency Confidential Information (as defined in the 
Confidentiality of Agency Information policy) on external bulletin boards, blogs, web 
pages, instant messages, etc., without an Agency’s executive approval.  This applies to 
all social media sites and other similar types of external locations. 
 

15. Employees may not use stock tickers, partake in internet gaming, or use the Agency’s 
electronic media systems in a manner that interferes with normal business functions or 
productivity. 
  

16. CAPCO purchases and licenses the use of various computer software for business 
purposes and does not own the copyright to this software or its related documentation.  
Unless authorized by the software developer, neither CAPCO nor any of its employees 
may reproduce such software for use on more than one computer.   

 
17. Employees who become aware of misuse of the Internet, intranet, or e-mail system 

should promptly contact the Assistant Director and/or Human Resource Director.  
 

18. Any employees in violation of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including suspension/termination. 

 
 
 
ELECTRONIC DEVICE USE  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 

Board Packet June 2016 110



 
CAPCO ensures public safety and a productive work environment in regards to the use of 
personal electronic devices at the Agency.  Personal electronic devices include, but are not 
limited to, cell phones, tablets, and e-readers. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. While employees may carry and use personal cell phones and other electronic devices 
while at work, employees are prohibited from engaging in personal uses of electronic 
devices while on working time.  For purposes of this policy, “working time” means time 
that an employee is engaged or should be engaged in performing his/her work tasks for 
the Agency. If employee use of a personal cell phone causes disruptions or loss in 
productivity, the employee may become subject to disciplinary action per Agency policy. 

 
2. Personal cell phones shall be turned off or set to silent or vibrate mode during meetings, 

conferences, and in other locations where incoming calls and/or texts may disrupt 
normal workflow. In the case that an employee needs to be available be cell phone for 
an emergency reason, an exception may be made if discussed and approved by the 
immediate Supervisor and/or meeting chairperson. 

 
 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC]  
 

1. General Use of Cell Phones: 
a. Cell phone ringers are to be placed on vibrate. 
b. Cell phones are to be used only during break and other non-working 

times. 
c. Personal cell phone conversations will be considered “breaks” and are 

to take place away from the work area. 
 

2. Prohibited Uses of Cell Phones: Cell phones are not to be used for 
outgoing or incoming calls or text messaging when staff and/or volunteers 
are in CAPCO Head Start/Early Head Start classes, large and small 
group meetings, planning sessions with coordinators and/or training 
sessions.  
a. Those who need to be able to contact staff and/or volunteers in case 

of emergency can be given the center numbers and these are the 
numbers to be utilized.  

b. For out-of-office meetings, planning staff will provide an emergency 
contact number to all participants.    

c. Cell phone messages may be checked during a break in the meeting 
or class.[mm10] 

 
3. Emergency Cell Phone Use 

a. If an emergency phone call is expected and unavoidable, the staff 
member to receive the phone call must receive approval from their 
immediate Supervisor. 

b. The staff member will put their cell phone on vibrate and will be in a 
location where they quickly and quietly step out to take the call.  

 

Board Packet June 2016 111



RECORDING DEVICES IN THE WORKPLACE 
Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 

 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
Employees of CAPCO are prohibited from recording or taking photographs of Agency 
participants or service recipients.   
 
Limited exceptions will apply when the employee in possession of the recording device has 
been provided advance written authorization to use the recording device by an authorized 
member of CAPCO management and the recording device is being used in an authorized 
manner to further CAPCO business. 
 
PROCEDURES 
 
 

1. Violations of this policy may result in immediate discipline (including the possibility of 
employment termination) and retention of the recording device for inspection by CAPCO 
and/or legal authorities.  

 
 
 
SOCIAL MEDIA 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO has determined that social media is a tool that can be used to further the mission and 
goals of the Agency.  Social media can provide a cost-effective method of engaging 
communities in discussion, fostering positive relationships with clients, and representing 
CAPCO in these emerging electronic communications. 
 
Social media tools create new opportunities for communication and collaboration, but also lead 
to new rights and responsibilities.  Social media includes all means of communicating or posting 
information or content of any sort on the Internet, including to your own or someone else’s blog, 
personal website, social networking or affinity website, bulletin board, or a chat room, whether 
or not associated or affiliated with the Agency. 
 
While CAPCO has no intention of controlling employees’ actions outside of work, it is important 
that employees practice caution and discretion when using Internet-based social media 
websites and posting content that could affect CAPCO’s business operations or reputation.  
Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with employees’ rights under the National Labor 
Relations Act.   
 
Ultimately, each individual is solely responsible for what they post online.  Before creating online 
content, consider the risks and rewards that are involved.  Keep in mind that any conduct that 
adversely affects job performance, the performance of fellow employees, or otherwise adversely 
affects clients, suppliers, or people who work on behalf of the Agency or the Agency’s business 
interests may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 112



Always be fair and courteous to fellow employees, customers, or people who work on behalf of 
the Agency.  Also, keep in mind that work-related complaints are more likely to be resolved by 
speaking directly with co-workers or supervisors and following the grievance policy than by 
posting complaints to a social media outlet.  Avoid using statements, photographs, video, or 
audio that reasonably could be viewed as malicious, obscene, threatening, or intimidating, that 
disparage customers, employees, or suppliers, or that might constitute harassment or bullying.  
Examples of such conduct might include offensive posts meant to intentionally harm someone’s 
reputation or posts that could contribute to a hostile work environment on the basis of race, 
color, religion, gender, age, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, military service, 
veteran’s status, marital status, arrest or conviction record, genetic information, domestic 
violence victim status, familial status, or any other characteristic protected by law. 
 
When posting information or news, be sure to always be honest and accurate.  If a mistake is 
made, correct it quickly.  Do not post any information or rumors that are known to be false.  Do 
not post internal reports, policies, procedures, or other internal business-related confidential 
communication, or Confidential Information. 
 
Refrain from using social media while on work time or on equipment provided by the Agency 
unless it is work related as authorized by management.  Do not use the Agency’s e-mail 
addresses to register on social networks, blogs, or other online tools utilized for personal 
use.[mm11] 
 
While CAPCO has no intention of controlling employees’ actions outside of work, it is important 
that employees practice caution and discretion when using Internet-based social media 
websites and posting content that could affect CAPCO’s business operations or reputation.  
Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with employees’ rights under the National Labor 
Relations Act.   
 
While all CAPCO employees are welcome to participate in social media, employees who 
participate in online commentary are expected to understand and to follow the following simple 
but important guidelines.  [mm12] 
 
 
PROCEDURES 
 

1. Employees should:  
 

a. Be transparent and state that they work at CAPCO.  If they are writing about 
CAPCO, they are to use their real name, identify that they work for CAPCO, and be 
clear about their role.  
 

b. Never represent themselves or CAPCO in a false or misleading way.   
 

c. Protect Confidential Information (as defined in the Confidentiality of Agency 
Information policy).  Efforts to be transparent should never violate CAPCO’s privacy, 
confidentiality, and legal guidelines for external communication.  Participants and 
clients of CAPCO should never be discussed. 
 

d. Stick to their area of expertise and feel free to provide unique, individual perspectives 
on non-confidential activities at CAPCO.  

Board Packet June 2016 113



 
\ 

e. Always protect themselves, their privacy, and CAPCO’s confidential information.  
Social media users should always be aware that these types of communications are 
considered public records. 

 
[mm13] 

2. Any employees in violation of this policy are subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including suspension/termination. 
 

 
 
Contact with the Media 
 
All media inquiries seeking a statement on behalf of CAPCO must be referred to the Executive 
Director. Only the Executive Director is authorized to make or approve public statements on 
behalf of CAPCO. No employees, unless specifically designated by the Executive Director, are 
authorized to make statements to the media on behalf of CAPCO.[mm14] 
 
 
 
USE OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT, PROPERTY, MAIL, AND SUPPLIES 
 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO’s telephone and mail facilities are available during working hours for effective 
communication with the Agency’s service recipients and business associates.  The Agency’s 
mail system and supplies are not for personal use. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Use of the Agency’s telephone lines should be confined to business calls.  Incoming and 
outgoing personal telephone calls should be limited to those that are necessary and 
should be as brief as possible.   

 
2. Office supplies are not for personal use.  Agency stationery may not be used for 

personal correspondence as any communication sent out on Agency stationery might be 
considered official communication. 
 

Care of Equipment 
 
Employees of CAPCO are expected to demonstrate proper care when using CAPCO’s property 
and equipment. No property may be removed from the premises without the proper 
authorization of management. For CAPCO equipment explicitly assigned to an employee to be 
used on and off the CAPCO premise, employees must sign and adhere to the terms of the 
CAPCO Equipment Agreement Form. If an employee loses, breaks, or damages any property, 
the employee must report this immediately to her/his supervisor.  

Board Packet June 2016 114



 
SOLICITATION 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY[mm15] 
 
To protect employees from unnecessary interruptions and annoyances, CAPCO prohibits 
employees from directly soliciting other employees, non-employees, or participants through the 
distribution of literature in work areas, and prohibits solicitation and distribution of literature 
during an employee’s working time. For purposes of this policy, “working time” means the time 
an employee is engaged or should be engaged in performing her/his work tasks for the Agency.   
 
Solicitation or distribution of any kind by non-employees on the Agency’s premises is prohibited 
at all times.  
 
Disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment may be taken for violations of 
this policy.[mm16] 
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Solicitation includes, but is not limited to, directly asking employees for funds or 
contributions, directly offering goods for sale, directly asking employees to sign a 
petition, directly requesting employees to join a group, or otherwise directly requesting 
employees’ support or commitment with respect to causes, groups, or interests on any 
CAPCO premises or program space. 
 

2. CAPCO employees may not directly approach other employees or participants or solicit 
for any of the above purposes. 

 
3. An employee who is not working may not solicit, or distribute literature to, an employee 

who is working on CAPCO property or program space. 
 
 
 
EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATION BULLETIN BOARDS 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
Concerning employee notification bulletin boards and their use for communicating with all 
persons involved in CAPCO, only authorized Agency hard copy and electronic bulletin boards 
may be displayed.  Bulletin boards are placed in key locations to be used to communicate 
employment information to employees. 
 
PROCEDURE 

 
1. Information on those boards must be approved in advance by the Human Resource 

Director and/or Executive Director. 

Board Packet June 2016 115



 
2. The Human Resource Director is responsible for authorizing and maintaining 

communication posted on display boards. 
 

3. The Human Resource Director must approve and supervise the posting of all materials 
on authorized boards.  Postings will be limited to Agency-related matters.   

 
4. The Human Resource Director will place job postings on bulletin boards in order to give 

current employees the opportunity to apply. 
 
 
 
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO expects all persons involved in the Agency to act in a professional and responsible way 
at all times.  This means all people are to be treated with respect, courtesy and dignity at all 
times.  Some of the more obvious unacceptable activities are noted below; however, this list is 
not all-inclusive and other inappropriate conduct may result in disciplinary action. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. All persons involved in CAPCO [mm17]must abide by these standards of conduct.  
 
2. Contact the Human Resource Director with any questions concerning any standard of 

conduct or the unacceptable activities listed.  
 
Unacceptable Activities 
 
Unacceptable activities include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

1. Violation of any Agency rule or policy; and conduct that is detrimental to CAPCO’s 
mission, vision, and values. 

 
2. Negligence or any careless action which endangers the life or safety of another person. 
 
3. Treating Agency clients, service recipients or fellow co-workers with disrespect or 

discourtesy.[mm18] 
 

4. Being under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol while at work; use, possession, or 
sale of an illegal drug in any quantity while on Agency premises. 

 
5. Unauthorized possession of firearms, weapons, or explosives in the workplace or while 

on duty. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 116



6. Engaging in criminal conduct or acts of violence, or making threats of violence toward 
anyone on CAPCO’s premises or when representing the Agency; disorderly conduct, 
fighting, or provoking a fight on Agency property. 

 
7. Insubordination.[mm19] 
 
8. Threatening, intimidating, or coercing fellow employees at any time, for any purpose. 
 
9. Engaging in an act of sabotage; negligently causing the destruction or damage of 

Agency property, or the property of all persons involved in CAPCO in any manner. 
 
10. Theft or unauthorized possession of Agency property or the property of fellow 

employees; removal of any Agency property, including documents, from the premises 
without prior permission from management; unauthorized use of CAPCO equipment or 
property for personal reasons; using Agency equipment for profit. 

 
11. Dishonesty, falsification, misrepresentation, or material omission on your application for 

employment or other work records; lying about medical or personal leave; falsifying 
reason for a leave of absence or other data requested by the Agency; unauthorized 
alteration of Agency records or other Agency documents. 

 
12. Violating confidentiality policy; giving confidential or proprietary information of CAPCO to 

competitors or other Agencies or individuals or to unauthorized Agency employees; 
working for a competing business while an Agency employee; breach of confidentiality of 
personnel information. 

 
13. Unsatisfactory or careless work. 
 
14. Any act of harassment, sexual or racial; telling sexist or racist jokes; making racial or 

ethnic slurs. 
 
15. Leaving work before the end of a work day or not being ready to work at the start of a 

workday without approval of an immediate Supervisor; stopping work before time 
specified for such purposes. 

 
16. Sleeping or loitering during working hours. 
 
17. Excessive use of CAPCO telephone and/or time spent on personal calls. 
 
18. Creating or contributing to unsanitary conditions. 
 
19. Failure to report an absence or late arrival; excessive absence or lateness. 
 
[mm20] 
20. Failure to immediately report damage to, or an accident involving, Agency equipment or 

property. 
 
21. Leaving the premises during working hours without the immediate Supervisor’s 

knowledge or permission. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 117



22. [HEAD START SPECIFIC] Leaving a child alone or unsupervised while under the 
program’s care. 

 
23. [HEAD START SPECIFIC] Failing to use positive methods of child guidance and 

engaging in corporal punishment, emotional or physical abuse, or humiliation.  In 
addition, employing methods of discipline that involve isolation, use of food as 
punishment or reward, or denying of basic needs. 

 
 
 
CORRECTIVE ACTION 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
To be effective, disciplinary action should emphasize correcting the problem rather than 
punishing the offender.  CAPCO’s policy provides for progressive disciplinary action to change 
an employee’s job performance or behavior from unacceptable to acceptable.  This policy in no 
way alters the policy of employment-at-will.   
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. Progressive discipline includes written expectations of performance from the Supervisor; 
verbal conversation and warning of needed job performance improvement; written 
warning of needed job performance improvement; suspension without pay; and/or 
termination. 
 

2. Progressive discipline may not be followed in all cases.  
 
3. Depending on the circumstances involved, discipline issued may be a verbal warning, a 

written warning, suspension without pay, or termination.   
 

4. Depending on the nature of the violation and other circumstances including, but not 
limited to, the employee’s past conduct, one or more “steps” may be repeated or 
skipped.   

 
5. In some circumstances, immediate termination may result. 

 
 
 
SUSPENSION/TERMINATION 

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO or the employee may terminate the employment relationship at any time for any reason 
not expressly prohibited by law or no reason at all. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 118



Voluntary terminations are those initiated by the employee and include: 
 

• Resignation 
• Retirement 
• Failing to report to work as scheduled 
• Failing to return from an approved extended leave of absence 
• Failing to provide notification and obtain approval for absences of three or more 

consecutive days  
 
Involuntary terminations are those initiated by the Agency and may include: 

 
• Exhaustion of approved leave of absence 
• Inability or failure to perform duties or to meet prescribed standards on the job 
• Conduct not in the best interest of the Agency 
• Layoff resulting from changes in services, resources, or qualification requirements for 

designated programs or projects 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. In the event unsatisfactory performance continues, the entire matter is reviewed by the 
immediate Supervisor, Program Director, and Human Resource Director.  If the Program 
Director and Human Resource Director is satisfied the employee has been given 
sufficient guidance and time to improve, suspension/termination is approved. 

 
2. Suspension/Termination must be approved by the Program Director and Human 

Resource Director. 
 

3. An exit interview is conducted by the Human Resource Director, documented, and made 
a part of the personnel record.  See the Exit Interview policy for more information. 

 
[HEAD START SPECIFIC]  
 
Head Start/Early Head Start Specific 
 

1. In the event that unsatisfactory performance continues, prior approval for termination is 
required from the Head Start/Early Head Start Policy Council.   

 
2. In cases of severe misconduct requiring an employee’s immediate removal from her/his 

position (suspension), the Head Start/Early Head Start Policy Council are notified 
immediately or at their next regularly scheduled monthly meeting.  Layoffs do not count 
as terminations and do not require the approval of the Head Start/Early Head Start 
Policy Council.  All notifications of termination are documented in the minutes of the 
meeting at which the notification was made.   

 
3. Employees recommended for termination are suspended with/without pay pending the 

Head Start/Early Head Start Policy Council decision. 
 

4. The Head Start/Early Head Start Policy Council approves or disapproves the termination 
at its next regularly scheduled meeting.  The termination, if upheld, is effective upon the 

Board Packet June 2016 119



initial notice.  If termination is not upheld, the matter is treated in accordance with the 
Grievance/Problem Resolution procedure.  

 
 
EXIT INTERVIEWS  

Effective Date:  June 23, 2016 
 
 
PURPOSE/POLICY 
 
CAPCO may conduct exit interviews for employees leaving the Agency who are willing to be 
interviewed. 
 
PROCEDURE 
 

1. The Human Resource Director utilizes the standard exit interview form to conduct an exit 
interview with the terminating employee.   

 
2. The Human Resource Director is responsible for tracking and analyzing exit interview 

data and following up on issues identified in exit interviews to ensure resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 

FMLA ADDENDUM 
 

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT[mm21] 

Basic Leave Entitlement 
FMLA requires covered employers to provide up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to eligible employees for 
the following reasons: 

• for incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or child birth; 
• to care for the employee’s child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care; 
• to care for the employee’s spouse, son, daughter or parent, who has a serious health condition; or 
• for a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee’s job. 

 
Military Family Leave Entitlements 
Eligible employees whose spouse, son, daughter or parent is on covered active duty or call to covered active duty 
status may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may 
include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal 
arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings. FMLA 
also includes a special leave entitlement that permits eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks of leave to care for a 
covered Servicemember during a single 12-month period. A covered Servicemember is: (1) a current member of the 
Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, 
recuperation or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a 
serious injury or illness*; or (2) a veteran who was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable 
at any time during the five-year period prior to the first date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the 
covered veteran, and who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy for a serious injury or illness.* 
*The FMLA definitions of “serious injury or illness” for current Servicemembers and veterans are distinct 
from the FMLA definition of “serious health condition”. 
 
Benefits and Protections 
During FMLA leave, the employer must maintain the employee’s health coverage under any “group health plan” on 
the same terms as if the employee had continued to work. Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees must be 
restored to their original or equivalent positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms. Use of 

Board Packet June 2016 120



FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the start of an employee’s leave. 
 
Eligibility Requirements 
Employees are eligible if they have worked for a covered employer for at least 12 months, have 1,250 hours of 
service in the previous 12 months*, and if at least 50 employees are employed by the employer within 75 miles. 
*Special hours of service eligibility requirements apply to airline flight crew employees. 
 
Definition of Serious Health Condition 
A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves either an 
overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health care provider for a condition that either 
prevents the employee from performing the functions of the employee’s job, or prevents the qualified family member 
from participating in school or other daily activities. Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment 
requirement may be met by a period of incapacity of more than 3 consecutive calendar days combined with at least 
two visits to a health care provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, 
or incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment. 
 
Use of Leave 
An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block. Leave can be taken intermittently or on a 
reduced leave schedule when medically necessary. Employees must make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for 
planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the employer’s operations. Leave due to qualifying exigencies 
may also be taken on an intermittent basis.  
 
Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave  
Employees may choose or employers may require use of accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave. In order to 
use paid leave for FMLA leave, employees must comply with the employer’s normal paid leave policies. 
 
Employee Responsibilities 
Employees must provide thirty (30) days advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need is 
foreseeable. When thirty (30) days notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon as practicable 
and generally must comply with an employer’s normal call-in procedures. Employees must provide sufficient 
information for the employer to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and 
duration of the leave. Sufficient information may include that the employee is unable to perform job functions, the 
family member is unable to perform daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health 
care provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must inform the 
employer if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA leave was previously taken or certified.  Employees 
also may be required to provide a certification and periodic recertification supporting the need for leave. 
 
Employer Responsibilities 
Covered employers must inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under FMLA.  If they are, the 
notice must specify any additional information required as well as the employees’ rights and responsibilities. If they 
are not eligible, the employer must provide a reason for the ineligibility. Covered employers must inform employees if 
leave will be designated as FMLA-protected and the amount of leave counted against the employee’s leave 
entitlement.  If the employer determines that the leave is not FMLA-protected, the employer must notify the employee. 
 
Unlawful Acts by Employers 
FMLA makes it unlawful for any employer to: 

• interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under FMLA; and 
• discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful by FMLA or for 

involvement in any proceeding under or relating to FMLA. 
 
Enforcement 
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private lawsuit against an 
employer.  FMLA does not affect any federal or state law prohibiting discrimination, or supersede any state or local 
law or collective bargaining agreement which provides greater family or medical leave rights. 
 
FMLA section 109 (29 U.S.C. § 2619) requires FMLA covered employers to post the text of this notice. Regulation 29 
C.F.R. § 825.300(a) may require additional disclosures. 
 
 

[mm22] 

Board Packet June 2016 121



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-25 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Executive 

Committee has reviewed the Executive Director Evaluation and Compensation 

Package and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the Executive Director Evaluation and Compensation Package and accepts as 

presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  Executive Director Evaluation and Compensation Package. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 122



Finance Committee 
June 21 2016 
 
Members present:  Paula Currie, Luann King, Penny Prignon, Helen Spaulding.  Excused:  Carole 
Ann Davies.  Staff present:  Lindy Glennon, Martha Allen. 
 
Committee reviewed monthly financials and Fiscal Directors report (see attached).  All reporting 
requirements have been met timely.  Auditors were on site in June to complete audit work.  
Plan to present draft to Finance Committee and full Board in July.  Reviewed program financials: 

• CDPAP – 2016 rates have been published and billing is now being done at those rates.  
This includes changes through DSS for Enhance Rates. 

• Early Childhood Development contracts are on target – no deficits anticipated. 
• Energy Services – received notification June 17 re: WAP Amendment increasing contract 

to $400,000.  This was anticipated and this budget was presented to Board in March 
with the $375,000 budget that was requested at that time by HCR.  Amendment is due 
July 8. 

• Family Development – CSBG Amendment was submitted as required June 7.  Contract 
package for 2016-17 received June 9, due June 30.  Contract package will be very close 
to amendment budget and workplan submitted as amendment.  Committee will review 
budget as part of this meeting.  The 2016-17 contract amount will be $234,101. 

• WIC and EPC contracts do not anticipate any deficits.  Received WIC 2016-17 contract 
package for $361,533, level funding from current year (see attached for complete 
details).  Proposing replacing 2 part time positions with one full-time (already approved 
by Dept. of Health), 2% increase for staff, will include increase for cost of space with 
changes to directors office space (from partial charges to Family Development). 

Motion to accept and file financials made by Helen Spaulding, 2nd Penny Prignon – motion 
carried. 
 
Committee reviewed proposed changes to fiscal policies and procedures re: procurement 
policies (see attached).  Fiscal policies to be fully updated.  With current review, proposed 
changes to procurement policies recommended to fully comply with changes to OMB 
supercircular. After review and discussion, motion to accept proposed changes made by Luann 
King, 2nd Paula Currie, motion carried. 
 
Committee reviewed Administrative budget (see attached).  No significant changes from 2015 
budget.  Reflects staffing changes to current staff.  After review and discussion, motion to 
approve made by Helen Spaulding, 2nd Luann King, motion carried. 
 
Martha presented CDPAP 2016 budget (see attached).  Reflects conservative revenue as rates 
are being updated.  After review and discussion, motion to approve made by Penny Prignon, 2nd 
Luann King, motion carried. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 123



Committee reviewed proposed building budget (see attached).  Very close to 2015 budget.  
Maintains current expenses.  After review, motion to approve made by Paula Currie, 2nd Helen 
Spaulding, motion carried. 
 
With passing of these three budgets, committee reviewed full Agency budget – as all other 
budgets have already been reviewed and approved, no further discussion needed.  Luann King 
made motion to approve as presented, 2nd Penny Prignon, motion carried. 
 
Committee reviewed the CSBG Amendment budget (see attached).  Amendment budget 
includes increase of $13,488.  Includes actual carryover that is $11,376 less than anticipated 
carryover as proposed in original 2015-16 budget resulting in a net increase to 15.16 budget of 
$2,112.  Motion to approved proposed amendment budget made by Luann King, 2nd Penny 
Prignon, motion carried. 
 
Being no further business, meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m. 
  

Board Packet June 2016 124



ITEM/REPORT DUE DATE FILED
Subsidiary ledgers in balance for the month? N/A yes
Bank accounts have been reconciled through? N/A May-16
Accounts receivable over 90 days past due N/A yes
Accounts payable over 90 days past due N/A none
NYS Sales and Use Tax Filing 3/21/2016 3/14/2016
Coporate Tax Returns (990's) 5/15/2016 extension
Quarterly payroll tax returns filed by complete payroll? qtrly yes
Form 1099's 1/31/2016 1/15/2016

 CSBG 2015‐2016 py
 20% Expenditure report 2/29/2016
45% Expenditure report
70% Expenditure report
 1st Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 1/31/2016 2/2/2016
2nd Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 4/30/2016 4/20/2016
3rd Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 7/31/2016
4th Qtr  Program/Fiscal Attestation Forms 10/31/2016
 1st qtr MWBE Reports 1/10/2016 1/7/2016
2nd qtr   MWBE Reports 4/10/2016 4/8/2016
3rd qtr  MWBE Reports 7/10/2016
4th qtr  MWBE Reports 10/10/2016
  Unaudited Financial Statements 11/30/2016

Energy Services

WAP 15‐16 py
Monthly Voucher to Energy Services for presentation to DHCR 15th of month 4/15/2016
1st qtr MWBE Reports 7/10/2015 7/9/2015
2nd qtr   MWBE Reports 10/10/2015 10/9/2015
3rd qtr  MWBE Reports 1/10/2016 1/8/2016
4th qtr  MWBE Reports 4/10/2016 4/8/2016
 Unaudited Financial Statements 5/31/2016 5/31/2016

Head Start & Early Head Start 15‐16 py
Quarterly Form 425:

1ST QTR 4/30/2016 4/19/2016
2ND QTR 7/30/2016
3RD QTR 10/30/2016
4TH QTR 1/30/2017

Form 425 due:
semi-annual 1/30/2016 1/11/2016
preliminary annual 7/30/2016
final 10/30/2016

WIC 15‐16py
Monthly Voucher 30 days after month end 5/20/2016
Final Voucher 11/14/2016

CDPAP

  Cost Report 9/15/2016

CORTLAND COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.

FINANCE DIRECTOR MONTHLY CHECKLIST

FOR THE MONTH April 2016

Submitted by Martha Allen on  June 20 , 2016

Program Reports

Board Packet June 2016 125



CAPCO6/19/2016  10:32:45 PM

Balance Sheet

5/31/2016 4/30/2016 3/31/2016 2/29/2016 1/31/2016

ASSETS

     CURRENT ASSETS

$242,655.54 $456,523.85 $493,473.71 $435,001.19 $564,197.31 
          Cash

$348,615.42 $450,111.84 $298,297.56 $379,046.66 $326,590.57 
          Grants Receivable

          Accounts Receivable

               1-125100-CDC-CDACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

               1-125100-ESD-ELACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

               1-125100-MAG-MAACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
$569,852.57 $394,825.23 $317,105.11 $378,802.28 $347,072.09 

               1-125101-MAG-MALess: ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFU
$11,000.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 $11,000.00 

               1-125300-MAG-MAMEDICAID VARIANCE RECEIVABL
($196.36) ($196.36) ($196.36) ($196.36) ($196.36)

$558,656.21 $383,628.87 $305,908.75 $367,605.92 $335,875.73 
          Net Accounts Receivable

$95,009.92 $104,874.02 $138,980.60 $90,689.51 $112,662.03 
          Prepaid Expenses

$1,244,937.09 $1,395,138.58 $1,236,660.62 $1,272,343.28 $1,339,325.64 
     TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

     PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

$736,741.00 $743,124.23 $743,391.97 $740,569.35 $734,225.22 
               Vehicles, furniture and equipment

$1,181,553.16 $1,181,553.16 $1,176,680.16 $1,176,680.16 $1,176,680.16 
               Building

$1,918,294.16 $1,924,677.39 $1,920,072.13 $1,917,249.51 $1,910,905.38 
          NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AT COST

($1,001,405.38) ($994,738.28) ($994,738.28) ($994,738.28) ($994,738.28)
          Less Accumulated Depreciation

$916,888.78 $929,939.11 $925,333.85 $922,511.23 $916,167.10 
     TOTAL PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
     SOFTWARE DEVOLPMENT COSTS

$2,161,825.87 $2,325,077.69 $2,161,994.47 $2,194,854.51 $2,255,492.74 
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

          CURRENT LIABILITIES

$38,498.05 $53,290.83 $78,301.50 $58,683.18 $55,829.74 
               Accounts Payable

$201,273.54 $196,618.66 $41,975.89 $52,539.64 $111,577.60 
               Payroll taxes and Accruals

$8,002.40 $7,473.63 $9,974.63 $9,974.63 $9,974.63 
               Other Current Liabilities

$99,505.35 $104,500.35 $53,245.35 $117,740.35 $122,235.35 
               Defered Income

$347,279.34 $361,883.47 $183,497.37 $238,937.80 $299,617.32 
          Total CURRENT LIABILITIES

Board Packet June 2016 126



CAPCO6/19/2016  10:32:45PM

Balance Sheet

5/31/2016 4/30/2016 3/31/2016 2/29/2016 1/31/2016

$383,687.10 $384,413.02 $385,107.69 $385,857.39 $386,546.79           LONG-TERM DEBT

$730,966.44 $746,296.49 $568,605.06 $624,795.19 $686,164.11      TOTAL LIABILITIES

$1,430,859.71 $1,578,781.48 $1,593,389.41 $1,570,059.32 $1,569,328.63      NET ASSETS

$2,161,826.15 $2,325,077.97 $2,161,994.47 $2,194,854.51 $2,255,492.74 Total LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Board Packet June 2016 127



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-26 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the Women, Infants, and Children (WIC) budget for the 

2016-2017 program year in the amount of 361,533 and has recommended accepting as 

presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the WIC budget and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  2016-2017 WIC budget. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

 

 
 

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 128



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-27 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the 2015-2016 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) 

budget amendment which includes the amended 2016 allocation in the amount of $234,101, 

$43,778 carryover from the 2014-2015 contract, along with $58,526 in local share for a total 

project cost of $336,405 and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the CSBG budget amendment and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  2015-2016 CSBG budget amendment. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

 

 

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 129



Contractor FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15 To 3/31/17 Contract # C1000292

A complete revised budget, Appendix B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4  MUST be submitted.

TOTAL
$220,613 $13,488 $234,101

5
67,946 13,488 $81,434

6
$0

3
10,459 0 $10,459

4
$0

1
142,208 0 $142,208

2
$0

Cost
Category

PRESENT
BUDGET

AMOUNTS
(Based on the most recent 

approved budget)

CHANGES
(Indicate + or -)

REVISED
BUDGET

AMOUNTS

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

2016 CSBG Contract Amendment

ATTACHMENT B
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

BUDGET AMENDMENT JUSTIFICATION
Federal Funds

  2016 CSBG Contract AmendmentBoard Packet June 2016 130



Contractor FFY 2016

10/1/15 To 3/31/17 Contract # C1000292

Federal 
Funds Local Share Prior Year Federal 

Funds (1) Local Share Prior Year Federal 
Funds Local Share Prior Year

142,208 35,464 $142,208 $0 $35,464

$0 $0 $0

10,459 1,216 $10,459 $0 $1,216

$0 $0 $0

67,946 55,154 18,474 13,488 3,372 (11,376) $81,434 $58,526 $7,098

$0 $0 $0

$220,613 $55,154 $55,154 $13,488 $3,372 ($11,376) $234,101 $58,526 $43,778

(1) Increase in Federal Funds subject to 30% MWBE, explain plan to meet revised goal:
Utilize Meghan Johnson & Associates, LLC  for our Strategic Planning and Board Development.

6

TOTAL

A complete revised budget, Attachments B-1, B-2, B-3, B-4  MUST be submitted.

Description or reason for Budget Amendment:
Adjust actual carryover from anticipated $55,154 to actual $43,778.  Also includes increase of $13,488.  Net Increase is $2,112.

5

Cost
Category

PRESENT BUDGET AMOUNTS CHANGES
(Indicate + or -) REVISED BUDGET AMOUNTS(Based on the most recent

approved budget)

Budget 
Period

1

2

3

4

2016 CSBG Contract Amendment

ATTACHMENT B
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

BUDGET AMENDMENT JUSTIFICATION

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

  2016 CSBG Contract AmendmentBoard Packet June 2016 131



Contractor FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15 Contract # C1000292

(a) $ 234,101

(b) $ 58,526

(c) $ 43,778

(d) $ 336,405

5.

6. Administrative Costs
    Indirect Rate % $ $ $ $ 0
    Admin. Cost/Rate % $ $ $ $ 0

3.
DIRECT:

ADMIN:

4.
DIRECT:

ADMIN:

$3,200 - Americorp worker (2016)

$

$

Contractual Services/Audit 

Equipment Purchase/Lease

7,098

$

43,778

3.

Personnel Services (from Att. B-2)

10,459

$

Other Costs (from Att. B-4) 81,434

2.

1.

336,405

0

$

$

TOTALS

$

$ 11,675

4. Equipment Purchase/Lease $

$

58,526

$

$ 58,526

$$ 234,101 $

35,464

$

$

$

$

Contractual Services/Audit

0$

1,216

142,208

Delegate Agencies (Subcontractors)

177,672

Cost Categories
CSBG

TOTAL ALLOCATION OF CSBG GRANT FUNDS (FEDERAL) for FFY 2016

UNEXPENDED FFY 2015 ALLOCATION (prior year CSBG funds)

TOTAL PROJECT COST

CSBG funds must be used in accordance with the cost principles of OMB Circulars A-122 and A-110.  Grantees must comply with 
the limitations and prohibitions as stated in federal CSBG statute (42 U.S.C. 9901 et seq.)  Section 678F and any subsequent 
amendments.

$

FFY 2016 Total

Cost

147,058

Descriptions and amounts of Contractual Services/Audit and Equipment Purchase/Lease expenses included in Cost Categories 3 and 4:

$395 - EAP services ($36 -2015,$359-2016). $6,060 - strategic planning ($1,100 -2015, $4,960 - 2016)  $1,700 - 
financial audit.(2016)  $320 - payroll processing service ($80 -2015,$240 - 2016)

$

$

$

ATTACHMENT B

B-1 2016 Budget Summary

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

To

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Funds

REQUIRED LOCAL SHARE

(Such share may be in cash, in-kind services, or a combination thereof).

FFY 2015

CSBG Funds
UnexpendedLocal

FFY 2016

Share

At least 25% of the total allocation of Federal funds.

Project

3/31/17

  2016 CSBG Contract AmendmentBoard Packet June 2016 132



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-28 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the proposed change to the Fiscal Policies and 

Procedures Procurement Policy and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the proposed Procurement Policy and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  change to the Fiscal Policies and Procedures. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 133



 14

 

B.  PROCUREMENT POLICIES 
 
The following procurement policy is the policy of CAPCO.  Should a contract’s procurement 
policy be more restrictive, that policy must be followed. 
 
Whenever possible and practical, the agency will utilize the "Directory of Minority and Women-
Owned Businesses." 
 
Purchases of single items not exceeding $ 999  
 
The agency may purchase goods and services from, or may contract directly with a responsible 
vendor of its choice for purchases not exceeding $1,000. While competitive bidding is not 
required, the program must document steps taken to ensure that prices are reasonable in light of 
terms and prices offered by competitors.  These documents should be retained by the purchasing 
program and available upon request. 
 
Purchases of single items equal to $1,000 but not exceeding $ 29,999 $24,999. 
 
The agency may purchase goods and services or may contract by using either of the following 
methods: 
 

ALTERNATE A:  If the agency has identified a responsible minority and/or women-
owned business source and has determined that the price offered is reasonable, the agency 
may purchase directly from the source.  The agency will document and keep on file the 
agency's basis for determining that the offered price is reasonable, obtain a written 
quotation showing terms and conditions and written certification as a minority or women-
owned business. 

 
ALTERNATE B: A minimum of three (3) written quotes shall be obtained from 
responsible vendors offering such commodities and/or services. All quotes shall be 
attached to the Purchase Order along with formal written documentation of the process 
followed in the selection of the vendor and/or any situation where reasonable competition 
was not available.  The quotes may be written, faxed or web page offerings.  Verbal quotes 
are not acceptable. 
   

Also, attached to the purchase order shall be a written confirmation by the successful vendor 
setting forth terms and conditions. 
 
Purchases of single items equal to $ 29,999  $25,000 or greater   
 

Board Packet June 2016 134



 15

The agency will use, Alternative A above or structure a formal competitive bid. Competitive 
proposals from at least three (3) responsible vendors must be obtained.   
 
Solicitations for goods and services (requests for proposals) should provide for all of the 
following: 
 
1. A clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the material, product or 

service to be procured.  In competitive procurements, such a description shall not contain 
features, which unduly restrict competition. 

 
2. Requirements which the bidder/offer or must fulfill and all other factors to be used in 

evaluating bids or proposals (see the next section entitled “Evaluation of Alternative 
Vendors” for required criteria) 

 
3. A description, whenever practicable, of technical requirements in terms of functions to be 

performed or performance required, including the range of acceptable characteristics or 
minimum acceptable standards.  

 
4. The specific features of "brand name or equal" descriptions that bidders are required to 

meet when such items are included in the solicitations. 
 
5. Preference, to the extent practical and economically feasible, for products and services 

that conserve natural resources and protect the environment and are energy efficient. 
 
6. A description of the proper format, if any, in which proposals must be submitted, 

including the name of the CAPCO person to whom proposals should be sent. 
 
7. The date by which proposals are due. 
 
8. Required delivery or performance dates/schedules. 
 
9. Clear indications of the quantity(ies) requested and unit(s) of measure, including metric. 
 

Extensions of Due Dates and Receipt of Late Proposals  

 
Solicitations should provide for sufficient time to permit the preparation and submission of offers 
before the specified due date. However, in the event that a prospective offeror requests an 
extension to a due date specified in a solicitation, and such an extension is both justified and 
compatible with the requirements of CAPCO, an extension may be granted by the purchasing 
representative. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 135



 16

Vendor proposals are considered late if received after the due date and time specified in the 
solicitation. All such late proposals shall be marked “Late Proposal” on the outside of the 
envelope and retained, unopened, in the procurement folder. Vendors that submit late proposals 
shall be sent a letter notifying them that their proposal was late and could not be considered for 
award. 

 

Evaluation of Alternative Vendors  

 
Alternative vendors shall be evaluated on a weighted scale that considers the following criteria: 
 
1. Adequacy of the proposed methodology of the vendor 
2. Skill and experience of key personnel 
3. Demonstrated company experience 
4. Other technical specifications (designated by department requesting proposals) 
5. Compliance with administrative requirements of the request for proposal (format, due 

date, etc.) 
6. Vendor’s financial stability 
7. Vendor’s demonstrated commitment to the nonprofit sector 
8. Results of communications with references supplied by vendor 
9. Ability/commitment to meeting time deadlines 
10. Cost 
11. Minority- or women-owned business status of vendor 
12. Other criteria (to be specified by department requesting proposal) 
 
Not all of the preceding criteria may apply in each purchasing scenario. However, in each 
situation requiring consideration of alternative vendors, the department responsible for the 
purchase shall establish the relative importance of each criterion prior to requesting proposals 
and shall evaluate each proposal on the basis of the criteria and weighting that have been 
determined. 
 
After a vendor has been selected and approved by the Program Director, the contract must be 
signed by the Executive Director.  No work shall proceed without a signed contract. 

Affirmative Consideration of Minority, Small Business and Women-Owned Businesses 

 
Positive efforts shall be made by CAPCO to utilize small businesses, minority-owned firms, and 
women's business enterprises, whenever possible. The following steps shall be taken in 
furtherance of this goal: 
 
1. Ensure that small business, minority-owned firms, and women's business enterprises are 

used to the fullest extent practicable. 

Board Packet June 2016 136



 17

 
2. Make information on forthcoming opportunities available and arrange time frames for 

purchases and contracts to encourage and facilitate participation by small business, 
minority-owned firms and women's business enterprises. 

 
3. Consider in the contract process whether firms competing for larger contracts tend to 

subcontract with small businesses, minority-owned firms and women's business 
enterprises. 

 
4. Encourage contracting with consortiums of small businesses, minority owned firms and 

women's business enterprises when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle 
individually. 

 
5. Use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as Minority and 

Women Owned Business Enterprise. 
 

Special Purchasing Condition 

 
Emergencies: 
 
Where equipment, materials, parts, and/or services are needed, quotations will not be necessary 
if the health, welfare, safety, etc., of clients, Board of Directors and protection of Organization 
property is involved. 

 
Single Distributor/Source: 
 
Where there is only one (1) distributor for merchandise or consultant needed and no other 
product or consultant meets the stated needs or specifications, quotations will not be necessary. 
 
Emergencies and single source circumstances must be disclosed on the original purchase order.   
 
Federally-Funded Programs: 
 
Purchases that will be charged to programs funded with federal awards will be subject to 
additional policies. These policies are described in a separate section, “Policies Associated with 
Federal Awards.” 

Vendor Files and Required Documentation 

 
The Fiscal Department shall create a new vendor number based on receipt of properly completed 
vendor documentation supplied by new vendor.  No vendor can be entered into the accounting 
system until all required documentation is received by the fiscal department. 

Board Packet June 2016 137



 18

    

Ethical Conduct in Purchasing             

 
Ethical conduct in managing the Organization's purchasing activities is an absolute essential.  
Staff must always be mindful that they represent the Board of Directors and share a 
professional trust with other staff. 
 
Agency staff shall discourage the offer of, and decline, individual gifts or gratuities of value in 
any way that might influence the purchase of supplies, equipment, and/or services. Staff shall 
notify their immediate supervisor if they are offered such gifts. Gifts to the Organization of a 
value not to exceed $50, viewed as normal business incentives to obtain future Organization-
approved business such as for meeting sites, are acceptable donations. 
 
Officers, board members, employees and agents of CAPCO shall neither solicit nor accept 
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from vendors or parties to sub-agreements. 
However, unsolicited gifts of a value of no more than $ 50 may be accepted with the approval of 
the Executive Director. The Executive Director may accept gifts of a value of no more than $50 
with the approval of the Board Chairperson. 
 

Conflicts of Interest Prohibited  

 
 No officer, board member, employee, or agent of CAPCO shall participate in the selection or 
administration of a vendor if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a 
conflict would arise if an officer, board member, employee or agent, or any member of his/her 
immediate family, his/her spouse/partner, or an organization that employs or is about to employ 
any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in the vendor selected.  (As 
per CAPCO Corporate By-laws (approved 10/05), Article VI )  
Failure to comply with any of the Fiscal Policies and Procedures may result in disciplinary action 
as indicated in the CAPCO Personnel Policies and Procedures, Sec. 4 Standards of Conduct 
(defining disciplinary action) and Conflict of Interest/Code of Ethics. 
 

Receipt and Acceptance of Goods  

 
The division receiving the goods shall inspect all goods received. The receipt and acceptance of 
goods must be done by an employee independent of purchasing. Upon receipt of any item from a 
vendor, the following actions shall immediately be taken: 
 
1. Review packing slip for correct delivery point 
2. Examine boxes/containers for exterior damage  
3. Verify the quantity of goods to the packing slip  

Board Packet June 2016 138



 19

4. Note on the packing slip any discrepancies (missing or damaged boxes/containers/items 
etc.) 

5. Sign and date the packing slip 
 6. Forward the packing slip to the appropriate program staff that is responsible for 

purchasing 
 
 
  
It is the policy of CAPCO to perform the procedures referred to above in a timely manner in 
order to facilitate prompt return of goods and/or communication with vendors. 

Compliance 

The organization complies with the procurement standards contained in the Office of 
Management and Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards – more commonly known as the “Super Circular” and codified 
at 2 CFR part 200.  The major provisions of these requirements are summarized below:  

1. General Procurement Standards  (section 200.318) 
 
a. No employee, officer, or agent must participate in the selection, 

award, or administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if 
he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest.  Such a conflict of 
interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member 
of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization 
which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated 
herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit 
from a firm considered for a contract. 

b. Additionally, no employee, officer, or agent must participate in the 
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a Federal 
award if there exists an organizational conflict of interest.  An 
organizational conflict of interest means that because of relationships 
with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization, the non-
Federal entity is unable or appears to be unable to be impartial in 
conducting a procurement action involving a related organization. 

c. Agency coordination of purchases will assure the avoidance of 
purchasing unnecessary or duplicative items. 

d. Contracts shall be made only with responsible contractors who 
possess the potential ability to perform successfully under the terms 
and conditions of a proposed procurement, and who have not been 
suspended or debarred from providing goods or services for federally 

Board Packet June 2016 139



 20

funded programs. 
e. Procurement records and files for purchases in excess of $50,000 

shall minimally include the following:  rationale for the method of 
procurement, selection of contract type, contractor selection or 
rejection, and the basis for the contract price.  

 
2. Competition  (section 200.319) 

 
All procurement transactions must be conducted in a manner providing for 
open and full competition.  To that end, all solicitations must incorporate a 
clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the 
material, product, or service to be procured.  Such descriptions must not 
contain features which unduly restrict competition.  The description may 
include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product, or 
service to be procured and, when necessary, must set forth those minimum 
essential characteristics and standards to which it must conform if it is to 
satisfy its intended use.  Solicitations must also identify the requirements 
which the offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be used in 
evaluating bids or proposals. 
 

3. Methods of Procurement to be Followed  (section 200.320) 
 

a. Procurement by micro-purchase is the acquisition of supplies or 
services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does not exceed $3000 
(or $2000 in the case of acquisition for construction subject to the 
Davis-Bacon Act).  To the extent practicable, micro-purchases must be 
distributed equitably among qualified suppliers.  Micro-purchases may 
be awarded without soliciting competitive quotes if the non-Federal 
entity considers the price to be reasonable. 

b. Small purchase procedures are those relatively simple and informal 
procurement methods for securing services, supplies, or other property 
that do not cost more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold 
(currently $150,000).  If small purchase procedures are used, price or 
rate quotes must be obtained from an adequate number of qualified 
sources.   

c. Procurement by sealed bids.  Bids are publicly solicited and a firm 
fixed price contract is awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid, 
conforming with all of the material terms and conditions of the 
invitation for bids, is the lowest in price.  The sealed bid method is 
preferred for procuring construction, if the conditions following apply:  
a complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase 
description is available; two or more responsible bidders are willing 
and able to compete effectively for the business; and the procurement 

Board Packet June 2016 140



 21

lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the 
successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price.  If 
sealed bids are used the following requirements apply:  The invitation 
for bids will be publically advertised and bids must be solicited from 
an adequate number of know suppliers, providing them sufficient time 
prior to the date set for opening the bids.  The invitation for bids, 
which will include any specifications and pertinent attachments, must 
define the items or services in order for the bidder to properly respond.  
All bids will be publically opened at the time and place prescribed in 
the invitation for bids.  A firm fixed price contract award will be made 
in writing to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder.  Where 
specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, 
transportation cost, and life cycle costs must be considered in 
determining which bid is lowest.  Payment discounts will only be used 
to determine the low bid when prior experience indicates that such 
discounts are usually taken advantage of.  Any or all bids may be 
rejected if there is a sound documented reason. 

d. Procurement by competitive proposal. The technique of 
competitive proposals is normally conducted with more than one 
source submitting an offer, and either a fixed price or cost-
reimbursement type contract is awarded.  It is generally used when 
conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids.  If this 
method is used, the following requirements apply:  Requests for 
proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and 
their relative importance.  Any response to publicized requests for 
proposals must be considered to the maximum extent practical.  
Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified 
sources.  The non-Federal entity must have a written method for 
evaluation of the proposals received and for selecting recipients.  
Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is 
most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors being 
considered.  

e. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals.  Procurement by 
noncompetitive proposals is procurement through solicitation of a 
proposal from only one source and may be used when one or more of 
the following circumstances apply:  The item is only available from a 
single source.  The public exigency or emergency for the requirement 
will not permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation.  The 
Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes 
noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the 
non-Federal entity.  After solicitation of a number of sources, 
competition is determined to be inadequate.  

 

Board Packet June 2016 141



 22

 
4. Contracting with Small and Minority Businesses, Women’s Businesses, 

and Labor Surplus Area Firms.  (section 200.321) 
 
a. All necessary affirmative steps must be taken to assure that small 

and minority businesses, women’s businesses, and labor surplus area 
firms are used when possible. 

b. Affirmative steps include:  Placing qualified small and minority 
businesses and women’s business enterprises on a solicitation list.  
Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women’s business 
enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources.  Dividing 
total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or 
quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority 
businesses, and women’s business enterprises.  Establishing delivery 
schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage 
participation by small and minority businesses, and women’s business 
enterprises.  Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such 
organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority 
Business Development of Commerce.   
  

5. Contract Cost and Price  (section 200.323) 
 
a. A cost price analysis must be performed in connection with every 

procurement action in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold 
(currently $150,000).  The method and degree of analysis is dependent 
on the facts surrounding the particular procurement situation, but as a 
starting point, independent estimates must be made before receiving 
bids or proposals.  Profit must be negotiated as a separate element of 
the price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed.  
To establish a fair and reasonable profit, consideration must be given 
to the complexity of the work to be performed, the risk borne by the 
contractor, the contractor’s investment, the amount of subcontracting, 
the quality of its record of past performance, and industry profit rates 
in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.  Costs or prices 
based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal award are 
allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost estimates 
included in the negotiated prices would be allowable for the non-
Federal entity under Subpart E – Cost Principles of this Part.  The cost 
plus a percentage of cost methods must not be used.    

  
  

  
  

Board Packet June 2016 142



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-29 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the proposed change to the proposed 2016 

Administrative Budget  and recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the proposed Administrative Budget and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  Administrative Budget. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 143



CAPCO

Income Statement

Proposed

LINE ITEM  2016 ADM 

ADM - ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES

EXPENSES

     PERSONNEL

          SALARIES/WAGES

               1-500000-MAG-MAG SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 226,789$            

               1-500201-MAG-MAG NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 16,983$              

          Total SALARIES/WAGES 243,772$            

          FRINGES

               1-500300-MAG-MAG FICA EXPENSE 17,095$              

               1-500400-MAG-MAG UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 12,863$              

               1-500500-MAG-MAG WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 4,455$                

               1-500600-MAG-MAG DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 377$                   

               1-500700-MAG-MAG GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 22,196$              

               1-500800-MAG-MAG 401-K EXPENSE 4,380$                

               1-501203-MAG-MAG Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 2,813$                

          Total FRINGES 64,179$              

     Total PERSONNEL 307,950$            

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL

               1-501100-MAG-MAG OFFICE SUPPLIES 9,368$                

               1-504200-MAG-MAG PARKING LOT RENTAL 524$                   

               1-505600-MAG-MAG DUPLICATING & PRINTING 470$                   

               1-506000-MAG-MAG INTERNET SERVICE 831$                   

               1-506100-MAG-MAG TELEPHONE 1,530$                

               1-506300-MAG-MAG Computer & Software Expense 4,610$                

               1-507100-MAG-MAG CONFERENCE EXPENSE 1,035$                

               1-507200-MAG-MAG TRAINING & TECHNICAL AST 500$                   

               1-507500-MAG-MAG Staff Development 900$                   

               1-508800-MAG-MAG PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 605$                   

               1-509100-MAG-MAG ADVERTISING 1,894$                

               1-800100-MAG-MAG BUILDING ALLOCATION 24,180$              

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONNEL 46,448$              

     CONTRACTUAL

               1-502000-mag-mag CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 325$                   

     Total CONTRACTUAL 325$                   

     ADMINISTRATION

               1-505100-MAG-MAG PAYROLL PROCESSING 5,200$                

               1-505200-MAG-MAG EAP SERVICES 7,216$                

               1-800000-MAG-MAG ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION (367,139)$           

     Total ADMINISTRATION (354,723)$           

Total EXPENSES -$                        

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -$                        

Board Packet June 2016 144



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-30 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Program 

(CDPAP) 2016 Budget and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the proposed CDPAP Budget and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  2016 CDPAP Budget. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

 

 

 

 

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 145



CAPCO

Income Statement

Proposed

LINE ITEM
2016 CDPAP 

MEDICAID - MEDICAID

REVENUE

     OTHER REVENUE

               1-400200-CDC-CDC MEDICAID REVENUE 1,373,931$          

               1-400700-CDC-CDC OTHER INCOME 1,943$                 

               1-400900-CDC-CDC INKIND DONATIONS -$                         

     Total OTHER REVENUE 1,375,874$          

Total REVENUE 1,375,874$          

EXPENSES

     PERSONNEL

          SALARIES/WAGES

               1-500000-CDC-CDC SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 945,182$             

   NEW ACCRUED BENEFIT TIME 5,617$                 

          Total SALARIES/WAGES 950,799$             

          FRINGES

               1-500300-CDC-CDC FICA EXPENSE 69,760$               

               1-500400-CDC-CDC UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 60,865$               

               1-500500-CDC-CDC WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 58,704$               

               1-500600-CDC-CDC DISABILITY INSURANCE EXPENSE 5,024$                 

               1-500700-CDC-CDC GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 67,031$               

               1-500800-CDC-CDC 401-K EXPENSE 8,206$                 

               1-501203-CDC-CDC Fringes on Accrued Leave Earned 1,074$                 

          Total FRINGES 270,664$             

     Total PERSONNEL 1,221,464$          

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL

               1-501100-CDC-CDC OFFICE SUPPLIES 838$                    

               1-504200-CDC-CDC PARKING LOT RENTAL 84$                      

               1-505500-CDC-CDC POSTAGE 1,977$                 

               1-505600-CDC-CDC DUPLICATING & PRINTING 943$                    

               1-506000-CDC-CDC INTERNET SERVICE 103$                    

               1-506100-CDC-CDC TELEPHONE 114$                    

               1-506300-CDC-CDC Computer & Software Expense 100$                    

               1-507400-CDC-CDC STAFF RECOG. -$                         

               1-507500-CDC-CDC Staff Development 800$                    

               1-507600-CDC-CDC LOCAL TRAVEL 17,962$               

               1-508400-CDC-CDC STAFF IMMUNIZATIONS 1,560$                 

               1-508700-CDC-CDC DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 500$                    

               1-508750-CDC-CDC BACKGROUND CHECKS 2,236$                 

               1-508800-CDC-CDC PERMITS, FEES, & RENTALS 4,797$                 

               1-509100-CDC-CDC ADVERTISING 1,372$                 
               1-800100-CDC-CDC BUILDING ALLOCATION 2,967$                 

     Total OTHER THAN PERSONNEL 36,353$               

     INKIND

               1-600200-CDC-CDC INKIND DONATIONS -$                         

     Total INKIND -$                         

     ADMINISTRATION

               1-505000-CDC-CDC FINANCIAL AUDIT 3,469$                 

               1-505100-CDC-CDC PAYROLL PROCESSING 4,881$                 
               1-800000-CDC-CDC ADMINISTRATIVE ALLOCATION 92,249$               

     Total ADMINISTRATION 100,599$             

Total EXPENSES 1,358,416$          

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 17,458$               

Board Packet June 2016 146



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-31 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the 2016 Building Budget and has recommended 

accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the proposed Building Budget and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  2016 Building Budget. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 147



CAPCO
Income Statement

32 N. Main BLDG Budget
Proposed

LINE ITEM
2016 BLDG

EXPENSES

     PERSONNEL

          SALARIES/WAGES

               1-500000-MAG-MAG SALARY/WAGE EXPENSE 3,343$          
          Total SALARIES/WAGES 3,343$          

          FRINGES

               1-500300-MAG-MAG FICA EXPENSE 242$             
               1-500400-MAG-MAG UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE EXPENSE 161$             
               1-500500-MAG-MAG WORKERS COMP EXPENSE 93$               
               1-500700-MAG-MAG GROUP INSURANCE EXPENSE 84$               
               1-500800-MAG-MAG 401-K EXPENSE 98$               

          Total FRINGES 678$             

     Total PERSONNEL 4,021$          

     OTHER THAN PERSONNEL

               1-501000-MAG-MAG PROGRAM MATERIALS ‐$                   

               1-501100-MAG-MAG OFFICE SUPPLIES ‐$                   
               1-503200-MAG-MAG COMMERCIAL INSURANCE 19,000$         
               1-504200-MAG-MAG PARKING LOT RENTAL ‐$                   
               1-504300-MAG-MAG OFFICE UTILITIES 22,000$         
               1-504400-MAG-MAG PROGRAM UTILITIES (0)$                 

               1-504500-MAG-MAG JANITORIAL MAINTENANCE 34,600$         
               1-504600-MAG-MAG BUILDING MAINTENANCE 7,400$           

               1-504700-MAG-MAG TRASH REMOVAL 2,025$           
               1-505700-MAG-MAG MORTGAGE INTEREST EXPENSE 8,129$           
               1-505800-MAG-MAG MORTGAGE PRIN EX - FNB 28,590$         
               1-505900-MAG-MAG MORTGAGE PRIN EXP -CITY 6,000$           
               1-506200-mag-mag CENTER TELEPHONE ‐$                   
               1-507400-MAG-MAG STAFF RECOG. ‐$                   

               1-800100-MAG-MAG BUILDING ALLOCATION (134,264)$    
     Total OTHER THAN PERSONNEL (6,521)$        

     CONTRACTUAL

               1-502000-mag-mag CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-OTHER 2,500$           

     Total CONTRACTUAL 2,500$          

Total EXPENSES 0

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0

Board Packet June 2016 148



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-32 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Finance 

Committee has reviewed the 2016 Agency Wide Budget and has recommended 

accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the proposed Agency Wide Budget and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  2016 Agency Wide Budget. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 149



Board Development Committee 

June 21, 2016 

In attendance:  Pat Snyder, MaryAnn Discenza, Rama Haidara. Absent: Cheryl Michales. Staff: 
Eden Harrington-Hall 

Meeting to order at 8:05 p.m. 

The committee reviewed the results of the Board Self-Assessment (see attached).  For the most 
part members either strongly agreed or agreed with each of the 35 questions.  One thing noted 
was the uncertainty of whether the Board has an adequate amount of liability insurance and 
has adequate risk management and control policies in place.  It was noted that this could be a 
training topic for the Board.  Also, there are several training topics on the website that can be 
used for mini trainings at Board meetings.  All present agreed that this would be a good idea. 

We continue the discussion about filling the seats of both Cheryl and Paula who will be rotating 
off the Board at the end of this year, both are Public Sector representatives.  MaryAnn offered 
to see if anyone from the Legislature might be interested and maybe Adam McGivern might 
offer to serve.  Eden also suggested that should could send out the Elected Public Roster for 
review to see if someone might identify someone who might be interested in serving.  

Eden updated the committee on our preparation for the upcoming TRACS which is scheduled 
for July 12-13.  A lot of material is required in paper form – nothing electronic.  There are 9 
Categories with several standards per category each of which need documentation that the 
standard is met – a LOT of paper.   

There being no further business, meeting adjourned at 8.40 a.m. 

  

Board Packet June 2016 150



55.56% 5

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q2 The agency has a written mission
statement which the Board understands

and routinely considers when establishing
organizational plans, policies and priorities.

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

2 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 151



55.56% 5

33.33% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

11.11% 1

Q3 The size and composition of the Board
meets both agency Bylaw and Federal/State
CSBG and other applicable regulatory/legal

standards.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

3 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 152



55.56% 5

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q4 Board members reflect a diverse array
of experience, expertise and community

representation which helps the Board make
more thoughtful and informed decisions.

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

4 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 153



44.44% 4

55.56% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q5 The Board has been offered training to
address emerging needs and promote Best

Practices in agency governance.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

5 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 154



44.44% 4

55.56% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q6 The Board does a good job of recruiting,
nominating, electing and orienting new

Board members on a timely basis.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

6 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 155



44.44% 4

55.56% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q7 The Board receives meeting notices,
agendas, minutes and relevant information

at least 5 days in advance of Board
meetings.

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

7 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 156



55.56% 5

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q8 Board meetings are focused on broader
issues of policy formulation, strategic

planning and management oversight rather
than procedural issues, administrative
details or simple information reporting.

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

8 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 157



55.56% 5

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q9 The roles and responsibilities of the
Board and the agency’s Executive are clear

and respected.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

9 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 158



33.33% 3

66.67% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q10 The Board completes a timely, annual
written appraisal of the performance of the

agency’s Executive/CEO.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

10 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 159



55.56% 5

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q11 Board member meeting attendance
reflects a strong collective commitment to

promoting the mission and goals of the
agency.

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

11 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 160



44.44% 4

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

11.11% 1

Q12 The Board has approved an updated
agency Strategic Plan and progress in

implementing the Plan is reviewed on an
annual basis.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

12 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 161



44.44% 4

55.56% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q13 The Board approves an annual
organizational operating budget prior to the

start of a new corporate fiscal year.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

13 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 162



66.67% 6

33.33% 3

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q14 The Board routinely receives and
reviews timely, accurate and

understandable financial reports
throughout the year including an

independent annual audit.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

14 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 163



44.44% 4

55.56% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q15 Board Members have received, signed
and comply with agency Code of Ethics and

Conflict-of-Interest policies.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

15 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 164



44.44% 4

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

11.11% 1

Q16 The Board is knowledgeable about
agency programs and receives reports

assessing performance based on ROMA
goals and standards.

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

16 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 165



44.44% 4

55.56% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q17 Board Committees are active and
contribute to the overall effectiveness and

productivity of the Board.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

17 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 166



11.11% 1

66.67% 6

11.11% 1

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

11.11% 1

Q18 The Board acknowledges and
exercises its responsibilities to assist in

agency marketing and fundraising.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

18 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 167



44.44% 4

55.56% 5

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q19 Board meetings make the most
productive use of member’s time and afford

opportunities for members to share ideas
and opinions.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

19 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 168



44.44% 4

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

11.11% 1

Q20 The Board has an adequate amount of
liability insurance and has adequate risk

management and control policies in place.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

20 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 169



55.56% 5

44.44% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q21 Overall, my experience as a Board
member has been both positive and

productive.
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly
Disagree

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Strongly Agree

Agree

Disagree

Strongly

Strongly Disagree

Not Sure

21 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 170



Q22 DO I KNOW THE LEGAL SIDE OF
BOARD MEMBERSHIP?

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

75.00%
6

25.00%
2

0.00%
0

 
8

75.00%
6

12.50%
1

12.50%
1

 
8

75.00%
6

12.50%
1

12.50%
1

 
8

I know I know where to find out I want to know more

What is the
role of the...

What my legal
responsibili...

Whether I'm
insured

What my
liabilities ...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 I know I know where to find out I want to know more Total

What is the role of the board

What my legal responsibilities are

Whether I'm insured

What my liabilities are as a board member

22 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 171



Q23 DO I UNDERSTAND THE
ORGANIZATION?

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

100.00%
9

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
9

77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

100.00%
9

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
9

I know I know where to find out I want to know more

The stated
purpose and...

The
organization...

The Bylaws of
CAPCO

The Goals of
CAPCO

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 I know I know where to find out I want to know more Total

The stated purpose and Mission of CAPCO

The organizational structure

The Bylaws of CAPCO

The Goals of CAPCO

23 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 172



Q24 DO I KNOW THE BOARD MEMBERS?
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

What position
each Board...

What part each
person plays...

What my
commitments ...

What tasks am
I responsibl...

To Whom am I
immediately...

Who is
immediately...

24 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 173



77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

55.56%
5

44.44%
4

0.00%
0

 
9

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

66.67%
6

22.22%
2

11.11%
1

 
9

66.67%
6

33.33%
3

0.00%
0

 
9

I know I know where to find out I want to know more

What records
am I...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 I know I know where to find out I want to know more Total

What position each Board member holds in the community

What part each person plays in the purpose of CAPCO

What my commitments of time & money are

What tasks am I responsible for

To Whom am I immediately responsible

Who is immediately responsible to me

What records am I responsible for

25 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 174



Q25 DO I KNOW THE BUDGET?
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Have a current
copy of the...

Understand the
CAPCO budget

Know who
develops,...

Know what the
main sources...

Know the
procedures f...

Who audits
CAPCO

26 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 175



77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

77.78%
7

11.11%
1

11.11%
1

 
9

88.89%
8

0.00%
0

11.11%
1

 
9

77.78%
7

11.11%
1

11.11%
1

 
9

77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

100.00%
9

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
9

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

I know I know where to find out I want to know more

Is there
adequate...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 I know I know where to find out I want to know more Total

Have a current copy of the budget

Understand the CAPCO budget

Know who develops, approves and administers the budget

Know what the main sources of revenue are

Know the procedures for capital expenditures are

Who audits CAPCO

Is there adequate insurance

27 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 176



Q26 DO I PARTICPATE IN FUND RAISING?
Answered: 8 Skipped: 1

62.50%
5

37.50%
3

0.00%
0

 
8

37.50%
3

50.00%
4

12.50%
1

 
8

I know I know where to find out I want to know more

Am I
personally...

In what way am
I expected t...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 I know I know where to find out I want to know more Total

Am I personally donating to the Agency

In what way am I expected to participate in fund raising events

28 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 177



Q27 DO I KNOW THE STAFF?
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

I know I know where to find out I want to know more

The personnel
policies and...

The key staff

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 I know I know where to find out I want to know more Total

The personnel policies and procedures

The key staff

29 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 178



Q28 DO I KNOW THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR?

Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

I know I know where to find out I want to know more

How the
director...

If the
director kee...

If the
director is...

If the
director is ...

Whether the
director wor...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 I know I know where to find out I want to know more Total

30 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 179



77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

77.78%
7

22.22%
2

0.00%
0

 
9

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

88.89%
8

11.11%
1

0.00%
0

 
9

100.00%
9

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
9

How the director intends to accomplish the goals of CAPCO

If the director keeps within the budget

If the director is good with personnel

If the director is a good organizer

Whether the director works well with other in the Community

31 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 180



Q29 In your opinion, what 3 actions could
be taken to improve the performance and

productivity of the Board during the coming
year:

Answered: 5 Skipped: 4

32 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 181



Q30 Would the performance of the Board be
improved with training focused on

addressing specific needs? If so, what are
some the needs which you feel should be

addressed during the upcoming year?
Answered: 4 Skipped: 5

33 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 182



0.00% 0

77.78% 7

22.22% 2

Q31 Is there any way you feel the Board
could make more effective use of your time

and talents?
Answered: 9 Skipped: 0

Total 9

Yes

No

Not Sure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Yes

No

Not Sure

34 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 183



Q32 Any Other Suggestions for Improving
Board Effectiveness?

Answered: 3 Skipped: 6

35 / 35

Board Self Assessment SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 184



PPP Committee 
June 22, 2016 

Members present:  Liz Haskins, Shelley Warnow, Billie McNabb.  Excused:  Shawn Allen. 
Absent:  Gary Dallaire.  Staff present:  Lindy Glennon, Eden Harrington-Hall. 

Introductions of those present.  Two new committee members join committee this month – 
Billie McNabb and Shelley Warnow. 

Committee reviewed Head Start/Early Head Start reports for April (see attached).  These 
included attendance, special needs, mental health, health/dental, parent activity.  All reports 
were discussed, no concerns noted.  Motion to accept reports made by Liz Haskins, 2nd Shelley 
Warnow, motion carried. 

Committee reviewed current updated Vendor Questionnaire Report (VQR) (See attached).  No 
concerns noted, no changes recommended. 

Eden reviewed Strategic Plan with outcomes and measures report (see attached).  Discussed 
connection with national goals, national performance indicators.  Noted outcomes met, 
proposed changes and updates.  Motion to accept as presented made by Billie McNabb, 2nd Liz 
Haskins, motion carried. 

Committee reviewed and approved CSBG amendment workplan (see attached).  Noted changes 
made to workplan.  No significant additions or deletions.  Motion to approve made by Liz 
Haskins, 2nd Shelley Warnow, motion carried. 

Committee reviewed 2nd Quarter PPR (see attached).  Noted areas to be discussed and changed 
for the amendment workplan.  After review and discussion, motion to accept made by Shelley 
Warnow, 2nd Liz Haskins, motion carried.  

Recent Customer Satisfaction Survey results shared with committee (see attached).  Individual 
programs do customer surveys.  This was for full agency.  There were 184 responses.  
Cumulative responses were 3.5-4 out of 4 for all questions.  Participants shared they felt 
respected, got support needed, felt resources were valuable.   

Being no further business or discussion, meeting adjourned at 1:10 p.m. 

Board Packet June 2016 185



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-33 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. PP&E Committee 

has reviewed the 2015-2016 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Work Plan 

Amendment  and has recommended accepting as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the Work Plan Amendment  and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  2015-2016 CSBG Work Plan Amendment. 

  _________________ 

President 

  ________________ 

Date 

W 

W 

I

Board Packet June 2016 186



Check one: 22
Work Plan Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 PPR #3
PPR #2 PPR #4

Contract # C1000292

Page

FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

of

0%

0%

0

0

0%

0%

0%

ATTACHMENT C 6

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

PPR #1 
Achieved

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR)
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Families with low incomes  are found to be at nutritional and health risk (F)

Women, Infants and Children (WIC) (1 of 4)

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

YTD
%

PPR #2 
Achieved

YTD
Total

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

Peer Counselor 
Documentation

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Contractor

150  infants will be healthier and will increase their ability to 
fight early childhood infections as a result of breastfeeding.

1800

0

Case files, food voucher 
records

The agency's WIC Program provides 
supplemental foods, health care referrals, and 
nutrition education for low-income pregnant, 
breastfeeding, and non-breastfeeding 
postpartum women, and to infants and 
children up to age five who are found to be at 
nutritional risk.

Of 1800 individuals seeking WIC assistance: Intake form/caseload reports
1800 of 1800 will improve their health and physical 
development as a result of access to nutritional foods and 
nutrition education. 6.3.B

1650 of 1800 will be referred to other service providers for 
additional assistance. 6.5.E Referral records (2x/year) 1650

150
6 partnerships will promote the program, provide space,  
and funding (1 State Government, 1 Local Government, 1 
faith based, 1 not-for-profit, 1 consortium, 1 State 

4.1.A-
M

MOU's, meeting minutes, 
association membership 6 0

0

Annual 
Projected

1800

(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 187



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0 10/1/15-3/31/16

Contract # C1000292Contractor

Page

FFY 2016

Low income families who are at nutritional and health risk (F)

Snack Packs for Kids (2 of 4)

0%0

YTD
%

0%

0%

0%

0%

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

of

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

ATTACHMENT C 7

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Of the 150 children receiving backpacks, 7955 backpacks will 
be distributed

Program that addresses the need described above:

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR)

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

Referrals from schools 
documenting need

215 of 215 children will be enrolled in the program Referral form

215 of 215children's health and physical development will be 
improved as a result of adequate nutrition. 6.3.B Backpack allocations

0

0

0

6.5.A Backpack allocations 0

4.1.A-
M MOU's , in-kind report

(continue on next page, if necessary)

The agency's Snack Pack for Kids program 
provides nutritious foods for food insecure 
children throughout the county in an effort to 
help alleviate hunger.

215 children will be referred to the program:

Budget Period

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

215

215

215

7955

8

Annual 
Projected

8 partnerships, will support the program by donating funds, 
referring eligible children, and providing space.  (5 school 
districts, 1 higher education, 1 financial institution, 1 
collaboration) 

Board Packet June 2016 188



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Low income families who are at nutritional and health risk (F)

Health and Nutrition (3a of 4)

0%

0%

0%

0%

FFY 2016
Budget Period

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

YTD
%

0%

0%

PageATTACHMENT C 8 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR)

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.
10/1/15-3/31/17

Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Program that addresses the need described above:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

 The agency's Health and Nutrition component 
introduces low-income families  to a holistic 
approach to healthy lifestyles, including  
exercise classes, menu planning, and cooking 
classes, and improved access to fresh fruits and 
vegetables through Community Supported 
Agriculture (CSA) Shares and the Farmer's 
Market. Our aim is to raise awareness on the 
importance of healthy lifestyles  and help to 
decrease the incidences of obesity.  

Of 70 individuals seeking health and nutrition services: Intake Form

Of those 10 receiving CSA Shares, 180 boxes of food will be 
distributed 6.3.A Weekly sign-out sheets

0

0

0

10 will be enrolled in the CSA Program. Intake Form

10 will improve their nutritional well being through access to 
nutritional foods. 6.3.B Post Survey

40 will participate in exercise classes and improve their 
health and physical well being. 6.3.E Attendance Sheets

180

40

0

0

040
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Pre/Post Survey

70

10

10

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

40 will participate in cooking classes and exhibit improved 
family functioning. 6.3.K

Contractor

Annual 
Projected

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Board Packet June 2016 189



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Contract # C1000292

Low income families who are at nutritional and health risk (F)

Health and Nutrition (3b of 4)

Page

0%

0%

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR)

ATTACHMENT C 9 of

YTD
%

PPR #3 
Achieved

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Program that addresses the need described above:

Contractor

7 partnerships will support the goals of the health and 
nutrition program, through referrals, funding, space (2 
school districts, 1 business, 1 NFP, 3 collaborations)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

The agency's Health and Nutrition component 
introduces low-income families  to a holistic 
approach to healthy lifestyles, including  
exercise classes, menu planning, and cooking 
classes, and improved access to fresh fruits and 
vegetables through Community Supported 
Agriculture (CSA) Shares and the Farmer's 
Market. Our aim is to raise awareness on the 
importance of healthy lifestyles  and help to 
decrease the incidences of obesity.  

Families will receive 175 boxes of fresh fruits and vegetables 
using SNAP benefits 6.5.A EBT Transactions 0

0

0

4.A-M
Partnership 
Agreements/MOU's

0

0

(continue on next page, if necessary)
0

Annual 
Projected

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

175

7

Board Packet June 2016 190



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Contractor

FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Contract # C1000292

Accessibility of health care for families (C)

Community Health Worker (4 of 4)

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

YTD
%

#DIV/0!

0%

0%

#DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

Page
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR)

ATTACHMENT C 10 of

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

PPR #1 
Achieved

Connect high need women and families to 
appropriate navigator sites for assistance with 
enrollment into public health insurance 
programs / family planning benefits programs 
or market place as appropriate. Provide one on 
one education and appropriate referral for 
health care services to women and their 
families. Assist to remove barriers to accessing 
care as appropriate.  The medical, behavioral 
and psychosocial risk factors of high – need 
women and infants are identified and 
addressed through timely and coordinated 
counseling, management, referral, and follow – 
up. 

Of 50 individuals seeking assistance.

5 of the 50 will enroll in a health insurance plan. 1.2.G Tracking Form

0

0

35 of the 40 will be referred to the appropriate health care 
services based upon their specific need. 6.5 E Tracking Form 0

0

0

0
(continue on next page, if necessary)

5

25

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Program that addresses the need described above:

Annual 
Projected

Board Packet June 2016 191



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Contractor

Page

FFY 2016

0%

0%

0%

0%

Children face barriers to school readiness (F)

Head Start/Early Head Start (1 of 2)

0%

0%

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

YTD
%

0

YTD
Total

0
(continue on next page, if necessary)

136 of 272 children will be developmentally ready to enter 
kindergarten 6.3 D CORE Report

0

272 of 272 children will participate in pre-school activities to 
develop school readiness skills 6.3 C Attendance Records

272 of 272 children's health will be improved as a result of 
adequate nutrition. 6.3 B

CACFP meal count 
documentation 272

Childs File

0

0272

272

272 children will participant in Head Start/Early Head HS/EHS Attendance Records 272

272 of 272 children will be up to date on age appropriate 
immunizations, medical and/or dental care 6.3 A

PPR #3 
Achieved

The agency's Head Start/Early Head Start 
program provides comprehensive pre-school 
activities which include classroom instruction, 
home base, health and nutrition, and social 
emotional  development for children ages zero 
to four, as well as support services for their 
families.

Of 272 children eligible for Head Start/Early Head Start: HS/EHS Intake Form 272 0

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

PPR #4 
Achieved

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17
Contract # C1000292

ATTACHMENT C 11 of

136

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

Annual 
Projected

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Program that addresses the need described above:

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR)

Board Packet June 2016 192



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Contractor

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

0 #DIV/0!

0 0%

0 0%

13 partnerships  will support program, provide space, and in-
kind paraprofessional services(4 school districts, 5 not-for-
profit, 2 higher education, 2 faith based) 

4.1 A-
M MOU's 13

0 0%

0f the 220, 200 will learn and exhibit improved family 
functioning 6.3 K

Documented achievement on 
a Family Strength Assessment 200

220 of 240 parents/caregivers will participate in HS/EHS 
family engagement services by completing a family strength 
assessment

Completion of Family Strength 
Assessment (FSA) 220

0 0%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

The agency's Head Start/Early Head Start 
program provides comprehensive pre-school 
activities which include classroom instruction, 
home base, health and nutrition, and social 
emotional  development for children ages zero 
to four, as well as support services for their 
families

240 parents/caregivers will be engaged by HS/EHS staff 
through home visits. Family worker notes 240

Program that addresses the need described above: Head Start/Early Head Start (2 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Children face barriers to school readiness (F)

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 12 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Board Packet June 2016 193



Check one: 22
Work Plan Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 PPR #3
PPR #2 PPR #4

ATTACHMENT C Page 13 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack essentials such as food, clothing household appliances, transportation assistance, utility assistance. (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: Community Action Angels (1 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

The agency's Family Development Component 
provides low-income families with clothing, 
household appliances, transportation 
assistance, utility assistance, etc.

Of  775 individuals seeking assistance: Intake Form 775 0 0%

775 of 775 will receive  clothing. 6.2 K Database 775 0 0%

25 of 775 will receive emergency car or home repair. 6.2 D Intake Form 25 0 0%

10 of 775 will receive emergency food. 6.2 A Intake Form 10 0 0%

17 of 775 will receive fuel or utility assistance 6.2 B Intake Form 17 0 0%

10 of 775 will receive emergency transportation 6.2 I Intake Form 10 0 0%
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 194



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

ATTACHMENT C Page 14 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack essentials such as food, clothing household appliances, transportation assistance, utility assistance. (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: Community Action Angels (2 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 The agency's Family Development Component 
provides low-income families with clothing, 
household appliances, transportation 
assistance, utility assistance, etc.

2 of the 775 will receive Emergency Medical Care 6.2 F Intake Form 2 0 0%

150 of the 775 will be referred to other service providers. 6.5 E Referral Tracking Form 150 0 0%

8 partnerships will be established to support services and in-
kind resources  (5 businesses, 2 NFP) 

4.1 A-
M MOU's 8 0 0%

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 195



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

ATTACHMENT C Page 15 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income individuals lack the competencies and resources for achieving academic and employment goals.   (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: TASC Preparation/Tutoring (1 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Through the High School Equivalency (HSE) 
Program, provide tutoring, preparation for 
TASC testing,  transportation to TASC test sites, 
and higher education counseling will be 
provided to low income individuals.

Of 70 enrolled in the HSE/Tutoring program: Intake Application 70 0 0%

15 will have at least 12 hours of attendance. Attendance Records 15 0 0%

10 will have a grade level improvement in math or reading.
Grade level improvement on 
math TABE test, case notes. 10 0 0%

12 will take the TASC exam, and pass from 1-4 of the five 
test. 6.3. I

Grade level improvement on 
math TABE test, case notes. 12 0 0%

20 will have individual math/literacy tutoring to meet 
education or employment goals. 1.2. A Attendance Records 20 0 0%

8 will receive their HSE diploma. 1.2 B Case Notes 8 0 0%
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 196



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

ATTACHMENT C Page 16 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income individuals lack the competencies and resources for achieving academic and employment goals.   (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: Safe Sitter Certification (2 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 Through the Safe Sitter Certification, provide 
youth the necessary skills to care for infants 
and children leading to employment 
opportunities.

Of 40 enrolled: Intake Form 0 #DIV/0!

30 will attend the 7 hour course. Attendance Records 30 0 0%

30 will obtain skills and competencies required for successful 
employment 1.2 A Certificates 30 0 0%
5 partnerships will be established to support services, 
provide space, and referrals  (2 Schools, 1 Higher Learning, 
and  2 NFP) 

4.1 A-
M MOU's 5 0 0%

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

0 #DIV/0!

Board Packet June 2016 197



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

ATTACHMENT C Page 17 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Lack of community facilities in the rural areas of the community ( C )

Program that addresses the need described above: Family Success Centers (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 The agency will operate Family Success 
Centers in the communities of Marathon and 
McGraw in an effort to provide services and 
activities in the rural areas of the county. The 
center provides opportunities for people in the 
community to access resources including 
emergency assistance, application for food 
stamps, parent support and education, 
activities for children, support with household 
finances, health and nutrition through cooking 
classes, filing income taxes through the 
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance Program 
(VITA), etc.

Increase in the availability of community resources  in the 
rural communities of Marathon and McGraw. (2 Opp.) 2.2 B 0 #DIV/0!

425 families will receive services in rural areas of the 
community 2.2 B Sign in sheets/Intake Forms 425 0 0%

2 school district partnerships will be maintained to support 
the FSC's by providing space.

4.1 A-
M MOU's 2 0 0%

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 198



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

ATTACHMENT C Page 18 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack the skills necessary for successful parenting. (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: Parents with Hope and Focus on Fatherhood (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 The agency's Parent's with Hope and Focus on 
Fatherhood groups are a 10 week course 
designed to provide parents/caregivers  with 
the skills necessary to effectively parent.  
Topics include a large variety of issues facing 
today's parents/caregivers which include: 
communication, step-parenting, addiction, 
discipline, bullying, child safety, and much 
more.  

Of 40 parents/caregivers  applying to participate in parenting 
classes: Intake Forms 40 0 0%

30 of the 40 will enroll in the course. Intake Forms/Pre Surveys 30 0 0%

25 of 30  will complete the training course.
attendance sheets/ certificate 
of completion 25 0 0%

25 of the 40 will learn and exhibit improved parenting skills. 6.3 J Post Survey 25 0 0%

1 local government partnership will promote the program, 1 
State government 

4.1 A-
M e-mails, referrals 2 0 0%

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 199



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Contractor

ATTACHMENT C Page 19 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack economic stability  (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 Through the agency sponsored VITA program  
assistance will be given to low individuals  in 
preparing and filing their federal and State 
personal income taxes at no cost and ensure 
that workers receive all the tax credits to which 
they are entitled.

600 individuals will qualify for free tax preparation 
assistance: Income Verification 0 #DIV/0!

Of those tax returns $300,000 in Federal and State EITC tax 
credits will be applied 1.3 A VITA Report 300,000 0 0%
6 partnerships will promote the program, and provide 
volunteer services  (1 financial, 4 NFP, and 1 higher 
education

4.a A-
M Agreements 6 0 0%

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 200



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Contractor

ATTACHMENT C Page 20 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Individuals with a disability maintaining their independence while living in the community (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Program (CDPAP) (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 The agency’s Consumer Directed Personal 
Assistance Program (CDPAP) provides services 
to allow individuals with disabilities and other 
medical conditions more control over their 
personal assistance services.  This allows an 
individual the ability to manage his or her care 
and make decisions based upon his or her own 
individualized needs and to live in the 
community as independently as possible.

Of 70 individuals applying for CDPAP Services 0 #DIV/0!

70 of 70 will maintain a independent living situation 6.1.B Assessment Tool 70 0 0%

Of the 70, 6 family caregivers will obtain/maintain 
employment 1.2 G Assessment Tool 6 0 0%

1 partnership will local government will promote the 
program and refer clients.

4.1 A-
M Contract 1 0 0%

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 201



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Contractor

ATTACHMENT C Page 21 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families face challenges affording quality, safe, affordable housing (F)

Program that addresses the need described above: Energy Services (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 The agency's Energy Services Department 
provides energy saving measures to include: 
Insulation, Heating systems, Hot Water Tank 
systems, Air Sealing, Inspecting Combustion 
appliances, Testing Efficiency of Refrigerators, 
Installing CO Detectors & Smoke detectors, and 
a Health & Safety check of the home. The goal 
of the program is to  make homes safer and 
more affordable for low-income families.

Of 290 households applying for Energy Services 
programming Application 290 0 0%

165 of the 290 households will receive Energy Services 
2.1 D 
1.2 K

Energy Services work 
completion form and audit 
form 165 0 0%

132 of the 165 households will show a reduction in energy 
usage relative to past usage

Pre/Post test, utility bills from 
past and present 132 0 0%

30 of the 125 households applying but not receiving services 
will be placed on a waiting list Waiting list 30 0 0%

5 of the 125 applying but not receiving services will be 
referred to other services providers 6.3 E Referral Notice 5 0 0%

3 partnerships will promote program (1 business, 2 non-
profit.)

4.1 A-
M Agreements 3 0 0%

(continue on next page, if necessary)

Board Packet June 2016 202



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment x
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 0 PPR #4 0

Contractor

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

0 0%

0 0%

2 partnerships will promote and financially support the 
program (1 non-profit, 1 civic organization)

4.1 A-
M Agreements, in-kind report 2

12 low income children will improve social/emotional 
development. 6.3 F Attendance 12

0 0%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 Summer Day Camp slots will be created and 
subsidized for  low-income children.

12 low income children will be served through 1 initiative. 2.1 F Agreement 12

Program that addresses the need described above: Summer Day Camp (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Lack of affordable child development placement opportunities for low income families ( C )

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-3/31/17

ATTACHMENT C Page 22 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Board Packet June 2016 203



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-34 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. PP&E Committee 

has reviewed the Updated Strategic Plan and has recommended accepting as 

presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the Strategic Plan and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  Updated Strategic Plan. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 204



Category 1 (Program impact on Individuals and Families ROMA Goals 1 and 6) 
 
CAPCO will refine, reconfigure and/or expand existing programs to help individuals and families achieve greater social, 
nutritional, physical, emotional, family and economic stability. 
  
Strategy Outcomes Measures 
1. Implement the Family Resource Center 

model consistently across sites. 
 

  

2. Support people seeking employment 
with basic skills and resources, 
including: 
a. Literacy, fiscal literacy, and related 

life skills 
b. GED preparation 
c. Specific job-search skills (through 

CAPCO or other community 
resources)  

d. Interview and workplace-
appropriate clothing  

 

Increase the number of participants for whom barriers 
to initial or continuous employment are reduced or 
eliminated 

 
 
Grade level improvement on math 
TABE test, case notes. 
 
 
 
# of Certificates received 
 
# jobs obtained or retained 

3. Shift customer/staff focus from 
reliance on public benefits to the 
specific combinations of formal and 
informal supports that will help 
motivate greater self-reliance in people 
with different skills, goals and 
experiences with “the system”.  

 

Energy Services education re: planning ahead for 
repairs ( to decrease # of emergency requests, 
potentially raise revenue through requests for fee-
based services) 
 
Increase the use of EBT cards for use at Farmer’s 
Market/WIC 
Increase CSA memberships 
 
 
 

# of fee-based services 
 
 
 
WIC Farmer’s Market Redemption 
Report 

4. Develop consistent systems within 
Family Development, to support the 
program’s goals. 

Staff meetings 
Regular In-service training 
Integrated  customer plans 

Minutes documenting topics, progress 
In-service 
Database will support integrated plans 

Board Packet June 2016 205



5. Generate more accurate referrals
between programs.

Increased # of CAPCO customers served by more than 
one program/services 
Improved family/individual outcomes 

With new database, track # of referrals 
between CAPCO programs and 
disposition 

6. Create more effective relationships
with families, employing:
e. Technology (e.g. texting is effective

with HS families)
f. More contacts structured in

advance for greater engagement
g. Safety planning for staff/customer

interactions
h. Child care services during peer

support groups and meetings

ES – text and phone contacts 
FB for WIC, Angels 
HS families – peer counseling 
# participating with/without childcare 

# of people using specific media 
# of people utilizing childcare 

7. Position CAPCO to take advantage of
opportunities that will allow programs
to grow or change for greater impact in
the following areas:
a. Energy Services
b. CDPAP
c. HS/EHS

• Summer camp focusing on 
children maintaining gains 
made before kindergarten

d. Family Development (see #9)
e. WIC (nutrition and physical activity)

(see #8)
f. Other areas identified in the

current Needs Assessment

Children maintain skills or show fewer losses in skills Measuring Childrens' skill levels 

8. Develop a person-centered service
delivery model for WIC (family
Development approach to nutrition
education)

# of families with plans 
# of families demonstrating progress toward goals 

Trying to get everyone a plan – 
documented in the WIC database 
(Change in computer system coming) 
Families establish nutrition goals, 
update goals at visits 

Board Packet June 2016 206



8. Increase access for WIC families (goal ) 
a.  Sat hours 
b. Additional security 

   

Increased # of families served  

9. Expand the Snack Pack program to 
serve additional families. 

 

Increased # of families involved in Family Dev services 
Goal: snack pack program available in all schools 
 

Need additional donors/sponsors 
# donors 
# participating families 

10. Improve retention in GED preparation 
course 

a. Provide child care 

# of people who finish the GED prep  
# of people getting their GED 

Database Report 

11. Support people’s transition to higher 
education  

# Completed post-secondary education program   

12. Develop fee-based Safe Sitter program 
(see Goal 6) 

MOU in place 
Increased participation 

 

 
  

Board Packet June 2016 207



Category 2 (Program impact on Community ROMA Goals 2 and 3) 
 
CAPCO will develop and strengthen linkages between existing CAPCO and community resources to improve access to both 
formal and informal supports for individuals and families. 
  
Strategy Outcomes Measures 
1. Support contacts and referrals 

between existing CAPCO programs and 
other local organizations who do – or 
can – provide services to CAPCO 
families: 
a. Make updated resource and 

contact info available to all staff.  
b. Identify all current organizational 

partners (at the program level) and 
make that information available to 
all staff. 

Increased # of successful referrals on behalf of CAPCO 
families 

Tracked in CAPTAIN 

2. Develop and facilitate informal 
networks of support that bring 
individuals and families together 
around common interests, needs and 
info-sharing (e.g. Parents with Hope, 
Monday Moms w/Helping Hands, 
Caring Heart, Parent Action Groups, 
Breastfeeding Support Group, Policy 
Council, Health Advisory Board), 
considering: 
a. More collaborative efforts w/other 

organizations  
b. More focus on families own 

resources and connections 
c. Self-advocacy skills 

Number of low-income people participating in formal 
community organizations, government, boards or 
councils and who engage in activities that support and 
promote their own well-being and that of their 
community 

 

Board Packet June 2016 208



   

13. Increase the level of family 
engagement among Head Start and 
Early Head Start parents (parent-led 
efforts, needs assessment)  

Increased # of parent-led activities 
Increased # of involved parents, overall 
 

PAG Meeting participation 

14. Develop local solution for children with 
special needs. 

a. Research state regs, SED 
funding requirements, FFS 
possibilities  

b. Consider CAPCO’s role in 
providing special education 
services  

 

Decision re: CAPCO’s role in providing services to 
children with special needs 
 

Business/program plan 
Partners? 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 209



 
 
 
Category 3 (Program impact on Agency Capacity/Partnerships ROMA Goals 4 and 5) 
 
CAPCO staff will gain competency, professionalism, and leadership abilities, working as a team to engage customers, 
improve programs and build community partnerships. 
  
Strategy Outcomes Measures 
1. Provide staff development that focuses 

on helping families move along the 
continuum from crisis to stability and, 
with support, toward advancement. 
 

Staff will gain competency, professionalism, and 
leadership abilities, working as a team to engage 
customers, improve programs and build community 
partnerships. 

Levels of participation in training, in-
service re: Bridges, other evidence-
based practices? 

2. Build stronger staff teams, within and 
between programs. 

Management Team – stronger structure Regular meetings, documented in 
minutes 

3. Increase staff and organizational 
flexibility and continuity by: 
a. Providing opportunities for agency 

staff to observe other programs or 
functional areas 

b. Cross training within and between 
program areas when skills and 
functions align 

c. Expanding orientation for new hires 
to include greater emphasis on the 
whole organization and its role in 
the community, in addition to 
program and position-specific skills 
and information. 

d. Assuring that all staff are 
knowledgeable about the value of 
CAPCO benefits.  

 
 
Increased # of appropriate internal referrals 
 
Established Succession Plans for all Program Directors 
 
Website – staff only, more interactive 
 
 

 

Board Packet June 2016 210



 

4. Develop consistent supports 
(communication tools, messages, 
mentoring and supervision skills) for 
managers’ ability to emphasize 
productivity and a unified focus, 
despite a challenging economy and 
funding environment. 
a. Provide formal training and support 

to supervisors 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Increased supervisor confidence 
Positive performance reviews for supervisors 

 
 
 
 
 
# of staff who attend trainings 

5. Continue CAPCO’s practice of hiring 
individuals who have used CAPCO’s 
programs. 

 

Increased # of customers hired or volunteering Track # of HS parents hired 

 
6. Provide formal orientation to specific 

programs -  Head Start specific 
 

  

7. Build stronger relationships with 
schools to support children and their 
families during the transition from HS 
to school.  

 

 
HS staff  
Documentation - tracking 

 

 HS - Tracking transition meetings w/principals  

   

 
 
Category 4 (Admin impact on Individuals and Families) 

Board Packet June 2016 211



 
CAPCO will develop new responses to changing community needs, continually improving programs and services so that 
families and individuals experience better outcomes. 
  
Strategy Outcomes Measures 
1. Integrate or reconfigure programs to 

better serve families/individuals, 
helping to spread costs across funding 
sources, and recognizing 
commonalities in customer need and 
staff skills. 
 

  

2. Use program outcome data 
consistently to improve programs and 
support momentum in staff and 
customer progress.  
a. Using existing data to tell a 

compelling story (within programs, 
in training, to the Board, to the 
public) 

b. Monitor and respond to changing 
and unmet needs, based on 
internal data analysis and ongoing 
planning for partnering, advocating, 
upgrading staff skills and/or 
changing CAPCO’s service 
configuration. 

 

  

   

3. Develop a consistent agency-wide 
response to the disclosure of child 
abuse, domestic violence, elder abuse. 

Consistent training across all agency programs. Staff Training logs 

Board Packet June 2016 212



 

 
4. Identify partners to collaborate in 

providing wrap-around services for 
both Early Head Start and Head Start. 

 

  

The following issues have been identified 
as unmet needs among individuals and 
families already involved with CAPCO.  As 
opportunities arise, CAPCO will consider 
developing programs or partnerships to 
respond.  
• Supervised visits 
• Transportation – strollers, wagons, 

bikes to loan? 
• Supports for foster children 
• Support for people with education 

goals – literacy, math, other basic skills 
• GED/Literacy Volunteers 
• Access to health and dental care  

• WIC Smiles 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 213



Category 5 (Admin impact on Community ROMA Goal 4) 
 
CAPCO will partner with other community groups and organizations to develop new responses to jointly identified 
community needs.  
 
Strategy Outcomes Measures 
1. Strengthen the collaboration between 

Family Essentials and Employment 
Connection to support CAPCO families 
as they address their job readiness. 
 

  

2. CAPCO will participate in further 
defining and developing responses, as 
resources and relationships allow, to 
the following community-recognized 
unmet needs: 
a. Safe, affordable, accessible 

housing, including security deposit 
assistance and housing for new 
moms 

b. Home repair services  
c. Living wage jobs 
d. Transportation – public, as well as 

access to insurance and repairs for 
car owners 

e. Food insecurity 
f. Substance abuse treatment 
g. Mental health treatment 
h. Adults without health insurance  
i. Access to medical and dental care 
j. Mentoring services for youth 
k. Teen pregnancy  

 

Partner with other agencies and consortiums to 
develop plans to address unmet needs. 

# of new partnerships 

Board Packet June 2016 214



3. Develop more effective and/or specific 
relationships with the following 
community partners: 

a. DSS (home visitor contract) 
b. Health Dept (breastfeeding, 

maternal child health, early 
intervention) 

c. Medical/dental providers 
d. Youth Bureaus 
e. Legal Aid 
f. Businesses 

 

Healthy Neighborhoods  - ES 
(expanding to Marathon) 
 

 

5. Support community discussions 
convened by Seven Valleys regarding 
the local development of a 211 system. 
 
 

  

6. Provide education to tenants and 
homeowners re: weatherization and 
ongoing home repair.  

a. Partner with landlords 
b. Partner with LOWES  

Partnerships in place 
Additional  customers for FFS weatherization 
# of tenants, homeowners 

 

   

   

 
  

Board Packet June 2016 215



 
 
Category 6 (Admin impact on Agency Capacity/Partnerships ROMA Goals 4 and 5) 
 
CAPCO will develop operational capacity that supports continuous quality improvement, innovative responses to 
community need, and sustainability planning for the organization. 
 
Strategy Outcomes Measures 
1. Continually evaluate priorities for 

improvement to CAPCO facilities: 
a. More administrative and program 

space, additional parking 
b. Building security concerns 
c. Easier customer access to WIC and 

Family Essentials 
d. Centralization to support internal 

communication 
 

Commercial kitchen 
Storage space 
Family Development space reconfigured for more 
storage and better access 

Cost/benefit 
 

2. Continue to adapt fiscal systems to 
support a dynamic budgeting process:  
a. Effective cash-flow planning 
b. Accurate and timely reporting to 

funders 
c. Contingency budgeting in response 

to potential/actual funding cuts 
d. Educated decision-making by 

executive staff and board members 
in response to environmental 
change 
 

 
 
Real time dashboards for each program area 
w/protocols for review 
Calendar (reporting schedules) 
 
 

 
 
Dashboards created, access set up for 
each program director 

3. Institute fund development planning 
(shared strategy with Board)  
a. Build on Community Action Angels 

to develop relationships and bring 
in support 

Increase in unrestricted revenue  

Board Packet June 2016 216



b. Recruit board or committee 
members with fund development 
experience 

c. Seek board and staff training on 
fund development planning 

d. Consider the costs and benefits (in 
funds raised and cultivation 
opportunities) of a range of fund 
development activities 

 
4. As resources are available, improve IT 

capacity to include: 
a. Universal server and internet 

access - 
b. Updated hardware and software 
c. Additional training for users 
d. Full implementation of the new 

fiscal software 
e. Innovative technological supports 

for staff, consumer and community 
communication, including social 
media  

f. Online giving 
 
 

Priority – CAPTAIN implemented to support program 
quality improvement, reporting and management 
decision-making 

 

5. Develop a more unified and consistent 
leadership message to staff, including 
clear expectations, positive feedback 
and the contribution of each program 
or activity to the success of CAPCO’s 
overall mission.  
 

Staff committed to the Mission and Vision of CAPCO Staff Surveys 

Board Packet June 2016 217



6. Diversify revenues and develop 
operating and capital reserves through: 
a. Fee for service programs 
b. Grants from nontraditional sources 
c. Fundraising  

 

 
Increase CAPCO’s ability to address un-met needs in 
the Community 

 

7. Formalize CAPCO’s approach to risk 
management planning, including: 
a. A Safety Program for May 2012 

implementation across the 
organization 

b. The annual identification of critical 
risks to CAPCO’s reputation, fiscal 
stability, customer and staff health 
and safety, with corresponding 
plans of corrective action. 
 

 Risk Assessment Tool 

8. Find creative ways to improve cross-
agency communication, including: 
a. More admin/front line contact and 

communication 
b. Agency e-newsletter to address 

feeling of disconnect among staff 
c. Monthly calendar and updates 
d. Email alerts 
e. All Staff days focused on 

teambuilding 
f. Broader in-service opportunities 

 

  

9. Remain engaged with regional, 
statewide and national partners to gain 
the benefit of joint advocacy, access to 
funding, and support for best practices. 
 

Increases in resources/opportunities/use of best 
practices (specific to CA) 

Roles w/in NYSCAA, local coalitions 
Funding opportunities identified 
through relationships w/partners 

Board Packet June 2016 218



10. Encourage all staff and board members 
to play volunteer or board roles with 
other local organizations, extending 
CAPCO’s network through these 
contacts.  
 

Info exchanged in staff/board meetings 
Contacts available for CAPCO’s use 

# of staff/board members engaged 
with other NPs 

11. Develop a salary scale that includes all 
CAPCO positions. 

  

12. Provide comprehensive orientation to 
all new employees.  

New staff knowledgeable about CAPCO policies, 
protocols for communication, etc  

# of positive staff evals  
supervisor feedback (in management 
meetings Documented in minutes) 

13. Formalize and roll out the 
communications protocol.  

Protocols in place, recognized by all staff 
 

# of grievances 
# of positive responses to staff survey 
on questions related to communication 
 

14.  Integrate personnel and fiscal policies 
where needed to better support 
programs (procedures, succession 
planning, TRACS compliance). 

 
  

TRACS compliance 
Positions defined re: skills 
Performance evals completed 

Position descriptions, including key 
skills for each role 
Performance evaluations 

15. Increase visible focus on staff 
satisfaction and well-being (Wellness 
committee, Safety Committee, 
responses to security and facility 
concerns). 

  

Board Packet June 2016 219



16. Further develop payroll software to 
handle accruals and other current 
challenges.  

 SW reconfigured 
Staff trained 

 

17. Improve the customer satisfaction 
process – more regular, easier access 
(online, paper surveys available on site)  

(immediate - completed surveys in 2-3 weeks) 
regular schedule for the future 

Reported in management mtgs. 

18. Expand CAPCO’s capacity for fee-for-
service work across agency programs. 

a. Market fee-based follow-up to 
existing clients 

b. Transitioning people to ongoing 
services 

c. Opportunities for development: 
i. Safe Sitter 

ii. Energy Services 
iii. CAPCO Kitchen 
iv. CDA 
v. DSRIP 

vi. EISEP 
 

Existing clients aware of other services, including fee-
based  
Customers come back for fee-based service 
Fiscal capacity to manage fee-based services 

New database – i.d. people who own 
homes, all people who come in for 
follow-ups 
Existing clients who may need another 
layer of an existing publicly funded 
service  
Track $ generated across FFS 
programs/svcs 
MOUs in place 
Business plans in place 

 
 
 

Board Packet June 2016 220



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-35 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. PP&E Committee 

has reviewed the Customer Satisfaction Survey and has recommended accepting 

as presented, and  

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the Customer Satisfaction Survey and accepts as presented. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  Customer Satisfaction Survey. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

 W 

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 221



40.22% 74

65.22% 120

0.00% 0

1.63% 3

19.02% 35

8.15% 15

2.72% 5

1.63% 3

2.72% 5

Q1 What type of service(s) did you look for
at CAPCO today?

Answered: 184 Skipped: 3

Total Respondents: 184  

Family
Essentials

WIC

Literacy
Volunteers o...

High School /
GED

Head Start /
Early Head...

Food
Assistance...

Utility
Assistance...

Parenting
Programs

Energy
Services /...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Family Essentials

WIC

Literacy Volunteers of Cortland County

High School / GED

Head Start / Early Head Start

Food Assistance (Emergency Assistance, SnackPacks, CSA, SNAP, EBT)

Utility Assistance (Emergency Assistance, Project Care and Share)

Parenting Programs

Energy Services / Weatherization

1 / 1

Customer Satisfaction Survey 2016 SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 222



Q2 Please tell us about the following.
Answered: 181 Skipped: 6

1.10%
2

0.00%
0

20.99%
38

75.69%
137

2.21%
4

 
181

 
3.75

1.10%
2

0.00%
0

27.07%
49

68.51%
124

3.31%
6

 
181

 
3.69

1.67%
3

0.00%
0

20.56%
37

76.67%
138

1.11%
2

 
180

 
3.74

1.10%
2

0.55%
1

20.44%
37

75.69%
137

2.21%
4

 
181

 
3.75

1.10%
2

0.55%
1

19.34%
35

74.59%
135

4.42%
8

 
181

 
3.75

1.67%
3

2.78%
5

20.56%
37

63.33%
114

11.67%
21

 
180

 
3.65

1.10%
2

3.87%
7

20.99%
38

60.77%
110

13.26%
24

 
181

 
3.63

5.00%
9

0.56%
1

19.44%
35

52.22%
94

22.78%
41

 
180

 
3.54

Our
Receptionist...

My request for
assistance w...

I was treated
with respect...

Staff listened
and responde...

Staff
explained al...

Staff told me
about...

Staff gave me
information ...

If staff were
unable to me...

I will
continue to ...

I would
recommend CA...

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

 Strongly
Disagree

Disagree Agree Strongly
Agree

N/A Total Weighted
Average

Our Receptionist was polite and respectful.

My request for assistance was attended to as quickly as possible.

I was treated with respect by CAPCO staff.

Staff listened and responded to my concerns.

Staff explained all paperwork to me and answered my questions.

Staff told me about additional CAPCO programs that might be helpful to
me.

Staff gave me information on helpful programs/services outside of
CAPCO, including contact information.

If staff were unable to meet my needs, the reasons were
clearly explained to me.

1 / 2

Customer Satisfaction Survey 2016 SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 223



1.10%
2

0.55%
1

20.44%
37

76.24%
138

1.66%
3

 
181

 
3.75

1.12%
2

0.00%
0

17.42%
31

79.78%
142

1.69%
3

 
178

 
3.79

I will continue to use CAPCO resources.

I would recommend CAPCO to others.

2 / 2

Customer Satisfaction Survey 2016 SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 224



Q3 Your opinions and suggestions matter.
 Please add additional comments, if any.

Answered: 20 Skipped: 167

# Responses Date

1 You guys are honest lifesavers and one of the best programs in Cortland. Thank You so much! 5/25/2016 10:09 AM

2 Everyone is always kind and respectful 5/25/2016 9:58 AM

3 Great Job 5/25/2016 9:53 AM

4 every time i come its a pleasant experience 5/25/2016 9:48 AM

5 Very friendly & understanding 5/25/2016 9:26 AM

6 Very Helpful 5/25/2016 9:24 AM

7 They always have clothes for my kids and other household items. Very welcoming staff. will adress any concerns you
have no matter how much time it takes to explain things. my daughters teachers as well as my sons are great they
both have come a long way since the beginning of the year.

5/24/2016 3:03 PM

8 Thank You a million times to all the CAPCO Staff! we love the head start program. I've noticed such huge positive
change in my daughter since she started school. Miss Jackie and Miss Lisa are awesome teachers! I want to also
thank the staff for assisting me in appling for WIC. it was a huge help to us during our first winter in Cortland. I'm
definitely going to recommend CAPCO to others.

5/24/2016 2:49 PM

9 I have an application with the weatherization program and we have been approved, but we are waiting for the landlord.
also wish they could use the engry audit we had Halco do.

5/24/2016 9:36 AM

10 Because of early head start and head start my daughter has blossom with leaps and bounds. Thank You so much! 5/24/2016 9:31 AM

11 you have good stuff 5/24/2016 9:26 AM

12 Always a pleasant experience. 5/24/2016 9:12 AM

13 Have been doing an awesome Job, keep up the good work! 5/24/2016 9:09 AM

14 Thanks 5/23/2016 2:43 PM

15 Great! 5/23/2016 2:41 PM

16 Very Nice Ladies 5/23/2016 2:30 PM

17 Keep up the good work. 5/23/2016 2:23 PM

18 Good 5/23/2016 2:16 PM

19 Service was Great! 5/23/2016 2:14 PM

20 Very Good Hospitality 5/23/2016 1:17 PM

1 / 1

Customer Satisfaction Survey 2016 SurveyMonkey

Board Packet June 2016 225



Board Packet June 2016 226



Board Packet June 2016 227



Board Packet June 2016 228



Board Packet June 2016 229



Board Packet June 2016 230



Board Packet June 2016 231



Board Packet June 2016 232



Board Packet June 2016 233



Board Packet June 2016 234



Check one: 22
Work Plan Plan Amendment
PPR #1 PPR #3
PPR #2 x PPR #4

1444

(continue on next page, if necessary)

The agency's WIC Program provides 
supplemental foods, health care referrals, and 
nutrition education for low-income pregnant, 
breastfeeding, and non-breastfeeding 
postpartum women, and to infants and 
children up to age five who are found to be at 
nutritional risk.

2820 157%

6 100%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 1800 individuals seeking WIC assistance: Intake form/caseload reports 1800

204 136%
6 partnerships will promote the program, provide space,  
and funding (1 State Government, 1 Local Government, 1 
faith based, 1 not-for-profit, 1 consortium, 1 State 

4.1.A-
M

MOU's, meeting minutes, 
association membership 6 6 0

Peer Counselor 
Documentation 150 143 61

Referral records (2x/year) 1650 0

Women, Infants and Children (WIC) (1 of 4)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

1444 88%

150  infants will be healthier and will increase their ability to 
fight early childhood infections as a result of breastfeeding.

2820 157%

1650 of 1800 will be referred to other service providers for 
additional assistance. 6.5.E

1800 of 1800 will improve their health and physical 
development as a result of access to nutritional foods and 
nutrition education. 6.3.B

Case files, food voucher 
records 1800 1299 1521

1299 1521

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Families with low incomes  are found to be at nutritional and health risk (F)

C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016
Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 6 of
COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

Board Packet June 2016 235



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

8

(continue on next page, if necessary)

The agency's Snack Pack for Kids program 
provides nutritious foods for food insecure 
children throughout the county in an effort to 
help alleviate hunger.

213 101%

8 100%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 210 children will be referred to the program:
Referrals from schools 
documenting need 210

5285 68%
8 partnerships, will support the program by donating funds, 
referring eligible children, and providing space.  (5 school 
districts, 1 higher education, 1 financial institution, 1 
collaboration) 

4.1.A-
M MOU's , in-kind report 8 8 0

Backpack allocations 7770 2555 2730

Backpack allocations 210 205

Program that addresses the need described above: Snack Packs for Kids (2 of 4)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

213 101%

Of the 210 children receiving backpacks, 7770 backpacks will 
be distributed 6.5.A

213 101%

210 of  210 children's health and physical development will 
be improved as a result of adequate nutrition. 6.3.B

210 of 210  children will be enrolled in the program Referral form 210 205 8

205 8

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families who are at nutritional and health risk (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 7 of

Board Packet June 2016 236



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

0

33 220%
(continue on next page, if necessary)

15 will participate in cooking classes and exhibit improved 
family functioning. 6.3.K Pre/Post Survey 15 10 23

 The agency's Health and Nutrition component 
introduces low-income families  to a holistic 
approach to healthy lifestyles, including  
exercise classes, menu planning, and cooking 
classes, and improved access to fresh fruits and 
vegetables through Community Supported 
Agriculture (CSA) Shares and the Farmer's 
Market. Our aim is to raise awareness on the 
importance of healthy lifestyles  and help to 
decrease the incidences of obesity.  

0 0%

31 103%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 40 individuals seeking health and nutrition services: Intake Form 40

0 0%

30 will participate in exercise classes and improve their 
health and physical well being. 6.3.E Attendance Sheets 30 24 7

Weekly sign-out sheets 180 0 0

Post Survey 10 0

Program that addresses the need described above: Health and Nutrition (3a of 4)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

0 0%

Of those 10 receiving CSA Shares, 180 boxes of food will be 
distributed 6.3.A

0 0%

10 will improve their nutritional well being through access to 
nutritional foods. 6.3.B

10 will be enrolled in the CSA Program. Intake Form 10 0 0

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families who are at nutritional and health risk (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 8 of

Board Packet June 2016 237



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

The agency's Health and Nutrition component 
introduces low-income families  to a holistic 
approach to healthy lifestyles, including  
exercise classes, menu planning, and cooking 
classes, and improved access to fresh fruits and 
vegetables through Community Supported 
Agriculture (CSA) Shares and the Farmer's 
Market. Our aim is to raise awareness on the 
importance of healthy lifestyles  and help to 
decrease the incidences of obesity.  

12 7%

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Families will receive 175 boxes of fresh fruits and vegetables 
using SNAP benefits 6.5.A EBT Transactions 175

0 #DIV/0!

Program that addresses the need described above: Health and Nutrition (3b of 4)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

0 #DIV/0!

7 100%

7 partnerships will support the goals of the health and 
nutrition program, through referrals, funding, space (2 
school districts, 1 business, 1 NFP, 3 collaborations) 4.A-M

Partnership 
Agreements/MOU's 7 7 0

12 0

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families who are at nutritional and health risk (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 9 of

Board Packet June 2016 238



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

Connect high need women and families to 
appropriate navigator sites for assistance with 
enrollment into public health insurance 
programs / family planning benefits programs 
or market place as appropriate. Provide one on 
one education and appropriate referral for 
health care services to women and their 
families. Assist to remove barriers to accessing 
care as appropriate.  The medical, behavioral 
and psychosocial risk factors of high – need 
women and infants are identified and 
addressed through timely and coordinated 
counseling, management, referral, and follow – 
up. 

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 40 individuals seeking assistance.

0 #DIV/0!

Tracking Form 25 5 22

Program that addresses the need described above: Community Health Worker (4 of 4)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

27 108%

2 40%

25 of the 40 will be referred to the appropriate health care 
services based upon their specific need. 6.5 E

5 of the 40 will enroll in a health insurance plan. 1.2.E Tracking Form 5 0 2

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Accessibility of health care for families (C)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 10 of

Board Packet June 2016 239



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

Contractor

0 0%
(continue on next page, if necessary)

136 of 272 children will be developmentally ready to enter 
kindergarten 6.3 D CORE Report 136 0 0

The agency's Head Start/Early Head Start 
program provides comprehensive pre-school 
activities which include classroom instruction, 
home base, health and nutrition, and social 
emotional  development for children ages zero 
to four, as well as support services for their 
families.

272 100%

272 100%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 272 children eligible for Head Start/Early Head Start: HS/EHS Intake Form 272

272 100%

272 of 272 children will participate in pre-school activities to 
develop school readiness skills 6.3 C Attendance Records 272 272 0

CACFP meal count 
documentation 272 272 0

Childs File 272 272 0

Program that addresses the need described above: Head Start/Early Head Start (1 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

272 100%

272 of 272 children's health will be improved as a result of 
adequate nutrition. 6.3 B

272 100%

272 of 272 children will be up to date on age appropriate 
immunizations, medical and/or dental care 6.3 A

272 children will participant in Head Start/Early Head HS/EHS Attendance Records 272 272 0

272

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Children face barriers to school readiness (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 11 of

Board Packet June 2016 240



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

Contractor

0

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

The agency's Head Start/Early Head Start 
program provides comprehensive pre-school 
activities which include classroom instruction, 
home base, health and nutrition, and social 
emotional  development for children ages zero 
to four, as well as support services for their 
families

251 105%

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

240 parents/caregivers will be engaged by HS/EHS staff 
through home visits. Family worker notes 240

13 100%MOU's 13 13 0

Documented achievement on 
a Family Strength Assessment 200 0

Program that addresses the need described above: Head Start/Early Head Start (2 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

0 0%

13 partnerships  will support program, provide space, and in-
kind paraprofessional services(4 school districts, 5 not-for-
profit, 2 higher education, 2 faith based) 

4.1 A-
M

200 91%

0f the 220, 200 will learn and exhibit improved family 
functioning 6.3 K

220 of 240 parents/caregivers will participate in HS/EHS 
family engagement services by completing a family strength 
assessment

Completion of Family Strength 
Assessment (FSA) 220 200 0

251 0

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Children face barriers to school readiness (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 12 of

Board Packet June 2016 241



Check one: 22
Work Plan Plan Amendment
PPR #1 PPR #3
PPR #2 x PPR #4

5

4 40%
(continue on next page, if necessary)

10 of 725 will receive emergency transportation 6.2 I Intake Form 10 2 2

The agency's Family Development Component 
provides low-income families with clothing, 
household appliances, transportation 
assistance, utility assistance, etc.

0 #DIV/0!

10 40%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of  725 individuals seeking assistance: Intake Form

6 60%

25 of 725 will receive fuel or utility assistance 6.2 B Intake Form 25 0 10

Intake Form 10 2 4

Intake Form 25 7

Program that addresses the need described above: Community Action Angels (1 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

12 48%

10 of 725 will receive emergency food. 6.2 A

640 107%

25 of 725 will receive emergency car or home repair. 6.2 D

600 of 725 will receive  clothing. 6.2 K Database 600 473 167

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack essentials such as food, clothing household appliances, transportation assistance, utility assistance. (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 13 of

Board Packet June 2016 242



Check one: 22
Work Plan Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

0

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

 The agency's Family Development Component 
provides low-income families with clothing, 
household appliances, transportation 
assistance, utility assistance, etc.

0 0%

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

5 of the 725 will receive Emergency Medical Care 6.2 F Intake Form 5

0 #DIV/0!

MOU's 8 8

Program that addresses the need described above: Community Action Angels (2 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

8 100%

91 61%

8 partnerships will be established to support services and in-
kind resources  (5 businesses, 2 NFP) 

4.1 A-
M

50  150 of the 725 will be referred to other service providers. 6.5 E Referral Tracking Form 150 44 47

0 0

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack essentials such as food, clothing household appliances, transportation assistance, utility assistance. (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 14 of

Board Packet June 2016 243



Check one: 22
Work Plan Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

2

4 50%
(continue on next page, if necessary)

8 will receive their HSE diploma. 1.2 B Case Notes 8 3 1

 Through the High School Equivalency (HSE) 
Program, provide tutoring, preparation for 
TASC testing,  transportation to TASC test sites, 
and higher education counseling will be 
provided to low income individuals.

51 102%

10 50%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 50 enrolled in the HSE/Tutoring program: 50

8 100%

20 will have individual math/literacy tutoring to meet 
education or employment goals. 1.2. A Attendance Records 20 6 4

Grade level improvement on 
math TABE test, case notes. 8 4 4

Grade level improvement on 
math TABE test, case notes. 15 2

Program that addresses the need described above: TASC Preparation/Tutoring (1 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

4 27%

8 will take the TASC exam, and pass from 1-4 of the five test. 6.3. I

7 35%

15 will have a grade level improvement in math or reading.

20 will have at least 12 hours of attendance. Attendance Records 20 6 1

35 16

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income individuals lack the competencies and resources for achieving academic and employment goals.   (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 15 of

Board Packet June 2016 244



Check one: 22
Work Plan Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

0

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

 Through the Safe Sitter Certification, provide 
youth the necessary skills to care for infants 
and children leading to employment 
opportunities.

0 0%

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 50 enrolled: Intake Form 50

5 100%MOU's 5 5 0

Certificates 40 0

Program that addresses the need described above: Safe Sitter Certification (2 of 2)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

0 0%
5 partnerships will be established to support services, 
provide space, and referrals  (2 Schools, 1 Higher Learning, 
and  2 NFP) 

4.1 A-
M

0 0%

40 will obtain skills and competencies required for successful 
employment 1.2 A

40 will attend the 7 hour course. Attendance Records 40 0 0

0 0

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income individuals lack the competencies and resources for achieving academic and employment goals.   (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 16 of

Board Packet June 2016 245



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

0

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

 The agency will operate Family Success 
Centers in the communities of Marathon and 
McGraw in an effort to provide services and 
activities in the rural areas of the county. The 
center provides opportunities for people in the 
community to access resources including 
emergency assistance, application for food 
stamps, parent support and education, 
activities for children, support with household 
finances, health and nutrition through cooking 
classes, filing income taxes through the 
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance Program 
(VITA), etc.

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Increase in the availability of community resources  in the 
rural communities of Marathon and McGraw. (2 Opp.) 2.2 B

0 #DIV/0!

MOU's 2 2

Program that addresses the need described above: Family Success Centers (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

2 100%

401 100%

2 school district partnerships will be maintained to support 
the FSC's by providing space.

4.1 A-
M

400 families will receive services in rural areas of the 
community 2.2 B Sign in sheets/Intake Forms 400 355 46

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Lack of community facilities in the rural areas of the community ( C )

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 17 of

Board Packet June 2016 246



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

 The agency's Parent's with Hope and Focus on 
Fatherhood groups are a 10 week course 
designed to provide parents/caregivers  with 
the skills necessary to effectively parent.  
Topics include a large variety of issues facing 
today's parents/caregivers which include: 
communication, step-parenting, addiction, 
discipline, bullying, child safety, and much 
more.  

20 50%

2 100%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 40 parents/caregivers  applying to participate in parenting 
classes: Intake Forms 40

6 24%

1 local government partnership will promote the program, 1 
State government 

4.1 A-
M e-mails, referrals 2 2 0

Post Survey 25 0 6

attendance sheets/ certificate 
of completion 25 0 6

Program that addresses the need described above: Parents with Hope and Focus on Fatherhood (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

6 24%

25 of the 30 will learn and exhibit improved parenting skills. 6.3 J

8 27%

25 of 30  will complete the training course.

30 of the 30 will enroll in the course. Intake Forms/Pre Surveys 30 0 8

15 5

Contractor Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack the skills necessary for successful parenting. (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 18 of

Board Packet June 2016 247



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 0 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

Contractor

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

 Through the agency sponsored VITA program  
assistance will be given to low individuals  in 
preparing and filing their federal and State 
personal income taxes at no cost and ensure 
that workers receive all the tax credits to which 
they are entitled.

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

600 individuals will qualify for free tax preparation 
assistance: Income Verification

0 #DIV/0!

Agreements 6 0 0

Program that addresses the need described above: Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

0 0%

0 0%
6 partnerships will promote the program, and provide 
volunteer services  (1 financial, 4 NFP, and 1 higher 
education

4.a A-
M

Of those tax returns $300,000 in Federal and State EITC tax 
credits will be applied 1.3 A VITA Report 300,000 0 0

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families lack economic stability  (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 19 of

Board Packet June 2016 248



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

Contractor

0 #DIV/0!
(continue on next page, if necessary)

 The agency’s Consumer Directed Personal 
Assistance Program (CDPAP) provides services 
to allow individuals with disabilities and other 
medical conditions more control over their 
personal assistance services.  This allows an 
individual the ability to manage his or her care 
and make decisions based upon his or her own 
individualized needs and to live in the 
community as independently as possible.

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 65 individuals applying for CDPAP Services

1 100%Contract 1 1 0

Assessment Tool 6 6 0

Program that addresses the need described above: Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Program (CDPAP) (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

6 100%

1 partnership will local government will promote the 
program and refer clients.

4.1 A-
M

58 89%

Of the 65, 6 family caregivers will obtain/maintain 
employment 1.2 G

 65 of  65  will maintain a independent living situation 6.1.B Assessment Tool 65 51 7

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Individuals with a disability maintaining their independence while living in the community (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 20 of

Board Packet June 2016 249



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

Contractor

4 133%
(continue on next page, if necessary)

3 partnerships will promote program (1 business, 2 non-
profit.)

4.1 A-
M Agreements 3 4 0

 The agency's Energy Services Department 
provides energy saving measures to include: 
Insulation, Heating systems, Hot Water Tank 
systems, Air Sealing, Inspecting Combustion 
appliances, Testing Efficiency of Refrigerators, 
Installing CO Detectors & Smoke detectors, and 
a Health & Safety check of the home. The goal 
of the program is to  make homes safer and 
more affordable for low-income families.

107 37%

1 20%

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

Of 290 households applying for Energy Services 
programming Application 290

18 15%

5 of the 125 applying but not receiving services will be 
referred to other services providers 6.3 E Referral Notice 5 0 1

Waiting list 120 18 0

Pre/Post test, utility bills from 
past and present 132 47 38

Program that addresses the need described above: Energy Services (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

85 64%

120 of the 125 households applying but not receiving 
services will be placed on a waiting list

89 54%

132 of the 165 households will show a reduction in energy 
usage relative to past usage

165 of the 290 households will receive Energy Services 
2.1 D 
1.2 K

Energy Services work 
completion form and audit 
form 165 51 38

69 38

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Low income families face challenges affording quality, safe, affordable housing (F)

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 21 of

Board Packet June 2016 250



Check one: 22
Work Plan 0 Plan Amendment 0
PPR #1 PPR #3 0
PPR #2 x PPR #4 0

Contractor

(continue on next page, if necessary)

0 #DIV/0!

0 #DIV/0!

Agreements, in-kind report 2 0 0

12 low income children will improve social/emotional 
development. 6.3 F Attendance 12 0 0

0 0 0 0%

0 #DIV/0!

PPR #2 
Achieved

PPR #3 
Achieved

PPR #4 
Achieved

YTD
Total

YTD
%

 Summer Day Camp slots will be created and 
subsidized for  low-income children.

12 low income children will be served through 1 initiative. 2.1 F Agreement 12

Program that addresses the need described above: Summer Day Camp (1 of 1)

Interventions
Briefly describe the services, activities, and 
advocacy that will address the need and achieve 
the outcome:

Benchmarks or Milestones and Outcomes
List the projected baseline number of customers to be enrolled 
(if applicable) and the expected benchmarks or milestones 
and outcomes to be achieved for the service or activity 
(Funnel).  When possible, describe the outcome using 
language from the NPIs:

NPI(s)

Method(s) of 
Measurement/Verification 
Identify the tool or process  to 
be used to verify progress on 
the outcome or milestone:

Annual 
Projected

ACTUAL PROGRAM PROGRESS

PPR #1 
Achieved

0 0%

0 0%

2 partnerships will promote and financially support the 
program (1 non-profit, 1 civic organization)

4.1 A-
M

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc., Contract # C1000292

Description of Need (Customer, Community, Agency)
Briefly identify the need that documents the reason for the programs/ 
services/milestones and outcomes listed below (Corresponds to the 
needs/strategic objectives identified in C1b or C1c):

Lack of affordable child development placement opportunities for low income families ( C )

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
C-2c 2016 Work Plan and Program Progress Report (PPR) FFY 2016

Budget Period 10/1/15-9/30/16

ATTACHMENT C Page 22 of

Board Packet June 2016 251



Printed By: Martha Allen
Date Printed: Jun 21, 2016

Status: Certified

Note: The content of any attached documents will not print with this page. To view or print an attached document, you must open it separately by 
clicking the corresponding hyperlink in the 'Uploaded Files' section of a question. 

Entity Information

Legal Business Entity 
Name:

CORTLAND COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC

TIN (EIN or SSN): 161004653

Vendor ID: 1000007662

Principal Place of 
Business: 

32 N. Main Street
Cortland, NY 13045
United States

Telephone: (607)753-6781

Fax: (607)753-3827

Website: capco.org

Business Entity Information

Business Type: Not-For-Profit

Business Activity: Non-Construction

Type: Previously Enrolled As
Name: Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc.

Vendor ID: 1000007662
Status: Active 

Explanation:

Type: Previously Enrolled As
Name: CORTLAND COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION 

PROGRAM 
Vendor ID: 1000007662

Status: Active 

Explanation:

Name: Lindy Glennon 
Title: Executive Director

Telephone: (607)753-6781 x151
Email: lindyg@capco.org

Address: 32 North Main Street
Cortland, NY 13045
United States

Logout

VendRep Vendor My Apps  

Vendor Responsibility NFP Form

Basic Vendor Data

Additional Business Entity Identities

Authorized Contacts

Page 1 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 252



1.0 

1.1 

1.2 

1.3 

1.4 

1.5 

1.6 

I. Business Characteristics

Business Entity type - Please check appropriate box and provide additional information:

Corporation (including PC)

Limited Liability Co. (LLC or PLLC)

Limited Liability Partnership

Limited Partnership

General Partnership

Sole Proprietor

Unincorporated Association

Other - Specify

Date of Incorporation

03/01/1974  

Was the Business Entity formed in New York State?

Yes

No

Is the Business Entity currently registered to do business in New York State with the Department of State? 

Note: Select 'Not Required' if the Business Entity is a General Partnership.

Yes

No

Not Required

Is the Business Entity registered as a Sales Tax vendor with the New York State Department of Taxation and Finance?

Yes

No

Is the responding Business Entity a Joint Venture? 

Note: If the submitting Business Entity is a Joint Venture, also submit a separate questionnaire for each Business Entity comprising the Joint Venture.

Yes

No

Does the Business Entity have an active Charities Registration Number?

Yes

No

Enter Number

023621

Does the Business Entity have a DUNS Number?

Yes

No

Enter DUNS Number

038360160

Page 2 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 253



1.7 

1.8 

1.9 

1.10 

Is the Business Entity's Principal Place of Business/Executive Office in New York State?

Yes

No

Provide the address for one New York Office: 
Address Line 

32 North Main Street

City

Cortland

State

New York

Zip Code

13045

Telephone

607-753-6781

Is the Business Entity's Principal Place of Business/Executive Office:

Owned

Rented

Other

Is the Business Entity a Minority Community Based Organization (MCBO)?

Yes

No

Identify current Key Employees of the Business Entity. 

Note: If more than four (4) Key Employees need to be listed, select 'Attach Document' as the response. 

Select method for providing this information: 

Enter Below

Attach Document

Name

Lindy Glennon

Title

Executive Director

Add another?

Yes

No

Name

Martha Allen

Title

Finance Director

Add another?

Yes

No

Page 3 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 254



1.11 Identify current Trustees/Board Members of the Business Entity. 

Note: If more than four (4) Trustees/Board Members need to be listed, please select 'Attach Document' as the response. 

Select method for providing this information: 

Enter Below

Attach Document

Name

Paula Currie

Title

Board President

Add another?

Yes

No

Name

Shawn Allen

Title

Board Vice-President

Add another?

Yes

No

Name

Helen Spaulding

Title

Board Treasurer

Add another?

Yes

No

Name

Rama Hairda

Title

Board Secretary

Last Modified: Jun 3, 2016
Modified By: Martha Allen

Page 4 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 255



2.0 

II. Affiliates and Joint Venture Relationships

Does the Business Entity have any Affiliates?

Yes

No

Last Modified: Aug 25, 2008
Modified By: Eden Harrington-hall

Page 5 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 256



3.0 

III. Contract History

Based on the Business Entity's New York State Vendor Identification Number (Vendor ID) provided, active contracts with any New York State contracting entities 
approved as of April 2012 by the Office of the State Comptroller and approved contracts submitted after April 2012 are displayed by selecting 'Contract Data' in the 
menu to the left.

Has the Business Entity held any other contracts with any New York State government entity in the last three (3) years which are not displayed?

Yes

No

Last Modified: Aug 16, 2012
Modified By: Colleen Kania

Page 6 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 257



4.0 

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

4.4 

IV. Integrity - Contract Bidding

Within the past five (5) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliate:

Been suspended or debarred from any government contracting process or been disqualified on any government procurement?

Yes

No

Been subject to a denial or revocation of a government prequalification?

Yes

No

Been denied a contract award or had a bid rejected based on a finding of non-responsibility by a government entity?

Yes

No

Agreed to a voluntary exclusion from bidding/contracting with a government entity?

Yes

No

Initiated a request to withdraw a bid submitted to a government entity or made any claim of an error on a bid submitted to a government entity?

Yes

No

Last Modified: Aug 25, 2008
Modified By: Eden Harrington-hall

Page 7 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 258



5.0 

5.1 

5.2 

V. Integrity - Contract Award

Within the past five (5) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliate: 

Been suspended, cancelled or terminated for cause on any government contract?

Yes

No

Been subject to an administrative proceeding or civil action seeking specific performance or restitution in connection with any government contract?

Yes

No

Entered into a formal monitoring agreement as a condition of a contract award from a government entity?

Yes

No

Last Modified: Aug 25, 2008
Modified By: Eden Harrington-hall

Page 8 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 259



6.0 

VI. Certifications/Licenses

Within the past five (5) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliate:

Had a revocation, suspension or disbarment of any business or professional permit and/or license?

Yes

No

Last Modified: Aug 25, 2008
Modified By: Eden Harrington-hall

Page 9 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 260



7.0 

7.1 

7.2 

7.3 

7.4 

7.5 

VII. Legal Proceedings

Within the past five (5) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliate:

Been the subject of an investigation, whether open or closed, by any government entity for a civil or criminal violation?

Yes

No

Been the subject of an indictment, grant of immunity, judgment or conviction (including entering into a plea bargain) for conduct constituting a crime?

Yes

No

Received any OSHA citation, which resulted in a final determination classified as serious or willful?

Yes

No

Had a New York State Labor Law violation deemed willful?

Yes

No

Entered into a consent order with the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation, or a federal, state or local government enforcement 
determination involving a violation of federal, state or local environmental laws?

Yes

No

Other than the previously disclosed: 
  (i) Been subject to the imposition of a fine or penalty in excess of $1,000, imposed by any government entity as a result of the issuance of a citation, summons 
or notice of violation, or pursuant to any administrative, regulatory or judicial determination; or 
  (ii) Been charged or convicted of a criminal offense pursuant to any administrative and/or regulatory action taken by government entity? 

Yes

No

Last Modified: May 13, 2014
Modified By: Colleen Kania

Page 10 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 261



8.0 

8.1 

8.2 

8.3 

8.4 

VIII. Leadership Integrity

Note: If the Business Entity is a Joint Venture, answer N/A to the questions in this section. 

Within the past five (5) years has any individual previously identified, any other Key Employees not previously identified, or any individual having the authority to 
sign, execute or approve bids, proposals, contracts or supporting documentation with New York State been subject to any of the following:

A sanction imposed relative to any business or professional permit and/or license?

Yes

No

N/A

An investigation, whether open or closed, by any government entity for a civil or criminal violation for any business related conduct?

Yes

No

N/A

An indictment, grant of immunity, judgment, or conviction of any business related conduct constituting a crime including but not limited to, fraud, extortion, 
bribery, racketeering, price-fixing, bid collusion or any crime related to truthfulness?

Yes

No

N/A

A misdemeanor or felony charge, indictment or conviction for: 
(i) any business-related activity including but not limited to fraud, coercion, extortion, bribe or bribe-receiving, giving or accepting unlawful gratuities, 
immigration or tax fraud, racketeering, mail fraud, wire fraud, price fixing or collusive bidding; or 
(ii) any crime, whether or not business-related, the underlying conduct of which is related to truthfulness, including but not limited to the filing of false 
documents or false sworn statements, perjury or larceny? 

Yes

No

N/A

A debarment from any government contracting process?

Yes

No

N/A

Last Modified: Aug 25, 2008
Modified By: Eden Harrington-hall

Page 11 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 262



9.0 

9.1 

9.2 

9.3 

9.4 

9.5 

9.6 

IX. Financial and Organizational Capacity

Note: If more than four (4) affiliates need to be listed, select 'Attach Document(s)' as the response.

Within the past five (5) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliates received any formal unsatisfactory performance assessment(s) from any government 
entity on any contract?

Yes

No

Within the past five (5) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliates had any liquidated damages assessed over $25,000?

Yes

No

Within the past five (5) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliates had any liens, claims or judgments over $15,000 filed against the Business Entity which 
remain undischarged or were unsatisfied for more than 120 days?

Yes

No

In the last seven (7) years has the Business Entity or any Affiliates initiated or been the subject of any bankruptcy proceedings, whether or not closed, 
regardless of the date of filing, or is any bankruptcy proceeding pending?

Yes

No

During the past three (3) years, has the Business Entity and any Affiliates failed to file or pay any tax returns required by federal, state or local tax laws?

Yes

No

During the past three (3) years, has the Business Entity and any Affiliates failed to file or pay any New York State unemployment insurance returns?

Yes

No

During the past three (3) years, has the Business Entity or any Affiliates had any government audits?

Yes

No

Did any audit reveal material weaknesses in the Business Entity's system of internal controls?

Yes

No

Did any audit reveal non-compliance with contractual agreements or any material disallowance, if not previously disclosed above?

Yes

No

Last Modified: Apr 22, 2015
Modified By: Colleen Kania

Page 12 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 263



10.0 

X. Freedom of Information Law (FOIL)

Indicate whether any information provided herein is believed to be exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Law (FOIL). 

(Note: A determination of whether such information is exempt from FOIL will be made at the time of any request for disclosure under FOIL.)

Yes

No

Last Modified: Aug 25, 2008
Modified By: Eden Harrington-hall

Page 13 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 264



The undersigned: (1) recognizes that this questionnaire is submitted for the express purpose of assisting New York State government entities (including the Office of the State 
Comptroller (OSC)) in making responsibility determinations regarding award or approval of a contract or subcontract and that such government entities will rely on information 
disclosed in the questionnaire in making responsibility determinations; (2) acknowledges that the New York State government entities and OSC may, in their discretion, by means 
which they may choose, verify the truth and accuracy of all statements made herein; and (3) acknowledges that intentional submission of false or misleading information may result in 
criminal penalties under State and/or Federal Law, as well as a finding of non-responsibility, contract suspension or contract termination. 

The undersigned certifies that he/she:

• is knowledgeable about the submitting Business Entity's business and operations;

• has read and understands all of the questions contained in the questionnaire;

• has reviewed and/or supplied full and complete responses to each question;

• to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief, confirms that the Business Entity's responses are true, accurate and complete, including all attachments, if 
applicable;

• understands that New York State government entities will rely on the information disclosed in the questionnaire when entering into a contract with the Business Entity; and

• is under an obligation to update the information provided herein to include any material changes to the Business Entity's responses at the time of bid/proposal submission 
through the contract award notification, and may be required to update the information at the request of the New York State government entities or OSC prior to the award 
and/or approval of a contract, or during the term of the contract. 

Legal Business Name: CORTLAND COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC

Certifier's Name: Martha Allen

Certifier's Title: Finance Director

Certification Date: Jun 3, 2016

About O SC Em ploym ent Contact Us Privacy and Links Policies Regulations Accessibility FO IL W ebcasts

©  O ffice of the New  York State Com ptroller

Certification

Page 14 of 14VendRep System - View Certification

6/21/2016https://portal.osc.state.ny.us/vendrep/viewAllSections.html

Board Packet June 2016 265



Executive Director Report                June 23, 2016 
 
Highlights for June include: 
 

• Eden Harrington-Hall, Brandy Stauf, Gail Bundy, Denise Peroulakis, Max Sammons and I 
attended the NYSCAA/NYSWDA Annual Conference June 16-17.  Max Sammons received 
the New York State Weatherization Dedication and Advocacy Award.  Gail Bundy 
received the Service Award from NYSCAA.  We are very proud of both of them and very 
fortunate to have them as part of the CAPCO family.   
Max and Denise presented at the Conference as part of the NYSWDA workshops. 

I was elected Vice President of the NYSCAA Board of Directors for a 2 year term 
beginning June 2016. 

• We have been very busy with contracts and funding packages.  This includes the CSBG 
Amendment for 2015-16, the CSBG refunding for 2016-17, the WIC refunding for 2016-
17, WAP Amendment for 2016-17.   
 

• The TRACS review from the NYS Department of State is scheduled for July 12-13.  Final 
preparations are being made.  We appreciate the support and assistance from the Board 
in making the plans and preparations necessary for a successful review. 
 

• We are implementing a new database – CAPTAIN from CAP Systems.  Eden has worked 
very closely with the representative from CAPTAIN to set it up for CAPCO.  Staff were 
trained June 10 and have begun inputting data.  We are confident that this will allow for 
more accurate reporting, data collection and management.   
 

• We have had first meetings with Dan Goetzman to look at initial proposals for health 
and dental benefits.  We are awaiting final proposals. 
 

• All Staff Day is scheduled for Friday, June 24 at McGraw Community Park.  We will 
review the updated Personnel Policies and Procedures (as approved by the Executive 
Committee and Board).  We will also be doing staff training on other safety 
requirements, recognizing staff for years of service.  We will end the day with team 
building activities.  This is the last day for the school year for most of our Head Start 
staff.   
 
Trudy Masters retired on Friday, June 17.  Trudy was a dedicated member of the WIC 
staff for more than 20 years!  She will be missed.  We wish her much happiness (and 
REST) in retirement. 
 

Board Packet June 2016 266



• CAPCO staff participated in the Cortland Dairy parade on June 7.  Thanks to Greg, 
Amanda, Nikki, Brandy, Merwin, Joyce, Ruth, Tyler, Charlene and Ellen for work on the 
float and marching in the parade to represent CAPCO. 

• 30 CAPCO staff and family members participated in the Cortland Relay for Life on June 
18.  The group raised more than $1500 for Relay in support of member of our CAPCO 
family and our own families that have battled cancer.  Many thanks to Greg and 
Michelle and the rest committee for all of their hard work. 
 

• Congratulations to Nikki and Joyce, our most recent graduates from the Leadership 
Cortland Program.  They were each involved in very creative projects and presentations 
as part of their work in the Leadership Program.   

Board Packet June 2016 267



Kirsten Parker  
WIC Report 
June 22, 2016 
 

 

• Trudy, who has been our clerk for almost 22 years retired on June 17th.  We had 4 internal and 
about 30 external candidates.  Deanna and I interviewed yesterday and hope to make a decision 
in the next day or two. 

• Our budget for FFY2017 will be presented to the board for approval at this week’s meeting.  We 
were not able to make all the changes I wanted to make that were presented to the finance 
committee but it should be an acceptable budget for next year. 

• 11 CAPCO staff participated in Narcan training on June 8, and were given kits to use to help if 
someone overdoses on opioids. 

• Janice was recertified as an International Board Certified Lactation Consultant 
• We continue to work on our caseload and participant weight gain goals 

 

 

  

Board Packet June 2016 268



 

Family Development         June 

• Snack packs coming to an end for the school year. We received 2 private donations 
totaling $1500.00 for the program. This will help stock our shelves for the start of the 
2016/2017 school year. 

• CAA distributions began 6/16 with 10 new participants. 
• Brandy and Gail attended NYSAA’s profession development conference where Gail 

received a service award.  
• All Family Development staff was trained in the new CAP Systems Data base. We have 

started adding data from this year.  
• McGraw Success Center held a Snack and Paint event with 30 participants. 
• McGraw Success Center celebrated the end of the program with a field trip to Strong 

Museum of Play in Rochester, 96 people attended. 
• Marathon Success Center is wrapping up Snack Packs and cleaning out the room for 

summer cleaning and maintenance.   
• The Everybody’s Baby Shower was a success with 20 new moms receiving education on 

breast feeding, making your own baby food, parenting tips and community resources as 
well and receiving some gifts for the new babies.  

• SUNY Cortland donated several boxes of clothing left behind from students to Family 
Essentials as well as blankets and pillows that were used when the NY Jets were on 
campus.  

• Staff met with local Dollar General Staff for an official handing over of the check that we 
were awarded through their literacy Foundation.  

• Nikki and Joyce graduated from Leadership Cortland. 
• Several FD staff helped out with the agencies dairy parade float. 

  

Board Packet June 2016 269



CDPAP 

June 2016 

 
• Current Caseload is 70.     

o 27 Fidelis - $18.50 Reimbursement 
o 8 ICircle - $17.73 Reimbursement 

o 4 VNA - $17.73 Reimbursement 
o 31 Medicaid - $15.97 Reimbursement – of those 31 – 15 are at the 

Enhanced rate - $17.09 Reimbursement.  I expect at least one more 
will qualify for the Enhanced rate. 

• Lindy and I will be meeting with Amber and Liz from AAA to further discuss 
incorporating ISEP into CDPAP services. 

  

Board Packet June 2016 270



Resolution of the Board of Directors 

of  

Cortland County Community  

Action Program, Inc. 

Resolution No.16-36 

 

 

 

HEREAS, the Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. Board of Directors has 

reviewed the Authorized Signatories for the 2016-2017 CSBG Contract. 

T IS HEREBEY RESOLVED that on June 23, 2016 the Board of Directors adopts for acceptance 

the  Authorized Signatories. 

                                         _________________ 

 President 

 

                                             ________________ 

 Date 

  

W 

I 

Board Packet June 2016 271



Date
Contractor Contract #

1)

2)

1)

2)

1)

2)

1)

2)

The above authorizations were approved by the board of directors on .

].

FAILURE TO SUBMIT THIS FORM WITH ORIGINAL SIGNATURES INDICATES THAT ONLY THE
BOARD CHAIRPERSON IS AUTHORIZED TO SIGN ALL CSBG DOCUMENTS.

IF CHANGES OCCUR DURING THE CONTRACT PERIOD, A REVISED
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED.

If more than two persons are authorized to sign, copy and attach additional sheets.

Check here if extra sheets are attached        [

Signature:
(Board Chairperson) (Date)

6/23/2016
(Date)

Name of Board Chairperson: Paula Currie

Fiscal Officer/Controller Martha Allen

Vouchers CEO/Executive Director Lindy Glennon

Board Chairperson Paula Currie

Program Reports CEO/Executive Director Lindy Glennon

Fiscal Officer/Controller Martha Allen

Financial Reports CEO/Executive Director Lindy Glennon

Board Chairperson Paula Currie

Contracts/Amendments CEO/Executive Director Lindy Glennon

Cortland County Community Action Program, Inc. C1000755

DOCUMENT TITLE NAME SIGNATURE

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT
2017 CSBG CONTRACT

Grantee Authorized Signatures

6/22/16

Board Packet June 2016 272



 

 
 

 

 

Board Packet June 2016 273


	finance.pdf
	June 2016 - Finance Director Monthly Checklist
	aged accounts receivable
	aged accounts payable
	capco balance sheet
	ADM-APR 2016
	BLDG-APR 2016
	MEDICAID-APR 2016
	ECD-APR 2016
	USDA-APR 2016
	CSBG-APR 2016
	WIC-APR 2016

	Copy of Attachment C (Work Plan and PPR) 2016 CSBG Amendment 32116.pdf
	C-2c Work Plan & PPR

	Category  1 - 6 (002).pdf
	Category 1 (Program impact on Individuals and Families ROMA Goals 1 and 6)
	Category 2 (Program impact on Community ROMA Goals 2 and 3)
	Category 3 (Program impact on Agency Capacity/Partnerships ROMA Goals 4 and 5)
	Category 4 (Admin impact on Individuals and Families)
	Category 5 (Admin impact on Community ROMA Goal 4)
	Category 6 (Admin impact on Agency Capacity/Partnerships ROMA Goals 4 and 5)

	Cus Sat Survey 2016 (002).pdf
	Q1 What type of service(s) did you look for at CAPCO today?
	Responses.pdf
	Q2 Please tell us about the following.

	Comments.pdf
	Q3 Your opinions and suggestions matter.  Please add additional comments, if any.


	2015 Turnover Report.pdf
	Synopsis
	Agency Total

	CAPCO - Personnel Policies and Procedures (with BD Changes June 2016).pdf
	EMPLOYMENT EXPECTATIONS
	Flex Schedules
	Effective Date:  June 23, 2016
	CAPCO promotes a neat, clean, and orderly work area that contributes to efficiency and creates a good impression for those served.

	2016 board self assessment.pdf
	Q1 Name:
	Q2 The agency has a written mission statement which the Board understands and routinely considers when establishing organizational plans, policies and priorities.
	Q3 The size and composition of the Board meets both agency Bylaw and Federal/State CSBG and other applicable regulatory/legal standards.
	Q4 Board members reflect a diverse array of experience, expertise and community representation which helps the Board make more thoughtful and informed decisions.
	Q5 The Board has been offered training to address emerging needs and promote Best Practices in agency governance.
	Q6 The Board does a good job of recruiting, nominating, electing and orienting new Board members on a timely basis.
	Q7 The Board receives meeting notices, agendas, minutes and relevant information at least 5 days in advance of Board meetings.
	Q8 Board meetings are focused on broader issues of policy formulation, strategic planning and management oversight rather than procedural issues, administrative details or simple information reporting.
	Q9 The roles and responsibilities of the Board and the agency’s Executive are clear and respected.
	Q10 The Board completes a timely, annual written appraisal of the performance of the agency’s Executive/CEO.
	Q11 Board member meeting attendance reflects a strong collective commitment to promoting the mission and goals of the agency.
	Q12 The Board has approved an updated agency Strategic Plan and progress in implementing the Plan is reviewed on an annual basis.
	Q13 The Board approves an annual organizational operating budget prior to the start of a new corporate fiscal year.
	Q14 The Board routinely receives and reviews timely, accurate and understandable financial reports throughout the year including an independent annual audit.
	Q15 Board Members have received, signed and comply with agency Code of Ethics and Conflict-of-Interest policies.
	Q16 The Board is knowledgeable about agency programs and receives reports assessing performance based on ROMA goals and standards.
	Q17 Board Committees are active and contribute to the overall effectiveness and productivity of the Board.
	Q18 The Board acknowledges and exercises its responsibilities to assist in agency marketing and fundraising.
	Q19 Board meetings make the most productive use of member’s time and afford opportunities for members to share ideas and opinions.
	Q20 The Board has an adequate amount of liability insurance and has adequate risk management and control policies in place.
	Q21 Overall, my experience as a Board member has been both positive and productive.
	Q22 DO I KNOW THE LEGAL SIDE OF BOARD MEMBERSHIP?
	Q23 DO I UNDERSTAND THE ORGANIZATION?
	Q24 DO I KNOW THE BOARD MEMBERS?
	Q25 DO I KNOW THE BUDGET?
	Q26 DO I PARTICPATE IN FUND RAISING?
	Q27 DO I KNOW THE STAFF?
	Q28 DO I KNOW THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR?
	Q29 In your opinion, what 3 actions could be taken to improve the performance and productivity of the Board during the coming year:
	Q30 Would the performance of the Board be improved with training focused on addressing specific needs? If so, what are some the needs which you feel should be addressed during the upcoming year?
	Q31 Is there any way you feel the Board could make more effective use of your time and talents?
	Q32 Any Other Suggestions for Improving Board Effectiveness?

	2ndquarter PPR.pdf
	C-2c Work Plan & PPR

	Book1.pdf
	Authorized Signatures




